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DIVISION 
REPORTING: 

DATE & TIME 
OCCURRED: 

LAS VEGAS METROPOLITAN POLICE DEPARTMENT 

OFFICER'S REPORT 
Event#: 

April L. Parks - A Private Professional Guardian Report Two of Two 

HSD 

SUBJECT 

DIVISION OF 
OCCURRENCE: HSD 

150819-2043 

LOCATION OF 
OCCURRENCE: Within Jurisdiction of Clark County 

SYNOPSIS: 

This report is Report number Two of Two main reports detailing the investigation of April L. Parks (PARKS), a 
court appointed Private Guardian, Mark Simmons (SIMMONS), her office manager and second-in-command, and Gary 
Neal Taylor (TAYLOR), the husband and employee of PARKS. The investigation centers on their management of the 
financial affairs of numerous clients over whom PARKS was given guardianship authority by the Clark County Family 
Court. 

If a Nevada resident becomes unable to manage his/her own personal and/or financial affairs, a petition can be 
filed with the Family Court under Chapter 159 of the Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) requesting that a guardian be 
appointed to manage the person's affairs on their behalf. An Inability to manage their own affairs may be due to a 
physical or mental impairment that prevents the person from properly managing their affairs or taking care of 
themselves or their property, or both. Persons may be either "Incompetent" or have "limited capacity" in order for the 
court to determine that the appointment of a guardian is necessary. 

NRS Chapter 159 creates and defines "Private Professional Guardians", including requiring certification of 
private guardians through the Center for Guardianship Certification (CGC). 

This investigation Identified that PARKS operated a guardianship business under the name, A Private 
Professional Guardian, LLC {APPG) and was a certified guardian as defined by NRS 159. This investigation identified that 
PARKS formed this business in 2011, but was acting as a private guardian for several years prior to forming APPG. This 
investigation identified that PARKS had been appointed guardian in more than 250 cases since 2007. 

This investigation identified that SIMMONS was also a National Certified Guardian with an extensive background 
and experience in the guardianship, elder care and health industries, having worked as a care facility administ rator and 
qualified dementia care specialist. SIMMONS also occupied a management position within APPG, acting as the office 
manager and exercising supervisory authority over other employees, including the case managers. Evidence shows that 
SIMMONS was responsible or involved in the preparation of accountings that were filed by PARKS in each case and he 
was also responsible for the preparation of invoices for the payment of PARKS fees and the deposit of funds into ward's 
bank accounts. 

Full details of the business practices of PARKS and SIMMONS through the operation of APPG, the complete 
background and experience of PARKS and SIMMONS, the identities and roles of the employees of APPG, and details of 

Date and Time of Report: 11/01/2016 

Approved By· 

LVMPD 82 (Ros.8/01I •WORD 2010 

Officer: ____ C_o_lin_H_a~y_ne_s __ _ 

Officer: ___ Ja_c_l_yn_O_'M_ al_le .... y __ _ 

SIGNATURE: 

P#: __ 6_1_60 __ 

P#: __ 0~8'""9 __ 

------------------
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LAS VEGAS METROPOLITAN POLICE DEPARTMENT 

CONTINUATION 
Event #: 150819-2043 . ----------

the various fraudulent billing schemes employed by PARKS and SIMMONS are set out in Report One. This report 

specifically details: 

• PARKS repeatedly violated the requirements of NRS 159 by failing to file inventories of her wards assets in a timely 
manner, fa iii ng to file a bond or block wards' bank account as required by statute, failing to file annual accountings 
in a timely manner, and failing to notify the court of the death of a ward in a timely manner. These deliberate 
failings on the part of PARKS to comply with the statute enabled her to control wards assets and income and 
reduced the opportunity for court oversight of her handling of her wards affairs. Details of these compliance 

violations are set out in this report. 

• Over a period of several years, on numerous occasions while operating her guardianship business, PARKS filed false 
documents with the Clark County Family Court. Details of these false documents are set out in this report. Further, 
PARKS and SIMMONS committed perjury and suborned perjury in the filing of these documents by making 
statements under penalty of perjury that they knew were false. 

• PARKS and SIMMONS engaged in a billing fraud scheme in which PARKS and SIMMONS submitted invoices to the 
court representing that APPG staff had performed valuable services for the wards over whom PARKS had 
guardianship; said invoices containing false statements regarding the amount of time that was dedicated to each 
ward and the fees APPG was entitled to receive for those services. In connection with those falsified invoices, PARKS 
paid herself fees from the assets and income of her wards, thereby defrauding/exploiting her wards of money. 
Details of this double-billing fraud scheme are set out in the report. 

• The income earned by PARKS through the operation of APPG and the disbursement of that income, including 

salaries earned by the employees. 

INVEST! GATION: 

In June 2015, the Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department (LVMPD) and the Nevada Attorney General's Office 
(NVAG) opened a joint criminal investigation into the business practices of April L. Parks (PARKS) and her business, A 
Private Professional Guardian, LLC (APPG). This investigation was predicated on a series of complaints filed against 

PARKS with both LVMPD and the NVAG. 

► Guardianship defined 

Nevada Revised Statute Chapter 159 governs guardianship matters and defines a Guardian and a Private 

Professional Guardian: 

NRS 159.017 "Guardirm" defined. "Guardian" means any person appointed under this chapter as guardian of 
the person, of the estate, or of the person and estate for any other person, and includes an organization under NRS 
662.245 and joint appointees. The term includes, without limitation, a special guardian or, 1f the context so requires, a 
person appointed in another state who serves in the same capacity as a guardian in this State. 

NRS 159.014 "Private professional guardian" defined. "Private professional guardian" means a person who 
receives compensation for services as a guardian to three or more wards who are not related to the guardian by blood or 

marriage. The term does not include: 
1. A governmental agency. 
2. A public guardian appointed or designated pursuant to the provisions of chapter 253 of NRS. 

NRS 159.0595 Private professional guardians. 
1. A private professional guardian, if a person, must be qualified to serve as a guardian pursuant to NRS 

159. 059 and must be a certified guardian. 

Page 2 

AA 0873



LAS VEGAS METROPOLITAN POLICE DEPARTMENT 

CONTINUATION 
Event#: 150819-2043 ___ .:....::..;::...::...:..-=....::.=...;.:;.. __ _ 

2. A private professional guardian, if an entity, must be qualified to serve as a guardian pursuant to NRS 
159.059 and must have a certified guardian involved in the day-to-day operation or management of the entity. 

3. A private professional guardian shall, at his or her own cost and expense: 
a) Undergo a background investigation which requires the submission of a complete set of his or her 

fingerprints to the Central Repository for Nevada Records of Criminal History and to the Federal Bureau of 
Investigation for their respective reports; and 

b) Present the results of the background investigation to the court upon request. 
4. As used in this section: 

a) "Certified guardian" means a person who is certified by the Center for Guardianship Certification or any 
successor organization. 

b) "Entity" includes, without limitation, a corporation, whether or not far profit, a limited-liability company ond 
a partnership. 

c) "Person" means a natural person. 

NRS 159.027 "ward" defined. "ward" means any person for whom a guardian has been appointed. 

NRS 1S9.019 "Incompetent" defined. "Incompetent" means an adult person who, by reason of mental illness, 
mental deficiency, disease, weakness of mind or any other cause, is unable, without assistance, properly to manage and 
take care of himself or herself or his or her property, or both. The term includes a person who is mentally incapacitated. 

NRS 159.022 "Limited capacity" defined. A person is of "limited capacity" if: 
1. The person is able to make independently some but not all of the decisions necessary for the person's own care 

and the management of the person's property; and 
2. The person is not a minor. 

A further review of N RS Chapter 159 identified a number of requirements placed on guardians that are pertinent 

to this investigation, including; 

NRS 159.044- Content of petition for appointment of guardian 
Petitioner must, to the extent known, include a general description and probable value of the property 

and income of the proposed ward. 
Petitioner inform court of identify of certain persons connected to the ward 

NRS 159.0523 & 159.052.5-Temporary guardianship 
Circumstances and requirements applicable to temporary guardianship 

NRS 159.065- Bond, general requirements 
Guardian shall execute and file a bond, or in lieu of a bond, the guardian may request ward's assets be 
placed in a blocked account. If there are no assets, no bond is required. 

NRS 159.076- Summary administration 
If the net assets of the ward are less than $10,000.00, the court may dispense with annual accountings. 
If the assets increase above $10,000.00, guardian must file an amended inventory notifying the court. 
Bond and annual accountings will then be required. 

NRS 159.078- Petition for court authority to take certain actions 
Guardian must petition for court permission before changing a beneficiary on an insurance policy. 

NRS 159.083 - General functions of guardian of the estate 
Guardian must protect, preserve, manage and dispose of the estate in the best interests of the ward. 

NRS 159,085 - Inventory 
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LAS VEGAS METROPOLITAN POLICE DEPARTMENT 

CONTINUATION 
Event #: 150819-2043 ___ .:....:....::....:..;;..:....;::..:.....:....:....: __ 

Guardian must file an inventory of a wards property not later than 60 days from the appointment of 

general guardian. 
Temporary guardian must file inventory no later than filing of final accounting. 
If additional property of the ward comes into guardian's possession, they must file a supplemental 
inventory within 30 days or include the property in the next accounting. 

NRS 1S9.105 - Payment of claims of guardian 
Guardian may pay their own fees and must report the same to the court in the next accounting they file 

with the court. 

NRS 159.113- Guardian required to petition the court before taking certain actions 
Guardian must petition for court permission before selling any of a ward's property. 
Guardian may petition the court for permission to take any act that the guardian believes to be in the 

interests of the ward. 

NRS 159.127 - Purposes for which ward's property may be sold 
Guardian may sell ward's property, with prior approval of the court, to provide for the ward or if it is in 

the best interests of the ward. 

NRS 159.1515- Sale of personal property of ward by guardian without notice 
Guardian may sell perishable property and other personal property without notice if it will depreciate in 
value if not disposed of promptly or will incur loss or expense if kept. 

NRS 1S9.1535 - Notice of sale of personal property of ward 
Guardian to provide notice and publish intended sale of ward's property, unless NRS 159.1515 applies. 

NRS 159.169- Advice, instructions, and approval of ads of the guardian 
Guardian may petition the court for advice and instructions on any matter concerning the 

administration of the ward's estate. 

NRS 159.177 - Time for filing account 
Guardian must file accounting not later than 60 days from the anniversary of appointment as guardian. 
Guardian must file accounting within 90 days of the death of a ward. 

NRS 159.183 - Compensation and expenses of guardian 
Guardian allowed reasonable compensation for services. 
Reasonable compensation based on cost of similar services for person not under guardianship. 
"Reasonable" based on nature of guardianship; type, duration, and complexity of services required; and 

other relevant factors. 

NRS 159.191- Termination of guardianship 
Guardianship terminated by death of the ward. 
Guardian to notify the court of the death of a ward within 30 days after the death. 
Immediately upon death of a ward, guardian has no further authority to act, except to wind up affairs. 

NRS 159.193 - Winding up affairs 
Guardian can retain possession of ward's property already in their control 
Guardian has 180 days to wind up the affairs of a deceased ward, uncles a different period is designated. 

Sections of NRS Chapter 159 have been amended in each of the legislative sessions in 2009, 2011, 2013, and 
2015. Where any part of this investigation is affected by an earlier version of this chapter, this report will identify the 

relevant version of the N RS. 
Page4 

AA 0875



LAS VEGAS METROPOLITAN POLICE DEPARTMENT 

CONTINUATION 
Event #: 150819-2043 ___ ;..;;.,;;..:..;;..;....;:=..;c.:;_ __ 

► April Parks - Background, Training and Experience 

According to records held by the Nevada Secretary of State, PARKS filed Articles of Organization forming her 
business, A Private Professional Guardian, LLC (APPG), entity number E0293442011-2, on May 23, 2011. PARKS is, and 
always has been, the sole managing member of APPG and also the resident agent for her company (Exhibit 1). 

On September 21, 2015, during the course of this investigation, a search warrant was served on the business 
premises of APPG, located at 2470 St. Rose Parkway # 201, Henderson, NV 89074, and the home address of PARKS, 
located at 663 Otano Drive, Boulder City, NV 89005. Documents located during this search included copies of City of 
Henderson Business License applications and permits related to APPG (Exhibit 2). These documents revealed that from 

mid-2013, PARKS had a business license to operate APPG issued by the City of Henderson. 

Denise Calabrase (CALABRASE), Executive Director of the Center for Guardianship Certification (CGC), produced 
records responsive to Grand Jury Subpoenas (Exhibit 3). These records included PARKS application for certification as a 
Registered Guardian in 20061, her bi-annual renewal of her certification for 2012 and 2014, and documents related to 

two complaints filed against PARKS in 2011 and 20152
• 

CALABRASE also produced documents related to the training and certification of SIMMONS as a National 
Certified Guardian {Exhibit 3). SIMMONS applied for and passed the examination to become a certified guardian in 
2009. According to his application, he had been working for APPG since August 2008 and had been the administrator of 
a memory care facility since 2003. He was also a Qualified Dementia Care Specialist and owned his own Memory Care 

Consulting business, Exploring Life Transitions. 

Certification as a National Certified Guardian (NCG) through the CGC, as required under N RS 159.0595, entitles 
the guardian to represent to the courts and the public that he or she is eligible to be appointed, is not disqualified by 
prior conduct, agrees to abide by universal ethical standards governing a person with fiduciary responsibilities, submits 
to a disciplinary process, and can demonstrate through a written test an understanding of basic guardianship principles 

and laws. 

According to CALABRASE and the CGC website, to become certified as an NCG, applicants must meet eligibility 
requirements and pass an examination that tests certain core competencies, including ethics, standards, and duties and 
responsibilities of guardians. These core competencies are posted on the CGC website. CALABRASE provided copies of 
the CGC core competencies effective January 2010 and January 2015 (Exhibit 4}. The core competencies are directly 
linked to the Standards of Practice and Code of Ethics published by the National Guardianship Association {NGA). The 
NGA Standards of Practice and Code of Ethics are the only nationally recognized set of guidelines applicable to 
guardianship and as such, appear to be the de facto national standard for the performance of guardianship 

responsibilities. 

The documents produced by CALABRASE included copies of the CGC Rules and Regulations related to 
certification as a NCG. Guardians must recertify their status as an NCG every two years. This process requires applicants 
to attest to meeting minimum eligibility requirements for recertification, including verify that they have received 20 
hours of continuing education in subjects related to guardianship (Exhibit 5). 

1 CGC was originally formed as the National Guardianship Foundation in 1997. The original certification designation was as a 
Registered Guardian. The organization name changed to CGC in 2007 and the title for professional certification also changed.to 
National Certified Guardian (NCG} 
2 This report only includes the complainants' letter and PARKS response for the 2015 complaint. The complaints submitted to the CGC 
included several hundred pages of documents with the letter. These will be included in discovery 
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Event#: 150819-2043 ---~~..;;....::..::....:..:..... __ 
PARKS originally obtained her NCG certification in 2006 and has renewed this certification every two years up to 

20143 and is currently certified through 2016. PARKS included her designation as a NCG on her business documents and 
letters, demonstrating her qualification as a professional guardian. The CGC disciplinary rules include reference to 
violations of the NGA Code of Ethics and as such, certified guardians, including PARKS, are required to comply with that 

Code of Ethics. 

Denise Ott (OTT), Business Manager for the National Guardianship Association (NGA), produced records 
responsive to Grand Jury Subpoenas (Exhibit 6). According to these records, PARKS was a member of this association 
from 2005 to 2008 and then rejoined the association in 2015. The records also reflect that PARKS attended the NGA 
annual conferences in 2009 and 2011 and participated in other NGA training events. 

OTT also produced records related to SIMMONS membership of NGA, revealing that he had been a member of 
the NGA since April 2015 (Exhibit 6). The records produced by OTT also included details of a conference SIMMONS 

attended in 2015 cover numerous issues related to ethics in guardianship. 

The NGA publlshes a Standards of Practice and a Code of Ethics handbook for their members (Exhibit 74 & 8). 
These documents set out the standards a certified guardian should apply to the performance of their work as a 
professional guardian and also form the basis of the material tested in the NCG examination. These standards include, 

in pertinent part: 

NGA Standard 1-Applicable Law and General Standards 

Ill. In all guardianships, the guardian shall comply with the requirements of the court that made the appointment. 

NGA Standard 5 -The Guardian's Relationship with Other Professionals and Providers of Service to the Person 

II. The guardian shall develop and maintain a working knowledge of the services, providers and facilities available 

in the community. 

Ill. The guardian shall stay current with changes in community resources to ensure that the person under 
guardianship receives high-quality services from the most appropriate provider. 

IV. A guardian who is not a family member guardian may not provide direct service to the person. The guardian 
shall coordinate and monitor services needed by the person to ensure that the person is receiving the 

appropriate care and treatment. 

NGA Standard 13 - Guardian of the Person: Initial and Ongoing Responsibilities 

IV. The guardian shall visit the person no less than monthly. 

NGA Standard 16 - Conflict of Interest: Ancillary and Support Services 

• The guardian shall avoid all conflicts of interest and self-dealing or the appearance of a conflict of interest and 
self-dealing when addressing the needs of the person under guardianship. Impropriety or conflict of interest 
arises where the guardian has some personal or agency interest that can be perceived as self-serving or adverse 
to the position or best interest of the person. Self-dealing arises when the guardian seeks to take advantage of 
his or her position as a guardian and acts for his or her own interests rather than for the interests of the person. 

3 CAlABRASE confirmed tha1 PARKS has been continually certified, through the CGC only retain the original certification and the two 
most recent renewals 
4 The Standards of Practice were updated in 2013. A copy of the previous Standards of Practice is also included (2007 - 2013). There 
are some slight differences in the wording between editions 
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CONTINUATION 
Event#: 150819-2043 _____ ____;;;;..;....;...;;._ __ 

Ill. Rules relating to specific ancillary and support service situations that might create an impropriety or conflict of 

interest include the following: 
A. The guardian may not directly provide housing, medical, legal, or other direct services to the 

person. Some direct services may be approved by the court for family guardians. 
1. The guardian shall coordinate and assure the provision of all necessary services to the 

person rather than providing those services directly. 
2. The guardian shall be independent from all service providers, thus ensuring that the 

guardian remains free to challenge inappropriate or poorly delivered services and to 
advocate on behalf of the person. 

3. When a guardian can demonstrate unique circumstances indicating that no other entity 
is available to act as guardian, or to provide needed direct services, an exception can be 
made, provided that the exception is in the best interest of the person. Reasons for the 
exception must be documented and the court notified. 

D. The guardian may not be in a position of representing both the person and the service provider. 

G. The guardian may not employ his or her friends or family to provide services for a profit or fee 
unless no alternative is available and the guardian discloses this arrangement to the court. 

I. The guardian shall consider various ancillaries or support service providers and select the 
providers that best meet the needs of the person. 

NGA Standard 17- Duties of the Guardian of the Estate 

I. The guardian, as a fiduciary, sha II manage the financial affairs of the person under guardianship in a way that 
maximizes the dignity, autonomy, and self-determination of the person. 

IJ. When making decisions the guardian shall: 
A. Give priority to the goals, needs and preferences of the person, and 
B. Weigh the costs and benefits to the estate 

IX. The guardian shall manage the estate only for the benefit of the person. 

NGA Standard 19- Property Management 

I. The guardlan may not dispose of real or personal property of the person under guardianship without judicial, 

administrative, or other independent review. 

Ill. In considering whether to dispose of the person's property, the guardian shall consider the following: 
A. Whether disposing of the property will benefit or improve the life of the person, 
B. The Ii kelihood that the person will need or benefit from the property in the future, 
c. The previously expressed or current desires of the person with regard to the property, 
D. The provisions of the person's estate plan as lt relates to the property, if any, 
E. The tax consequences of the transaction, 
F. The impact of the transaction on the person's entitlement to public benefits, 
G. The condition of the entire estate, 
H. The ability of the person to maintain the property, 
I. The availability and appropriateness of alternatives to the disposition of the property, 
J. The likelihood that property may deteriorate or be subject to waste, and 
K. The benefits versus the liability and costs of maintaining the property, 
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CONTINUATION 

NGA Standard 20-Conflict of Interest: Estate, Financlal, and Business Services 

Event#: 150819-2043 _____ ___,;c........;;..;.._ __ 

I. The guardian shall avoid all conflicts of interest and self-dealing or the appeara nee of a conflict of interest and 
self-dealing when addressing the needs of the person under guardianship. Im propriety or conflict of interest 
arises where the guardian has some personal or agency lnterest that can be perceived as self-serving or adverse 
to the position or best interest of the person. Self-dealing arises when the guardian seeks to take advantage of 
his or her position as a guardian and acts for his or her own interests rather than for the interests of the person. 

NGA Standard 22 - Guardianship Service Fees 

I. Guardians are entitled to reasonable compensation for their services. 
II. The guardian shall bear in mind at all times the responsibility to conserve the person's estate when making 

decisions regarding providing guardianship services and charging a fee for those services. 
Ill. All fees related to the duties of the guardianship must be reviewed and approved by the court. Fees must be 

reasonable and be related only to guardianship duties. 

VII. Factors to be considered in determining reasonableness of the guardian's fees include: 

B. Necessity of the services; 

E. The character of the work to be done, including difficulty, intricacy, importance, time, skill, or 
license required, or responsibility undertaken; 

G. The work actually performed, including the time actually expended, and the attention and skill­
level required for each task, including whether a different person could have rendered the 
service better, cheaper, faster; 

H. The result, specifically whether the guardian was successful, what benefits to the person were 
derived from the efforts, and whether probable benefits exceeded costs; 

J. The fees customarily paid, and time customarily expended, for performing like services in the 
community, including whether the court has previously approved similar fees in another 

comparable matter; 

L. The fidelity and loyalty displayed by the guardian, including whether the guardian put the best 
interests of the estate before the economic interest of the guardian to continue the 

engagement; 

VIII. Fees or expenses charged by the guardian shall be documented through billings maintained by the guardian. If 
time records are maintained, they shall clearly and accurately state: 

A. Date and time spent on a task, 

On September 21, 2015, during the course of this investigation, a search warrant was served on the business 
premises of APPG, located at 2470 St. Rose Parkway # 201, Henderson, NV 89074, and the home address of PARKS, 
located at 663 Otono Drive, Boulder City, NV 89005. Documents located during this search included a copy of the NGA 
Standards of Practice with a yellow sticky note on the front stating "Mark, Please review & let's discuss" (Exhibit 9}. 
Throughout this document, sections of the text were highlighted in yellow including a section covering the need for an 
inventory, the section addressing conflict of interest and guardians not providing direct services to the ward, and the 
section addressing guardian fees. As detailed in this report, the sections of this document that were highlighted are 
particularly relevant to this investigation because PARKS repeatedly failed to comply with those requirements. This 
document and the highlighting within it, further supports that PARKS was aware of her ethical obligations towards her 
wards and also aware of the standards expected of a certified guardian. 
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Also located during the service of the search warrant were copies of PARKS resume and other documents 
describing her experience and qualifications as a guardian, along with additional CGC certificates evidencing that PARKS 
was certified from 2008 through 2016 {Exhlbtt 10), The documents included: 

• PARKS resume which revealed that PARKS had been employed as an office manager and Medicaid Specialist at 
Mountain View Care Center in Boulder City from April 2000 through June 2003 and then self-employed as a 

private guardian from June 2003. 

• A recommendation Jetter from attorney Lee Drizin (DRIZIN) documenting that between 2008 and 2010, PARKS 
worked for his law firm acting as a private guardian on more than 50 guardianships along with a client retainer 
agreement dated May 14, 2008, in which DRIZIN identified PARKS as his Guardianship and Long Term Care 

Paralegal. 

• A business brochure for APPG. In this brochure, PARKS stated that her company had two staff members who 
were NCG certified and over 30 years of combined guardianship experience. 

• Letters on APPG letterhead that appeared to be solicitations from PARKS to potential client referral sources in 
which PARKS described the operation of her business and the background, knowledge and certification of 
herself and her staff. Throughout these documents PARKS details her extensive background, training, 
experience and knowledge as a professional guardian, along with her knowledge and "review of new and 

upcoming of the Standards of Practice from NGA". 

• SIMMONS resume describing his extensive experience in the senior care and guardianship disciplines and his 
experience as owner of Exploring Life Transitions consulting. 

A review of the guardianship cases filed iri Clark County Family Court revealed that PARKS had petitioned to be 
appointed as guardian or co-guardian in over 250 cases since January 1, 2000 (Exhibit 11). These cases ranged from 
cases in which the petition was filed but then withdrawn or not approved by the court, through complex guardlanship 
cases that required PARKS, as guardian, to litigate law suits on behalf of wards, sell real estate belonging to wards, 
resolve divorce proceedings on behalf of wards, sell business interests, manage trusts, and use investment advisors to 
manage ward assets. In many of these cases, PARKS utilized the services of legal counsel to advise her and file legal 
documents; in other cases PARKS filed documents prose and acted as guardian without the services of legal counsel. 

According to records held by the Nevada Secretary of State, PARKS is the Secretary of the Nevada Guardianship 
Association, Inc., an affiliate of the NGA (Exhibit 12). Parks has held this position since August 2014. According to the 
Articles of Incorporation of the Nevada Guardianship Association, Inc. the purpose of this association is to provide 
educational and tra'ining opportunities; to promote standards, criteria, and policies; and to assist in support mechanisms 
for professional, private, public, and family guardians in Nevada. 

Also located during the service of the search warrant were documents and notes pertaining to PARKS work with 
the Nevada Guardianship Association (Exhibit 13). These documents included the bylaws of the association, amended in 
2015, and handwritten and typed notes related to purposed legislative changes to guardianship laws. I noted that these 
notes referred to the CGC certification of guardians and the NGA Standards of Practice and Code of Ethics as systems 
already in place to protect wards. The typed notes also addressed that PARKS knew that the family court compliance 

office was insufficlently staffed; 

" ... and would have been discovered sooner, if the Courts had more funding for a Compliance Officer." 
"Court Compliance officers are needed to assist the court enforce laws already in place to protect against bad 

guardians,. .. " 
"Clark County District Court already has compliance officer but needs more help" 
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" ... that we do accountings to the court, but one of the issues they had .... Is that there is no one auditing the 
actual accountings. They felt that the court did not have the manpower or time to actually audit the 
accountings." 

Also located during the servlce of the search warrant was a signed and dated copy of a "Guardian's 
Acknowledgement of Duties and Responsibilities under NRS 159" (Exhibit 14). The document appeared to be signed by 
PARKS and dated March 6, 2012 and acknowledged that she understood the duties and responsibilities of a guardian, 
specifically the duty to protect and preserve the wards estate and to comply with the time requirements placed on filing 
certain documents with the court. 

NRS 159.073 requires that a guardian must file a verified acknowledgement of the duties and responsibilities of 
a guardian. Subsection 2 of this section allows private professional guardians to file a general acknowledgment of their 
duties and responsibilities that cover them in all cases, rather than file an acknowledgment in each case. 

PARKS' and SIMMONS' background, training, qualifications, certification, and experience as documented 
above, evidence that they are both highly skilled private guardians with detailed knowledge and understanding of 
state law as it pertains to guardianship, court procedures in guardianship cases, and the legal and ethical rules 
applicable to guardianships. As will be outlined in this report, PARKS frequently and blatantly failed to comply with 
the requirements of NRS 159 and by doing so, she was able to withhold vital information from the court and 
effectively negate safeguards put in place by NRS 159 and reduce court oversight of her handling of wards finances. 

By reducing court oversight, PARKS and SIMMONS were able to create an environment in which they were 
able to misappropriate ward assets for their own benefit. As a skilled, qualified, experienced, and educated 
professional guardians, PARKS and SIMMONS were aware of their obligations and responsibilities to the wards and to 
the court and deliberately chose to ignore those obligations and responsibilities. 

On July 27, 2016, Investigator O'Malley and I interviewed Hearing Master John Norheim (NORHEIM), who 
presided over the guardianship court on behalf of Judge Hoskin and prior judges (Exhibit 15). NORHEIM stated, in 
pertinent part (more details of NORHEIM'S interview are provided in Report One): 

He described himself as an attorney, or hearing master, who works under the supervision and directlon of 
district court judges. Different judges throughout the years have assigned him different tasks in guardianship 

court. 

NORHEIM said his role was to initially review petitions for guardianship and petitions filed in ongoing 
guardianship cases, such as annual accountings. He said petitioners have the right to have their case heard 
before a judge, but it was rare for someone to request one unless it was contested. NORHEIM explained that he 
could not sign any orders because he was not a judge. 

When a guardian submits their annual accounting, NORHEIM said he reviews the accounting and the Notice of 
Hearing. He also looks for any challenges to the accounting. If procedurally everything looks correct and there 
are no known challenges, the accounting, like the petition, is placed on the approved and granted list. 

NORHEIM explained his review of the accountings as the following: He would look for deficiencies or "red flags" 
such as proper notice not being given to certain relatives. He said there is no way for him to know whether what 
was reported in the accounting is true. He also said he had no way of verifying the ward's income and has to 
take the accounting at face value. NORHEIM said his red flags are judgment calls and not a written policy. 

NORHEIM stated that he gives guardian invoices a cursory review. He mostly looks at the asset recap and 
expenditures. NORHEIM compares room and board fees to outside services to see if there is a large discrepancy. 
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NORH EIM stated that if the guardian tells the court activities for the ward are reasonable and necessary, it is 
their fiduciary responsibility to tell me the truth and the court assumes they have. NORHEIM stated that absent 
a challenge to an accounting, the court could only raise the issue that fees are excessive if it was clear on the 

face of the accounting. 

NORHEJM stated that a guardian is not allowed to bill wards the total cost of an activity where several wards 
benefit from the activity. He said guardians have to bill in real time. If they do not, it is not an appropriate fee. 
He said if the guardian or their staff spent 15 minutes with a ward, then they should be billed 15 minutes. 

NORHEI M explained that he can't highly scrutinize petitions and accountings due to a lack of time and resources. 
For most of his tenure, he was reviewing and monitoring cases alone while sometimes a law clerk could offer 
additional administrative support when one was available. He said he had conducted 300,000 hearings during 
the last ten years in guardianship court where sometimes he would be still be reviewing filings at 10 p.m. the 

night before a hearing was scheduled. 

NORHEJM also explained that if a guardian put in their initial petition for guardianship that they were unaware 
of any assets, he would not be in a position to follow up with that information. Within 60 days of a guardianship 
appointment, an inventory is supposed to be filed that represents a true statement on all the money and all the 
assets owned by the ward. The importance of this document is that if the guardian later learned that a ward 
with no assets had assets in excess of $10,000, the ward's money is required to be placed in a blocked account. 

NORHEIM stated that he would not know about the inventory being filed because it would not be placed on the 
court's calendar. The obligation is on the guardian to follow NRS 159 and file a petition to place funds in a 
blocked account and then file proof of the same blocked account. He said he did not look at the inventory 
documents that were filed. Essentially, there was no hearing to prove the inventory was accurate or any process 

to review it. 

NORHEIM specifically stated t~at PARKS knows that if a case has assets over the $10,000.00 limit for summary 
administration, then the assets must be placed in a blocked account. NORHEIM stated that there is no excuse 

for not doing this. 

On August, 2016, Investigator O'Malley and I interviewed Judge Charles Hoskin (HOSKIN), who presided over the 
guardianship court and supervised NORHEIM (Exhibit 16). HOSKIN stated, in pertinent part (more details of HOSKIN'S 

interview are provided in Report One): 

All uncontested guardianship cases were heard and reviewed by NORHEIM. HOSKIN estimated that six to eight 
times each year he would become involved in a guardianship case when someone filed a challenge in the 

matter. 

HOSKIN said his signature was needed on all orders as the judicial authority since NORHEIM is not a judge. He 
described he rubber-stamped that NORHEIM'S recommendation to approve an order if there was no objection. 

HOSKIN said if a non-contested petition for guardianship is filed, it would be placed on the court's calendar for a 
hearing. If after his review, NORHEIM felt the petition should be approved and there were no objections, the 
order would be sent to HOSKIN'S clerk to automatically be signed. If HOSKIN was not available to sign it himself, 
his clerk would use his electronic signature to "rubber stamp" the order. 

The petition and any subsequent filings would be placed on the "approved and granted list" if NORHEIM found 
no procedural errors in the documents and there were no challenges. This list allowed for orders to be approved 
without any hearings. HOSKIN explained this was done to expedite the matters and to prevent large legal bills 

being charged to wards related to attorneys attending court hearings. 
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HOSKIN said the court did not have a process that allowed staff, including NORHEIM, to investigate matters 
related to guardianship cases. He said investigating the content in filed documents was "not in our role." 
HOSKIN said the Canons of Judicial Ethics prevented judges or the hearing master from "ex-parte investigations" 
such as "Googling" information on the Internet or making personal inquiries requesting information beyond 
what was presented in court documents or in court hearings. 

HOSKIN described that this judicial canon created much frustration as it prevented NORHEIM and himself from 
digging deeper into guardianship matters. He said throughout the years he asked the court for more staff who 
could conduct investigations separate from the judges but due to a lack of funding his requests fell silent. 

HOSKIN said if he or NORHEJM were not presented with specific information to challenge facts guardians 
submitted to the court, there was nothing they could do unless they felt a fee or bill was "outrageous." For 
example, if a guardian billed thousands of dollars for a menial activity, he would require the guardian to provide 

more information to justify the expense. 

HOSKIN said when NORHEIM reviewed accountings submitted by guardians, he could only rely on the 
information provided in the documents to determine if they should be approved. He explained that NORHEIM 
was left to use his discretion in reviewing petitions and accountings. He said sometimes NORHEIM would confer 
with him to seek his opinion on certain issues, Mostly, he said the judges relied on family members to monitor 
the guardianship and to present them with any suspicious activity. 

HOSKIN said if a private guardian performs one activity that benefits several wards, that each ward should be 
charged their share of the activity. He said charging each ward for the full cost of the activity, or double-billing, ls 
inappropriate. HOSKIN said the court does not have time to compare all of a guardian's accountings and ensure 
double-billing does not occur. He added there was also no time for the judges or court staff available to perform 
an analysis of a private guardian's caseload to look for possible patterns of fraud. 

HOSKIN stated that Parks has a legal, fiduciary responsibility to her wards even if no objections by family 
members are made to her billings. He said judges are left to assume the guardian made the best decision and 
assumed the guardian felt it was necessary to perform the task for the fee that was charged. However, in order 
to completely find a fee or activity reasonable, judges need the complete picture to make that determination 
which is usually not presented in court documents and due to the judicial canon of ethics, the judge cannot 
independently investigate the veracity or reasonableness of the accounting up for approval. Instead, the judge 
has to make sure all procedural measures have been satisfied, that no one has objected, and that there are no 

"outrageous" bills or fees. 

► Analysis of compliance with NRS 159 

During the initial stages of this investigation I noted that PARKS appeared frequently to fail to comply with 
several of the filing requirements of NRS 159. This failure to comply with the requirements was evident in several areas, 

including: 

1. failure to file an inventory of ward's assets within the prescribed time frame 
2. failure to file a bond or block ward's bank accounts when the ward's assets were over $10,000.00 
3. failure to notify the court of the death of a ward within the prescribed time frame 
4. failure to file annual accounting within the prescribed time frame 

1. Initial Inventory required within 60 days of appointment as General Guardian 

As part of this investigation I analyzed the documents filed with the court in 227 of PARKS guardianship cases 
filed between August 2007 and October 2015 {Exhibit 17). Nineteen (19) of these cases were withdrawn or dismissed, 
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leaving 208 cases reviewed. In seventeen (17) of these cases PARKS was granted a Temporary Guardianship, but never a 
General Guardianship. In these cases, no inventory was required by statute, as the filing of an inventory is required 
within 60 days of being granted General Guardianship. This left 191 cases in which PARKS was required to file an 
inventory within 60 days of appointment as General Guardian. In some of these cases, PARKS was appointed as a co­
guardian, acting as the paid professional guardian along with a family member of the ward. 

PARKS filed her initial inventory within the prescribed time frame in 49 of these 191 cases; just 25.65% of the 
time. 

In 17 of these 191 cases, PARKS failed to file an inventory at any time (8.9%) 

In 119 (62.3%) cases, PARKS filed an inventory late, The lateness of this filing ranged from 1 day late to 21 733 
days late. The average number of days late for the filing of the inventory was 409 days late, over 1 year later: 

1 - 30 days late 11 Cases 2.76% 
31 - 60 days late 9 Cases 4.71% 
61 - 90 days late 17 Cases 8.9% 
91-120 days late 11 Cases 5.76% 
121-150 days late 11 Cases 5.76% 
151 -180 days late 11 Cases 5.76% 
181- 210 days late 5 Cases 2.62% 
211- 240 days late 5 Cases 2.62% 
241- 270 days late 2 Cases 1.05% 

271- 300 days late 1 Case 0.52% 
301 - 330 days late 5 Cases 2.62% 
331- 360 days late 1 Cases 0.52% 
1 year to 2 years late 11 Cases 5.76% 
Over 2 years late 20 Cases 10.47% 

Sy failing to file an inventory of a ward's assets in the time frame required under the statute, PARKS deprived 
the court of, or delayed providing to the court, the information the court required in order to address the need for a 
bond or blocked account to protect the ward's assets and to ensure accountability from PARKS. 

In 48 of PARKS guardianship cases, PARKS initially advised the court that the ward had no assets and as such, the 
guardianship was eligible for Summary Administration as defined in NRS 159.076. Summary Administration would waive 
the need to block bank accounts or file a bond and also waive the need for the guardian to file annual accountings; 
however, the statute still requires the guardian to file an initial inventory within 60 days of appointment, regardless of 
whether the cases is eligible for Summary Administration or not. 

2. Guardian required to file bond or block wards accounts 

NRS 159.065 requires a guardian to execute a bond, or In lieu of a bond the guardian may petition the court to 
block the wards bank accounts. 

During our interview with NORHEIM, he specifically addressed blocked accounts by stating that most private 
guardians elect to block accounts rather than file a bond. This requirement is waived if the ward is approved for 
summary administration and has less than $10,000.00 in net assets. 

According to NORHEIM, guardianship cases approved as general administration require that ward's assets be 
placed in a blocked account and proof of the blocked account be filed with the court. A guardian requiring access to the 
funds in a blocked account must petition the court to establish a budget and for permission to release the funds from 
the blocked account. 
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During an interview with NORHEIM, he stated that when the initial petition for guardianship is submitted to the 
court, the petitioner is required to address the assets of the ward, if known, and the need for a blocked account. In the 
event that the petitioner does not know the wards assets, the NRS requires that they notify the court immediately upon 
discovery of assets that would require general administration and blocking accounts. NORHEIM stated that this is 
generally done when the guardian files an inventory; however, inventories are not reviewed by the court nor set for 
hearing. As such, it is the responsibility of the guardian to file a petition with the court requesting an order to block 
accounts and taking a summary administration case out of summary administration and into general administration 
when assets over $10,000.00 are located. 

NORHEIM specifically stated that PARKS knows she is required to do this. On at least two linked cases {Rudy 
North G-13-039133-A & Rennie North G-13-039132-A) NORHEIM removed PARKS as guardian for failing to do this and 
addressed in his report and recommendation that PARKS is aware of this requirement and that it is a serious violation of 
her responsibilities as guardian for failing to do this (Exhibit 18) 

NORHEIM further confirmed that if a guardian petitions the court for initial guardianship and does not include 
information about a ward's assets, the order will generally include language that if assets over $10,000.00 are located, 
·they need to be put into a blocked account. The court then relies on the guardian to file their inventory in a timely 
fashion and if needed, file a petition for an order to block the account. If the guardian fails to file the inventory in a 
timely fashion, they will retain absolute control over the ward's assets, circumventing the courts oversight of the use of 
those assets and negating the protections provided by N RS 159 and the requirement for a blocked account. In a 
situation like that, NORHEIM confirmed that the guardian will then be able to spend down the wards assets and, by the 
time they eventually file an inventory, the asset level may be below the $10,000.00 threshold for the need for a blocked 
account. NORHEIM confirmed that this scenario, if done deliberately, would be an abuse of the guardianship system by 

the guardian. 

On September 21, 2015, a search warrant was served on the home and office of PARKS as part of this ongoing 
investigation. Located within the documents seized from her office was a printout of an email dated November 25, 
2013. The content of the email was not relevant to this matter; however handwritten on the back of this email were the 
words "In the event all the assets are over $10,000.00 funds must be placed in a blocked account". There is no 
indication when these words were written, but clearly they show that PARKS was very aware of the need for blocked 
accounts (Exhibit 180). 

An analysis of 190 of PARKS cases (Exhibit 19) in which she was approved as general guardian identified 64 
instances where, according to the inventory or accounting filed by PARKS, the ward had sufficient assets to require the 
assets be placed into a blocked account. 

• In 5 cases, PARKS did not file an inventory with the court and did not notify the court of the existence of assets 
until she filed her accounting with the court. In each case she retained control of funds in excess of $10,000.00 
that should have been placed in blocked accounts, per NRS 159. 

• In 3 cases, the case was originally approved as summary administration, when the ward actually had assets that 
would have made the case general administration. 

I. Daniel Currie G-09-034125-A - In this case, the guardianship was initially granted as summary 
administration on 12/31/2009, because PARKS had no information on Currie's assets at the time of 
application. Subsequently, in or around May 2010, PARKS located an IRA belonging to CURRIE 
containing over $47,000.00. Despite knowing about this IRA in May 2010, PARKS did not notify the court 
of the asset until she filed a new inventory on 1/7/2011; almost eight months later. On 6/23/2011, 
PARKS filed a first accounting and requested that the case be converted from summary administration 
due to the existence of assets. 
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11. Walter Wright G-11-036232-A - In this case, the guardianship was initially applied for Pro Se by 
PARKS on 07/21/2011. In her petition, PARKS identified that the ward had over $20,000.00 in VA checks 
waiting to be issued. This application was withdrawn and an amended petition filed on 04/18/2012. 
This petition was filed by PARKS through her attorney, Noel Palmer Simpson. This petition did not 
identify any assets and asked that PARKS be granted a temporary guardianship. A temporary 
guardianship was granted on 04/23/2012 and a general was granted on 05/17/2012. The general was 
granted as summary administration as no assets were disclosed to the court. PARKS failed to file an 
inventory until 08/20/2014, over 2 years late and at that time, PARKS disclosed that the ward had 
$26,216.54 in a bank account when the guardianship was granted. As such, the guardianship should 
never have been approved as summary administration. 

Ill. Dorothy Poplaski G-13-038838-A- In this case, the guardianship was initially granted as summary 
administration on 07/26/2013, because PARKS had no information on Poplaski's assets at the time of 
application. Poplaski died on 10/19/2013, prior to the filing of an inventory. The inventory was filed on 
11/20/2013, 2 months late. The inventory listed over $132,000.00 in assets, yet the case was never 
removed from summary administration. 

• ln 34 cases PARKS failed to block the accounts despite holding ward assets in excess of $10,000.00. In all these 
cases PARKS filed an inventory of the wards assets, informing the court that upon commencement of the 
guardianship she had located assets that would require a blocked account. In none of these cases did PARKS file 
a petition with the court asking for an order to block the bank accounts. In 24 of these cases, the inventory was 
not submitted to the court within the time frame required by NRS 1S9. The inventories were between 4 days 
and over 4 years late, effectively ensuring that the court was unaware of the assets available to the wards and 
the potential need for blocked accounts. 

• Of the cases in which PARKS did block the wards accounts, in ten of the cases the petition to block the accounts 
was not filed until many months after the guardianship was granted, in several cases up to three years after 
PARKS took control of the wards assets. In several cases, the ward had in excess of $100,000.00 in assets under 
PARKS' control with no blocked accounts and no court oversight or knowledge of existence of the assets. 

ln over 65% of the cases that required a blocked account, PARKS failed to comply with the NRS governing the 
need for bonds or blocked accounts. In those cases in which PARKS actually blocked the accounts, she often did so many 
years after taking control of the wards' assets. 

By failing to place wards assets into blocked accounts, as required by the statute, or by delaying placing the 
assets in a blocked account, PARKS effectively placed the ward's ·assets under her absolute control and removed the 
court's ability to monitor the use of the ward's funds or to protect the wards from financial abuse. 

3. Guardian required to notify the court within 30 days of the death of a ward 

In 117 of the guardianship cases examined, the ward died during the existence of the guardianship (Exhibit 20). 
PARKS was required to notify the court wlthin 30 days of the death of a ward. In one case, PARKS never notified the 

court that the ward had died: 

o In the case of William Flewellen, G-12-037367-A, PARKS obtained a temporary guardianship of Flewellen on 
6/7/2012 and Flewellen died the next day. PARKS used her temporary guardianship to take the money in 
Flewellen's bank account to pay her own fees and then failed to file any further documents of any 

description with the court. 

In the remaining cases in which the ward died whlle the guardianship was active, PARKS notified the court of the 
death of the ward within the prescribed time frame on 32 occasions (27.35%). 
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In the remaining 84 cases (71.79%) in which the ward died during the guardianship, PARKS notification to the 
court was between 1 day and 2215 days (over 6 years) late. The average delay in notification to the court was 313 days, 

approximately 10 months late. 

By failing to notify the court of the death of the ward within the prescribed time frame, PARKS deprived the 
court of the information needed for the court to ensure that the guardianship was closed in a timely manner without 
continuing to incur expenses and that the wards remaining estate was disposed of appropriately. Instead, PARKS 
retained control of the deceased ward's assets, in many cases for years after her legal authority ended. 

4. Guardian required to file an annual accounting within 60 days of the anniversary of appointment or 90 days 

from the death of the ward 

Guardians are required to file an accounting within 60 days of the annual anniversary of the general 
guardianship being granted. This requirement is waived if the case is set as summary ad ministration. I examined PARKS 
cases where a general guardianship was grant to determine her compliance with this accounting requirement. Of the 
227 cases reviewed, 143 were not summary administration and as such required annual accountings be filed (Exhibit 

21). 

In 2 of these 143 cases, PARKS failed to file an annual accounting at any time. 

Of these 143 cases, 84 wards were still alive when the first annual accounting would have been required (425 
days after appointment). In 30 of these cases, PARKS filed the first annual accounting within the prescribed time 
frame. In the other 56 case, the first annual accounting was filed between 3 and 2368 days late (6 ½ years late). 
The average amount of time the accounting was late in these cases was 834 days (over 2 years late). 

In 59 of these 143 cases, the ward died within the initial period in which the first accounting would have been 
required (425 days from appointment). As such, the accounting would have been due within 90 days of the death of the 

ward. 

In 16 of these 57 cases, PARKS filed her accounting within the 90 day timeframe. 

In 43 of these 57 cases, the accounting was filed between 3 and 2215 days late (6 years late). The average 
amount of time the accounting was late in these cases was 433 days (over 1 year late). 

As can be seen, PARKS was timely in the filing of her first accounting only 46 times in the 143 cases reviewed on 
which an accounting was due; 32.17% of the time. In the remaining 67.83% of these cases, PARKS filed her accounting 
between 3 days and 6 ½ years late, or in 2 cases, she simply didn't bother to file an accounting at all. 

• Compliance Office 

On August 15, 2016, Investigator O'Malley and I interviewed Linda Sisson {SISSON), Clark County Family Court 
Compliance Officer. SISSON stated in pertinent part (Exhi'bit 22): 

SISSON had been the court compliance officer since May 2009. Her role was to ensure that all the documents 
that needed to be filed in guardianship cases were filed correctly and in a timely fashion. She stated that she did not 
have an automated method of keeping track of the filing requirements for each case and the court had many thousands 
of cases to monitor. SISSON stated that for her to discover that a case was out of compliance in any way, either 
someone had to bring it to her attention or she would randomly look at cases. 

SISSON was not surprised that an analysis of PARKS cases had detected that she was significantly out of 
compliance on hundreds of issues across hundreds of cases. SISSON confirmed that detecting a cases as out of 
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compliance was difficult and that the court had no system in place to monitor compliance other than her random 
monitoring. SISSON stated that she believed it was common knowledge with guardianship attorney's that they were 
unlikely to be caught if they were out of compliance. 

SISSON stated that she did not review documents for content and she was not responsible for examining 

petitions for guardianship or for payment of fees. 

The court provided me with copies of 51 letters sent by SISSON to PARKS between December 22, 2009, and 
Novembers, 2014 (Exhibit 23). These letters notified PARKS that she was out of compliance with NRS 159 in various 
ways, including being late in the ftling of her accountings and inventories. In several cases the court had to send a 
particular compliance notification two or more times because PARKS failed to comply with the first notice that she was 

out of compliance. 

I noted that the 51 compliance letters sent to PARKS during this time frame was significantly lower than the 374 
occasions in which my analysis found PARKS was actually out of compliance. 

These compliance letters identify a number of relevant issues. First, they demonstrate that PARKS had 
knowledge of the court and legal requirements that applied to her as a professional guardian and as such was aware 
that she had to provide certain information to the court within certain time frames. Second, the relatively few 
compliance letters that PARKS was sent compared to the significant number of occasions and ways in which she was out 
of compliance, supports that PARKS was aware that her failure to provide information to the court and her failure to 
abide by the rules was frequently going undetected by the court. 

In addition to the evidence of PARKS compliance failures as outlined above, I also noted that in the guardianship 
case of Helen Schoepe (G-11-035590-A), PARKS filed a petition and supporting affidavit requesting that a co-guardian, 
identified as Marilyn Berquist (BERQUIST) be removed from her role as co-guardian (Exhibit 24). In this petition and 
affidavit, PARKS alleged that BERQUIST had identified ward assets and failed to report these to the court. PARKS also 
reported that she had informed BERQUIST of the importance of complying with the duties of a guardian. This petition 
further supports that PARKS knew and understood the importance of complying with the requirements of NRS 159 and 
that she believed a guardian who failed to comply was unfit to be a guardian and should be removed from that position; 
yet PARKS repeatedly failed to comply with the very rules for she tried to have a co-guardian removed. 

During the course of this investigation, investigators located a contract between A Private Professional 
Guardian, LLC and SEM Applications, Inc. (Exhibit 68). This contract showed that SEM Applications, Inc. provided PARKS 
with web-based case management software, called EMS, through which she was able to manage her ward's affairs and 
document her activities and billing for each ward. Stanley Meng (MENG), owner of SEM Applications, Inc. provided a 
link to the onli ne manual and training for the EMS system. 

A review of the features of this case management system identified that it offered the user the ability to 
schedule Reminders of important due dates in individual cases, such as the date accountings and annual reports were 
due to be filed. When a Reminder date occurred, the Reminder, as set by the user, would appear on the main 
Dashboard screen when the user logged into the system to notify the user that the action was due. The system also 
enabled the user to identify important dates in several other locations within the system, such as on the Important 

Dotes tab and the Order tab. Given the capacity of this case management system used by PARKS, she could have set 
each important date, such as accounting and inventory dates to automatically remind her in advance making it even 
easier to be able to comply with court filing deadlines. 

• Other complian<:e violations by PARKS 

In addition to PARKS repeated failure to comply with the requirement to notify the court of certain information 
and file certain documents within specified timeframes, as outlined above, I noted during my review of PARKS cases that 
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she failed to comply with the rules in a number of other aspects. These included failing to list assets when petitioning 
for guardianship or filing inventories, failing to request court authority to sell personal property belonging of a ward and 
failing to request permission to modify beneficiaries of insurance policies. Examples of these failures include, but are 

not limited to the following: 

• Dakota Jones G-12-036960-A (Exhibit 25) In this case, PARKS was appointed guardian on 03/22/0012. 
When she filed her inventory on 03/26/2012, she failed to list the mobile home owned by Jones, even though she 
had visited the property that day. PARKS subsequently attempted to sell this home, yet never filed an amended 
inventory informing the court of the existence of the home or requesting permission to sell it, both of which are 
required under NRS 159. PARKS filed a second inventory for Jones on 06/15/2013, yet still did not list the existence 
of this property as an asset of the ward at the time PARKS was appointed guardian. Ultimately the property was 

sold at a lien auction for failure to pay space rent. 
• Baxter Burns G-11-036744-A (See separate case submittal related to Burns) In this case, prior to filing the 

initial petition for guardianship, PARKS knew of the existence of a trust, a successor trustee who was involved in the 
daily care of the ward and that the ward owned his own property and had liquid assets in a bank account. Despite 
knowing this information, PARKS lied to the court when she failed to list any of this information in her initial petition. 

• Mary Woods G-11-036073-A (See separate case submittal for Woods) In this case, PARKS wrote to an 
insurance company requesting that the beneficiary of Woods life insurance policy be changed to reflect the Estate of 
Woods as the beneficiary instead of the existing beneficiaries. NRS 159 precludes a guardian from changing the 
beneficiary of an insurance policy without court permission. PARKS did not request court permission before doing 

this. ' 
• Beverley Flaherty G-11-035592-A (Exhibit 26) In this case, PARKS and the co-guardian filed a petition to 

request that the beneficiary of Flaherty's trust be changed. This petition was filed two days after the ward died. 
Emails located in the files seized from PARKS office reflect that PARKS met with Noel Palmer Simpson, her attorney 
to discuss the death of the ward prior to the hearing on this petition. The NRS precludes the guardian from taking 
this sort of action after the ward dies as the powers of the guardian die with the ward. Prior to the hearing, PARKS 
did not tell the court that the ward had died some weeks earlier and allowed the court to approve this petition. 

• Ruth Braslow G-13-038228-A (See separate case submittal related to Braslow) In this case, PARKS was 
required to petition the court for permission to sell the wards personal property. PARKS failed to request court 
permission to sell the personal property and instead contracted with a company to hold an estate sale, disposing of 

all of the wards personal effects, contrary to NRS 159.1S35 

These failures to comply with the basic requirements of NRS 159 are in stark contrast to the extensive training 
and experience of PARKS. Given the number of cases In which PARKS had been a guardian, her background, training, 
and experience, and the guidance of legal counsel in many of her cases, it is clear that PARKS failure to comply with 
the requirements of NRS 159 was a conscious decision not to comply, rather than a lack of knowledge and 
understanding of the rules. In addition, PARKS was aware that the court lacked the resources to effectively monitor 
her compliance and, based on the number of cases in which she was significantly out of compliance yet the court 
failed to send her notice or demand she bring the cases back into compliance, PARKS knew that she could deny the 
court basic information about her ward's finances, keep assets outside of blocked accounts and utilize funds without 

effective court oversight. 
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► Double-billing of wards through double-billing ward visits at facilities. 

On February 22, 2016, Investigator O'Malley from the Nevada Attorney General's Office and I met with Heidi 
Kramer {KRAMER) at her home in Reno, NV at two separate times. These meetings with KRAMER were covertly 
recorded (Exhibit 27). KRAMER was again interviewed on October 13, 2016. This interview was also recorded {Exhibit 
27). KRAMER was an employee of PARKS and APPG from approximately March 2013 until the last few months of 2015. 
As an employee of APPG, one of KRAMER'S primary job functions was to perform ward visits to all of PARKS wards. 

During the course of these interviews KRAMER stated, in pertinent part: 

When she was hired as a case manager for APPG, PARKS and her assistant, Mark Simmons (SIMMONS) gave her 
a target number of hours she was supposed to bill each month. PARKS and SIMMONS told her that she needed 
to bill $16,500.00 per month, which equated to three times her annual salary, or $198,000.00 per year. KRAMER 
was instructed by both PARKS and SIMMONS, that she was to perform at least two visits to each ward every 
month. KRAMER further stated that the number of visits was not related in any way to the specific needs of 
each wards; instead she was told to visit each ward at least two times per month regardless of their individual 
living arrangements or individual needs. In some cases, PARKS told her to perform even more than two visits 
per month, again, without these instructions having any connection to the needs of the individual ward. 

KRAMER described that she would go to each facility in which wards were living and check on each ward. She 
would ask if they needed anything and sometimes chat with them for a while. She would sometimes speak to 
staff and review the ward file. KRAMER stated that the time she spent at each facility varied, depending on 
many factors, such as how many wards were there and if anything needing attention came up. 

KRAMER stated PARKS utilized a web-based case management system that KRAMER could access online from 
any location using her log-in name and password. KRAMER "charted" her hours in note books and eventually 
entered these hours into the case management system. KRAMER described that she would go into the 
electronic record for each ward and enter her activity, the date of the activity, case notes if needed, and the 
time the activity took. The system had a specific hourly bill rate assigned to her activities and it would 
automatically calculate the cost to the ward based on the bill rate and the amount of time taken. 

KRAMER stated that she was instructed by both PARKS and SIMMONS that she was to document within the case 
management system the full amount of time an activity took in the file of each ward who received some benefit 
of that activity. This meant that if she took one hour to travel to a facility and visit with four separate wards, she 
would document the full hour for each ward; essentially logging the same hour of work four times. This 
included travel time. If it took 20 minutes to travel to a facility, the travel time was documented for each of the 
wards at the facility, effectively ensuring that the same travel was paid for multiple times by multiple wards. 
KRAMER acknowledged that time she spent with one ward provided no specific benefit to any other ward, but 
she would document her time at the facility to all wards regardless of who she was dealing with at that time. 
KRAMER stated that this is how she was instructed by both PARKS and SIMMONS to document her activity. 

KRAMER stated that there was no way she could meet the target hours set for her by PARKS without this 
method of billing. KRAMER stated that sometime after she had been working for APPG she was told by 
SIMMONS that she was documenting her travel time incorrectly. KRAMER stated that up to that point she was 
documenting travel to and from a ward visit. SIMMONS told her she could only document one way travel. 
KRAMER told parks that she couldn't reach her targets that way and PARKS told her to just round up the one 
way travel to make up the difference, essentially documenting the same amount of time, just identifying it only 
as one way travel. When she started doing this, SIMMONS continued checking her billing and did not mention 

that her one way travel was rounded up and essentially doubled. 

KRAMER described that most of her instruction came from PARKS; however it was generally believed that PARKS 
and SIMMONS were partners in the business and SIMMONS had signific:ant authority, providing direction to 
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staff, handling referrals on new wards, dealing with medical staff, financial information and preparing court 
documents, including reviewing activities of staff and preparing accountings. 

During these interviews KRAMER provided additional pertinent information regarding her duties at APPG and 
her billing instructions from PARKS and SIMMONS, Further details of KRAMER statement is included at relevant points in 

these reports. 

On January 22, 2016, Investigator O'Malley from the Nevada Attorney General's Office and I met with Angelica 
Sanchez (SANCHEZ) in Reno, NV. This meeting with SANCHEZ was covertly recorded {Exhibit 28). We again met with 
SANCHEZ on October 6, 2016, and recorded an additional statement with her {Exhibit 28). SANCHEZ was an employee of 
PARKS and APPG from 2011 until early 2013. After SANCHEZ left APPG, KRAMER was hired to replace her. As an 
employee of APPG, one of SANCHEZ'S primary job functions included performing ward visits to all of PARKS wards and 
shopping for them and some court and banking activity. SANCHEZ coordinated the care for PARKS wards. SANCHEZ 
corroborated the statement of KRAMER, stating, in pertinent part: 

SANCHEZ was also instructed to visit each ward at least two times per month, regardless of the specific needs 
and circumstances of the ward. SANCHEZ stated that when she was hired, PARKS did not have case 
management software and she would document her activities on either a spreadsheet or a word document and 
email it to SIMMONS. In 2011, PARKS purchased a case management software and SANCHEZ began to 
document her activities and time in this database. 

SANCHEZ also corroborated the statement of KRAMER, in that she was told by PARKS and SIMMONS that she 
was to document the full amount of time an activity took in the file of each ward within the case management 
system. This meant that if she was at a facility for one hour visiting four separate wards, she would document 

the full hour for each ward. 

SANCHEZ described that both PARKS and SIMMONS specifically instructed her on the way they wanted her 
hours to be documented, including that she was to bill the full amount of time an activity took to all wards who 
received some benefit of the activity, even if the entire amount of the time was not spent for the benefit of each 

ward. 

SANCHEZ stated that this method of documenting her time applied not just to ward visits, but to all activity that 
she did on behalf of wards, including ward visits, shopping, and court visits. In each case, the entire time an 
activity took would be billed to each ward that received some portion of the benefit of that activity. 

SANCHEZ further stated that when she first hired with APPG, both PARKS and SIMMONS went with her on ward 
visits to show her the ropes and both instructed how to bill those visits, including to document all of her activity 
to each ward and not to divide the time between them. 

SANCHEZ described that although PARKS was the owner of APPG and officially the guardian of each ward, the 
daily direction, instruction and advice was provided by SIMMONS, who SANCHEZ described as the "air-traffic 
controller" for the company. SIMMONS was both the office manager and supervisor for other staff and handled 
matters in the absence of PARKS. This included handling bill paying and banking, preparing court documents 

and compiling the annual accountings. 

SANCHEZ further described that SIMMONS was more ohen responsible for reviewing her time keeping entries 
and she dealt with him more frequently than PARKS regarding how to document the time that activities took 

Both KRAMER and SANCHEZ stated that they billed their time in the same way for all activities they performed 
where more than one ward benefitted from the activity. This included visiting wards, shopping for wards and attending 

court for wards. 
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On February 17, 2016, Investigator O'Malley and I contacted and interviewed Josephine Eugenio (EUGENIO), 
owner and administrator of Joyful Senior Care, Joyful Senior Care Haven II and Spencer luxury Care group homes 
(Exhibit 29), EUGENIO stated that over the preceding years she had provided care to a large number of seniors who 
were under the guardianship of PARKS. EUGEN JO corroborated the information provided by KRAMER and SANCHEZ with 
regard to the duration of the ward visits performed for the wards in her facilities. EUGENIO stated that the visits by 
KRAMER and SANCHEZ would take " ... not even an hour''. This would include talking to all residents at the facility, if they 
were able to communicate, checking the resident files and speaking to EUGENIO or her staff if necessary. EUGENIO 
confirmed that on no occasion did KRAMER or SANCHEZ spend several hours at one of her facilities visiting with the 

residents. 

On October 27, 2015, Investigator O'Malley interviewed Julie Leibo .(LEIBO), Administrator of Lakeview Terrace 
Assisted Living Facility (Exhibit 30). LEIBO stated, in pertinent part that KRAMER would visit the wards sometimes up to 
two times per month, though she also missed months. The visits lasted for just a few minutes and usually consisted of 
dropping off supplies and speaking briefly with staff. LEIBO stated that to her knowledge, the visits never lasted for 
more than a few minutes and she was not aware of any occasions when KRAMER spent 15 or more minutes with each 
ward. This description of the time taken by KRAMER for her ward visits is consistent with the statement of KRAMER. 

On October 27, 2015, Investigator O'Malley interviewed Monica Nunez (NUNEZ), lead medical technician at 
Lakeview Terrace (Exhibit 30). NUNEZ knew that PARKS was a professional guardian for a number of residents at the 
facility. NUNEZ stated that she rarely saw PARKS visit, but one of her staff members, KRAMER, would visit the wards. 
These visits usually lasted just a few minutes and consisted of "a brief conversation and moving on". This description of 
the time taken by KRAMER for her ward visits is consistent with the statement of KRAMER. 

Research of PARKS guardianship cases conducted through the Clark County court record system identified 
several hundred wards over whom PARKS had guardianship between 2007 and 2015. I reviewed the documents 
available through the Clark County District Court records system and identified the dates PARKS was appointed as 
guardian over each ward, along with each wards date of birth. 

Reviews of records and information obtained from various sources identified that PARKS placed a number of her 
wards at several group care and assisted living facilities in the Las Vegas valley. Grand Jury subpoenas were issued to 
the owners/administrators of these facilities and patient/resident files for all of PARKS wards who lived at any of these 
facilities were obtained. Based on a review of these records, I identified the following wards as resident at these 

facilities between the dates shown: 

Joyful Senior Care 
5408 Topaz Street 

Las Vegas, NV 89120 

ward DOB A1rnointment Date Facilit;i Admit Date DLC Date 

James Paya 06/25/1948 07/14/2011 02/01/2013 Current (Exhibit 31) 

Ruth Braslow 07/10/1925 01/29/2013 02/21/2013 Current {Exhibit 32) 

Carolyn Rickenbaugh 12/28/1942 08/21/2014 11/03/2014 Current {Exhibit 33) 

William Brady 08/16/1928 09/17/2010 11/01/2011 Current {Exhibit 34) 

Delmond Foster 08/11/1930 09/17/2012 09/28/2012 04/19/2014 (Exhibit 35) 

Joyful Senior Care Haven II 
4353JodiAve 

Las Vegas, NV 89120 

ward DOB AQQ0lntment Date Fadlit;i Admit Date DLC Date 

Cecelia Cass 07/08/1934 12/05/2013 01/09/2014 Current (Exhibit 36) 
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Roy Cass 10/15/1924 12/05/2013 01/09/2014 03/15/2014 (Exhibit 37) 

Kenneth Edwards 12/04/1944 01/16/2013 09/04/2014 Current (Exhibit 38) 

Janice Mitchell 12/08/1937 01/27/2011 02/01/2013 Current {Exhibit 39) 

Gloria Schneringer 08/18/1931 03/30/2011 07/01/2013 Current (Exhibit 40) 

Patricia Smoak 01/29/1931 08/25/2010 02/14/2011 Current (Exhibit 41) 

Marilyn Scholl 12/15/1934 08/01/2013 08/05/2013 10/08/2015 (Exhibit 42) 

Mary Vitek 01/21/1932 04/19/2012 11/06/2013 07/19/2014 (Exhibit 43) 

Spencer Luxury Care 

1951 Papago Lane 
Las Vegas, NV 89169 

ward DOB A1mointment Date Facilitt Admit Date DLCDate 

Juanita Graham 06/09/1929 09/05/2013 11/01/2013 Current (Exhibit 44) 

Clyde Bowman 11/08/1921 08/22/2006 03/31/2013 01/30/2015 (Exhibit 45) 

Roy Franklin 06/27/1925 07/05/2012 07/31/2012 05/26/2015 (Exhibit 46) 

Yoshiko Kindaichi 01/03/1935 11/07/2013 05/24/2014 04/16/2015 {Exhibit 4 7) 

Martha Ornelas 01/30/1948 09/26/2013 09/26/2013 05/25/2015 (Exhibit 48) 

Walter Wright 10/30/1934 04/19/2012 05/31/2013 08/10/2015 (Exhibit 49) 

Robert Smith 01/10/1929 03/27/2013 04/22/2014 10/08/2014 (Exhibit 50) 

Larry Coble 12/19/1946 09/17/2010 09/15/2010 01/09/2014 (Exhibit 51) 

Linda Fisher 07/16/1937 12/04/2013 12/09/2014 04/08/2015 (Exhibit 52) 

Edward Atherton 07/16/1935 05/08/2014 02/18/2015 Current (Exhibit 53) 

Charles Maddera 07/18/1935 12/18/2012 02/18/2015 Current (Exhibit 54) 

Rex Lyons 03/28/1925 06/19/2014 04/27/2015 Current (Exhibit 55) 

Dolores Smith 11/30/1932 11/12/2013 04/29/2015 Current (Exhibit 56) 

Lakeview Terrace Assisted Living 
180 Ville Drive 

Boulder City, NV 89005 

ward DOB Ai;mointment Date Facility Admit Date DLC Date 

Marlene Homer 06/06/1939 06/20/2012 07/07/2012 03/03/2015 (Exhibit 57) 

Marie Long 08/17/1919 06/19/2012 07/07/2012 03/03/2015 (Exhibit 58) 

Rudy North 07/29/1936 08/28/2013 08/30/2013 12/31/2014 (Exhibit 59) 

Rennie North 12/03/1938 08/28/2013 08/30/2013 12/31/2014 (Exhibit 60) 

Frank Papapietro 06/14/1939 04/25/2013 05/29/2012 01/28/2014 (Exhibit 61) 

Harold Lockwood 10/07/1927 04/18/2012 05/30/2013 04/16/2015 (Exhibit 62) 

Norbert Wilkening 01/09/1932 03/19/2013 04/03/2013 12/07/2015 (Exhibit 63) 

Adolfo Gonzalez 03/09/1941 02/11/2013 04/30/2013 07/18/2014 (Exhibit 64) 

Dolores Smith 11/30/1932 11/12/2013 11/15/2012 04/29/2015 (Exhibit 65) 

Linda Phi Iii ps 04/12/1963 09/17/2008 03/04/2014 03/24/2015 (Exhibit 66) 

Barbara Neely 10/20/1958 09/16/2014 09/24/2014 03/18/2015 (Exhibit 67) 

• Resident files for Joyful Senior Care, Joyful Senior Care Haven II and Spencer Luxury Care were all provided by the 
owner of these facilities, Josephine Eugenio (EUGENIO) (Exhibits 32 - 56). 

• Resident files for Lakeview Terrace were provided by the facility administrator, Julie Leibo (LEIBO) (Exhibits 57 - 67) . 
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During the course of this investigation, investigators located a contract between A Private Professional 
Guardian, LLC and SEM Applications, Inc. (Exhibit 68). This contract showed that SEM Applications, Inc. provided PARKS 
with web-based case management software through which she was able to manage her ward's affairs and document 
her activities and billing for each ward. On October 131 2015, a Grand Jury subpoena was issued to SEM Applications, 

Inc. to obtain documents contained in the system pertaining to PARKS and her management of her clients. 

On October 27, 2015, Stanley Meng (MENG), owner of SEM Applications, Inc. provided documents responsive to 
this subpoena. Among the documents produced by MENG were two spreadsheets containing the data extracted from 
this case management system. The first, titled "Time and Expense" contained the daily activities documented by PARKS 
and her staff showing what service was provided for each ward. The second spreadsheet, titled "Case Notes" contained 

the case notes that PARKS and her staff made for each ward. 

A comparison of the information entered into the Time and Expense and Case Notes component of this case 
management system against the accounting reports submitted by PARKS to the court revealed that the Invoices 
submitted by PARKS as exhibits to her petitions were prepared using the information in the Time and Expense data. A 
review of the EMS Online Manual revealed the instructions for how PARKS would create her Invoices by selecting certain 
items from within the system to create the invoice the way she wanted it to appear. For this reason, the data contained 
in this spreadsheets provided by MENG has been used throughout this investigation to identify the activities performed 
by PARKS and her staff. Where this has revealed information relevant to this investigation, the data was compared to 
the actual documents filed by PARKS in each case to verify the accuracy of the information in the spreadsheets and 

confirm that the same information was submitted to the court. 

A review of the data contained in this case management system identified multiple dates on which either 
SANCHEZ or KRAMER conducted visits to a care facility and documented visiting some or all of the wards who were 
resident at the facility on that particular date; documenting approximately the same amount of time for each ward. This 
was consistent with the explanation given by KRAMER and SANCHEZ of how they were told to document their time

5
• 

• JOYFUL SENIOR CARE 

I identified 56 days between 03/20/2013 and 10/19/2015 on which KRAMER documented visiting Joyful Senior 
Care and conducting ward visits with more than one ward on each day (Exhibit 69). In total, KRAMER documented 
210.60 hours spent on these visits, including many days in which she documented visiting four wards for an hour or 
more each. Based on the statement of KRAMER, the entire visit to the facility on these days actually took only one hour, 
but was billed to each ward as if the entire time was spent for that individual wards benefit; when in fact, only a 

percentage of the time was used for the benefit of each ward. 

· A review of the invoices and accountings submitted to the court by PARKS in relation to the four wards placed at 
this facility revealed that PARKS invoiced each ward for the entire visit performed by KRAMER; informing the court that 
she was entitled to receive fees from each ward for spending the entire time for the benefit each individual ward 

{Exhibit 70 • 73). 

When PARKS submitted each for these accountings to the court, she did so with a notarized declaration stating 
that the contents of each accounting were true. Nowhere on any of the accountings did PARKS advise the court that the 
time she documented as being spent on each ward was actually spent on multiple wards, with each ward receiving 

benefit of only a portion of the hour. 

According to the accountings filed by PARKS for each of the four wards placed at Joyful Senior Care, PARKS, who 
had complete control over the wards finances, paid herself the full amount of the fees that she documented as earned 

through these ward visits. 

5 PARKS describes the SEMS case management system she uses on page 39 of a deposition she gave in the guardianship case of 
Norbert Wilkening (G-13-038438-A) on 09/0412015 (Exhibit 160) 
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From a review of the documents seized during the service of the search warrant at PARKS office, I identified a 
series of checks payable to APPG from each of the guardianship bank accounts belonging to each of these four wards 
(Exhibit 74 - 77). Each check was stapled to an Invoice showing the acttvity performed by PARKS and her staff during the 
month immediately preceding the payment. The amount and date of each check matched the attached Invoices, 
revealing that these were the payments PARKS made to herself, from each ward's funds, for the activities reflected in 
the Invoices. These payments and accompanying Invoices revealed that PARKS received the funds from each ward for 

the double-billed ward visits identified from this an·alysis
6

. 

These payments for fees were taken on an ongoing, usually monthly, basis. The petitions to the court 
requesting confirmation of PARKS' fees were generally filed annually or sometimes less frequently. According to NRS 
159, the payment of guardian fees prior to the filing of an accounting is permissible; the guardian is required to notify 

the court of the fees paid and request confirmation of those fees. 

Date Petition for Fees Filed 

James Poya 
• Accountings/Invoices filed with Court (12/18/2014, 07/30/2015 & 03/25/2016) (Exhibit 70) 

(Exhibit 75) • Checks and Monthly Invoices recovered from PARKS Files 

Ruth Braslow 
• Accountings and Invoices filed with Court (06/18/2014, 05/04/2015, 05/27/2015, 05/03/2016) (Exhibit 71) 

• Checks and Monthly Invoices recovered from PARKS Files (Exhibit 76) 

Carolyn Rickenbaugh 
• Accountings and Invoices filed with Court (03/15/2016) 
• Checks and Monthly Invoices recovered from PARKS Files 

William Brady 
• Accountings and Invoices filed with Court (08/04/2015 & 03/15/2016) 
• Checks and Monthly Invoices recovered from PARKS Files 

Delmond Foster 
• Accountings and Invoices filed with Court (10/02/2013 & 01/09/2015) 
• Checks and Monthly Invoices recovered from PARKS Files 

(Exhibit 72) 
{Exhibit 77) 

(Exhibit 73) 
(Exhibit 78) 

(Exhibit 74) 
(Exhibit 79) 

I identified the guardianship bank accounts opened by PARKS for each of the wards resident at Joyful Senior 
Care. In response to grand jury subpoenas, records for these accounts were provided, as follows: 

• James Poya Wells Fargo Bank Acct# 2606860019 Custodian of Records (Exhibit 80) 

• Ruth Braslow Wells Fargo Bank Acct# 2818253888 Custodian of Records {Exhibit 81) 

2266989835 Elester Franke 

• Carolyn Rickenbaugh Bank of America Acct# 501017912570 Custodian of Records (Exhibit 82) 

La Donia Jackson 

6 I was unable to locate an Invoice and payment for every month detailed in this analysis for each ward; however. the final accounting 
and bank records for each ward verified that PAR.KS received all of the funds for these double-billed activities. 
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Citibank 

Wells Fargo Bank 

Acct# 40039084880 

Acct# 8227959734 
1995120043 

Event#: 150819-2043 

Custodian of Records (Exhibit 83) 
Lulu E. Ponce 

Custodian of Records (Exhibit 84) 
Evonne Sepeda 

A review of these bank records confirmed that PARKS paid herself t he fees she claimed were earned from these 
ward visit activities, depositing checks drawn on each guardianship account into her business account held in the name 
of APPG. The bank records also identified the source of the funds taken by PARKS to be funds belonging to each ward 

My analysis of the billing for ward visits for the four wards who resided at Joyful Senior Care identified that, 
based on the statement of KRAMER, corroborated by SANCHEZ and EUGENIO, these wards were over billed for ward 
visits as follows (Exhibit 69): 

ward Date Range Number of Total Hours Total Cost Actual Hours Actual Amount Over 
for visits Visits Billed Billed Spent/ward Cost/ward Billed/ward 

James Poya 03/20/2013 54 S0.75 $6,090.00 14.3 $1,715.70 $4,374.30 
10/19/2015 

Ruth Braslow 03/20/2013 55 55.5 $6,660.00 15.05 $1,805.70 $4,854.30 
10/19/2015 

Carolyn 09/10/2014 21 18.08 $2,169.60 4.91 $589.50 $1,580.10 
Rickenbaugh 10/19/2015 
Delmond 03/20/2013 25 28 $3,360.00 7.28 $873.00 $2,487.007 

Foster 04/02/2014 
Wt:lllam Brady 03/20/2013 55 58.5 $7,020.00 15.05 $1,805.70 $S,214.308 

10/ 19/2015 
210.83 Hrs. Total Over-billed $18,510.00 

• JOYFUL SENIOR CARE HAVEN II 

I identified 56 days between 03/20/2013 and 08/26/2015 on which KRAMER documented visiting Joyful Senior 
Care Haven II and conducting ward visits with more than one ward on each day {Exhibit 85). In total, KRAMER 
documented 232.76 hours spent on these visits, including many days in which she documented visiting six wards for an 
hour or more each. Based on the statement of KRAMER, the entire visit to the facility on these days actually took only 
about one hour, but was billed to each ward as if the entire time was spent for that individual wards benefit; when in 
fact, only a percentage of the time was used for the benefit of each ward. 

A review of the invoices and accountings submitted to the court by PARKS in relation to the wards placed at this 
facility revealed that PARKS invoiced each ward for the entire visit performed by KRAMER; informing the court that she 
was entitled to receive fees from each ward for spending the entire time for the benefit each ward (Exhibit 86 - 92). 
When PARKS submitted each for these accountings to the court, she did so with a notarized declaration stating that the 
contents of each accounting were true. Nowhere on any of the accountings did PARKS advise the court that the time 
she documented as being spent on each ward was actually spent on multiple wards, with each ward receiving benefit of 
only a portion of the hour. 

7 The actual figure included as a loss for Foster through this scheme is lower as several dates are included in the calculation of loss in 
the unnecessary services scheme 
8 8 The actual figure included as a loss for Brady through this scheme is lower as several dates are included in the calculation of loss in 
the unnecessary services scheme 
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According to the accountings filed by PARKS for each of the wards placed at Joyful Senior Care Haven II, PARKS 
did not receive all of the fees she invoiced to all of the wards. In several cases, the wards had no funds available to pay 
PARKS fees and in several cases, PARKS received less than the full amount of the fees she invoiced. Notwithstanding 
that PARKS did not get fees from all of her wards, her staff still spent time with those wards from whom she was unable 
to collect and, as such, that time was not spent with those wards from whom PARKS took fees. For six of the wards 
identified in this analysis, PARKS received all or substantially most of her fees and as such, this part of the investigation 
has focused on the loss suffered by these six wards through this double-billing activity. 

From a review of the documents seized during the service of the search warrant at PARKS office, I identified a 
series of checks payable to APPG from each of the guardianship bank accounts belonging to each of these six wards 
(Exhibit 93 - 98). Each check was stapled to an Invoice showing the activity performed by PARKS and her staff during the 
month immediately preceding the payment. The amount and date of each check matched the attached Invoices, 
revealing that these were the payments PARKS made to herself, from each ward's funds, for the activities reflected in 
the Invoices. These payments and accompanying Invoices revealed that PARKS received the funds from each ward for 

the double-billed ward visits identified from this analysis9
• 

These payments for fees were taken on an ongoing, usually monthly, basis. The petitions to the court 
requesting confirmation of PARKS' fees were generally filed annually or sometimes less frequently. According to NRS 
159, the payment of guardian fees prior to the filing of an accounting is permissible; the guardian is required to notify 

the court of the fees paid and request confirmation of those fees. 

Patricia Smoak Date Petition for Fees Filed 

• Accountings and Invoices filed with Court {04/03/2014, 04/06/2015 & 03/08/2016) 

• Checks and Monthly Invoices recovered from PARKS File 

Marilyn Scholl 
• Accountings and Invoices filed with Court (11/14/2014 & 08/31/2015) 

• Checks and Monthly Invoices recovered from PARKS File 

Kenneth Edwards 
• Accountings and Invoices filed with Court (01/21/2015 & 03/15/2016) 

• Checks and Monthly Invoices recovered from PARKS Files 

Gloria Schneringer 
• Accountings and Invoices filed with Court (05/30/2014, 03/23/2015 & 05/13/2016) 

• Checks and Monthly Invoices recovered from PARKS File 

Janice Mitchell 
• Accountings and Invoices filed with Court (03/06/2015) 
• Checks and Monthly Invoices recovered from PARKS File 

Mary Vitek 
• Accountings and Invoices filed with Court (08/20/2014) 
• Checks and Monthly Invoices recovered from PARKS File 

Cecilia Cass 
• Accountings and Invoices filed with Court 

Roy Cass 

(12/18/2014) 

(Exhibit 86} 
{Exhibit 93) 

(Exhibit 87) 
(Exhibit 94) 

(Exhibit 88) 
(Exhibit 95) 

( Exhib.it 89) 

{Exhibit 96) 

(Exhibit 90) 
(Exhibit 97) 

(Exhibit 91) 
(Exhibit 98) 

(Exhibit 92) 

9 I was unable to locate an Invoice and payment for every month detailed in this analysis for each ward; however, the final accounting and bank 
records for each ward verified that PARKS received all of the funds for these double-billed activities. 
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• Accountings and Invoices filed with Court (06/03/2014) 

Event #: 150819-2043 __ ___:_..:....:..;:...:..::......::..;;;......;; __ _ 
(Exhibit 92) 

I identified the guardianship bank accounts opened by PARKS for several of the wards from whom PARKS took 
fees for these ward visits. In response to grand jury subpoenas, records for these accounts were provided, as follows: 

• Patricia Smoak 

• Marilyn Scholl 

• Kenneth Edwards 

• Gloria Schneringer 

• Janice Mitchell 

• Mary Vitek 

Wells Fargo Bank 

Wells Fargo Bank 

us Bank 

Wells Fargo Bank 

Bank of America 

Wells Fargo Bank 

Boulder Dam CU 

Acct# 6944416949 
Acct# 6300508667 

Acct# 2818605277 
Acct# 1678031004 
Acct# 153756512114 

Acct# 153756715766 

Acct# 3790232692 
Acct# 2790454926 

Acct# 501012745072 

Acct# 6300502884 
Acct# 9271864119 

Acct# 21932009 

Custodian of Records (Exhibit 99) 

Bonnie Chess 

Custodian of Records {Exhibit 100) 

Jesse Plumb 
Custodian of Records (Exhibit 100) 

Chandra Sunbury 

Custodian of Records (E~hibit 101) 

Evonne Sepeda 

Custodian of Records (Exhibit 102) 

Tara Dostal 

Custodian of Records (Exhibit 103) 

Evonne Sepeda 

Custodian of Records (Exhibit 104) 

Lynel Fenton 

A review of these bank records confirmed that PARKS paid herself the fees she claimed were earned from these 
ward visit activities, depositing checks drawn on each guardianship account into her business account held in the name 

of APPG. 

My analysis of the billing for ward visits for the wards who resided at Joyful Senior Care Haven II identified that, 
based on the statement of KRAMER, corroborated by SANCHEZ and EUGENIO, the wards listed below were over billed 

for ward visits as follows (Exhibit 85)10
: 

ward Date Range Number of Total Hours Total Cost Actual Hours Actual Amount Over 

for visits Visits Billed Billed Spent/ward Cost/ward Billed/ward 

Patricia Smoak 03/20/2013 51 54.75 $6,570.00 15.03 $1,804.08 $4,765.92 

08/26/2015 
Marilyn Scholl 09/04/2013 38 37.67 $4,520.40 6.11 $733.68 $3,786.72 

08/26/2015 
Kenneth 12/11/2014 15 13.75 $1,650.00 2.84 $341.28 $1,308.72 

Edwards 08/26/2015 

Gloria 07/16/2013 42 34 $4,080.00 10.41 $1,249.50 $2,830.50 

Schneringer 08/26/2015 
Janice Mitchell 03/20/2013 41 44.67 $5,360.40 11.22 $1,346.58 $4,013.82 

08/26/2015 
Mary Vitek 11/12/2013 15 15.25 $1,830.00 3.08 $369.90 $1,460.10 

07/02/2014 
202 Hrs. Total Over-bitted $18,165.78 

10 All of the ward5 at Joyful Senior Care Haven II were over billed through this method to some degree, however only those listed above are 

included based on the volume of over-billing. 
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• SPENCER LUXURY CARE 

I identified 50 days between 06/27/2013 and 09/10/2015 on which KRAM ER documented visiting Spencer 
Luxury Care and conducting ward visits with more than one ward on each day (Exhibit 105). In total, KRAMER 
documented 250,07 hours spent on these visits, including many days in which she documented visiting six wards for an 
hour or more each. Based on the statement of KRAMER, the entire visit to the facility on these days actually took only 
about one hour, but was billed to each ward as if the entire time was spent for that individual wards benefit; when in 
fact, only a percentage of the time was used for the benefit of each ward. 

A review of the invoices and accountings submitted to court by PARKS in relation to the wards placed at this 
facility revealed that PARKS invoiced each ward for the entire visit performed by KRAMER; informing the court that she 
was entitled to receive fees from each ward for spending the entire time for the benefit each ward (Exhibit 106 -117 & 

137 & 148). 

When PARKS submitted each for these accountings to the court, she did so with a notarized declaration stating 
that the contents of each accounting were true. Nowhere on any of the accountings did PARKS advise the court that the 
time she documented as being spent on each ward was actually spent on multiple wards, with each ward receiving 

benefit of only a portion of the hour. 

According to the accountings filed by PARKS for each of the wards placed at Spencer Luxury Care, PARKS did not 
receive all of the fees she invoiced to all of the wards. In several cases, the wards had no funds available to pay PARKS' 
fees and in other cases, PARKS received less than the full amount of the fees she invoiced. Notwithstanding that PARKS 
did not get fees from all of her wards, her staff still spent time with those wards from whom she was unable to collect 
and, as such, that time was not spent with those wards from whom PARKS took fees. For five of the wards identified in 
this analysis, PARKS received all or substantially most of her fees and as such, this part of the investigation has focused 
on the loss suffered by these five wards through this double-billing activity. 

From a review of the documents seized during the service of the search warrant at PARKS office, I identified a 
series of checks payable to APPG from each of the guardianship bank accounts belonging to each of these five wards 
(Exhibit 118 - 122). Each check was stapled to an Invoice showing the activity performed by PARKS and her staff during 
the month immediately preceding the payment. The amount and date of each check matched the attached Invoices, 
revealing that these were the payments PARKS made to herself, from each ward's funds, for the activities reflected in 
the Invoices. These payments and accompanying Invoices revealed that PARKS received the funds from each ward for 
the double-billed ward visits identified from this analysis11

• 

These payments for fees were taken on an ongoing, usually monthly, basis. The petitions to the court 
requesting confirmation of PARKS' fees were generally filed annually or sometimes less frequently. According to NRS 
159, the payment of guardian fees prior to the filing of an accounting is permissible; the guardian is required to notify 
the court of the fees paid and request confirmation of those fees. 

Clyde Bowman Date Petition for Fees Filed 

• Accountings and Invoices filed with Court (05/08/2015) 
• Checks and Monthly Invoices recovered from PARKS Files 

Roy Franklin 
• Accountings and Invoices filed with Court (07/22/2013, 08/20/2014 & 06/23/2015) 

• Checks and Monthly Invoices recovered from PARKS Files 

(Exhibit 106) 
(Exhibit 118) 

(Exhibit 107} 

!Exhibit 119) 

11 I was unable to locate an Invoice and payment for every month detailed in this analysis for each ward; however, the final accounting and bank 

records for each ward verified that PARKS received all of the fund5 for these double-billed activities. 
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Juanita Graham 
• Accountings and Invoices filed with Court (03/03/2015 & 11/11/2015) 
• Checks and Monthly Invoices recovered from PARKS Files 

Yoshiko Kindaichi 
• AccQuntings and Invoices filed with Court (11/22/2015) 
• Checks and Monthly Invoices recovered from PARKS Files 

Walter Wright 

(Exhibit 108) 
(Exhibit 120) 

(Exhibit 109) 
(Exhibit 121) 

• Accountings and Invoices filed with Court (08/21/2014, 06/23/2015 & 08/27/2015) (Exhibit 110) 
(Exhibit 122) • Checks and Monthly Invoices recovered from PARKS Files 

Dolores Smith 
• Accountings and Invoices filed with Court (06/19/2015 & 03/25/2016) 
• Checks and Monthly Invoices recovered from PARKS Files 

Martha Ornelas 
• Accountings and Invoices filed with Court 

Robert Smith 
• Accountings and Invoices filed with Court 

Larry Coble 
• Accountings and Invoices filed with Court 

Linda Fisher 
• Accountings and Invoices filed with Court 

Edward Atherton 
• Accountings and Invoices filed with Court 

Charles Maddera 
• Accountings and Invoices filed with Court 

Rex Lyons 
• Accountings and Invoices filed with Court 

(03/03/2015 & 07/07/2015) 

(03/31/2015 & 03/25/2016) 

(05/28/2014) 

(03/15/2016) 

(07/24/2015 & 02/20/2016) 

{05/13/2016) 

(07/07/2015 & 03/15/2016) 

{Exhibit 136) 
(Exhibit 147) 

(Exhibit 111) 

(Exhibit 112) 

(Exhibit 113) 

(Exhibit 114) 

(Exhibit 115) 

(Exhibit 116) 

(Exhibit 117) 

1 identified the guardianship bank accounts opened by PARKS for several of the wards from whom PARKS took 
fees for these ward visits. In response to grand jury subpoenas, records for these accounts were provided, as follows: 

• Clyde Bowman Bank of America 

• Roy Franklin Bank of America 

Wells Fargo Bank 

Nevada State Bank 

• Juanita Graham US Bank 

Acct# 501000221553 

Acct# 1678031004 

Acct# 1267130118 
Acct# 5614651304 

Acct# 910003870 

Acc:t # 153755862429 

Custodian of Records (Exhibit 123) 

Lytiasha Jones 

Custodian of Records (Exhibit 124) 

Custodian of Records {Exhibit 124) 

Holly Teasley 

Custodian of Records (Exhibit 124) 

Tevin Caddle 

Custodian of Records (Exhibit 125) 

Barbette Berg 
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Wells Fargo Bank 

Wells Fargo Bank 

Acct n 6218244462 
Acct # 7559448449 

Acct# 2606861645 
Acct # 7041566279 

Event #: 150819-2043 __ ___;c...:....:...:....:..::.....::.::....:..:;__ __ 

Custodian of Records (Exhibit 126) 

Clarissa Mejia 

Custodian of Records (Exhibit 127) 

Colleen Lenahan 

A review of the bank records confirmed that PARKS took the fees she claimed were earned from these ward visit 
activities, depositing checks drawn on each guardianship account into her business account held in the name of APPG. 

My analysis of the billing for ward visits for the wards who resided at Spencer Luxury Care identified that, based 
on the statement of KRAMER, corroborated by SANCHEZ and EUGENIO, these wards were over billed for ward visits as 

follows (Exhibit 105)12
: 

ward Date Range # of Visits Total Hours Total Cost Actual Hours Actual Cost Over Billed 
Billed Billed Spent Amount 

Clyde Bowman 06/27/2013 33 35.5 $4,260.00 6.73 $812.76 $3,447.24 

01/27/2015 
Roy Franklin 06/27/2013 35 38 $4,560.00 7.18 $861.96 $3,698.04 

05/04/2015 
Juanita Graham 11/19/2013 38 35.58 $4,269.60 7.15 $858.72 $3,410.88 

09/10/2015 
Yoshiko 06/11/2014 18 18 $2,160.00 3.38 $405.72 $1,754.28 

Kindaichi 04/08/2015 
Walter Wright 06/27/2013 36 37.58 $4,509.60 7.08 $850.32 $3,659.28 

05/11/2015 
Dolores Smith 05/11/2015 4 2.75 $330.00 0.55 $66.00 $264.00 

07/07/2015 
164.66 Total Over•billed $15,969.72 

• Lakeview Terrace Assisted Living Facility 

I identified 51 days between 07/07/2012 and 03/03/2015 on which KRAMER documented visiting Lakeview 
Terrace Assisted Living Facility and conducting ward visits with more than one ward on each day (Exhibit 128). In total, 
KRAMER documented 232.76 hours spent on these visits, including many days in which she documented visiting six 
wards for an hour or more each. Based on the statement of KRAMER, the entire visit to the facility on these days 
actually took only about one hour, but was billed to each ward as if the entire time was spent for that individual wards 
benefit; when in fact, only a percentage of the time was used for the benefit of each ward. 

A review of the invoices and accountings submitted to the court by PARKS in relation to the wards placed at this 
facility revealed that PARKS invoiced each ward for the entire visit performed by KRAMER; informing the court that she 
was entitled to receive fees from each ward for spending the entire time for the benefit each ward (Exhibit 129 -139). 

When PARKS submitted each for these accountings to the court, she did so with a notarized declaration stating 
that the contents of each accounting were true. Nowhere on any of the accountings did PARKS advise the court that the 
time she documented as being spent on each ward was actually spent on multiple wards, with each ward receiving 
benefit of only a portion of the hour. 

12 All of the wards at Spencer Luxury Care were over billed through this method to some degree, however only those listed above are included 
based on the volume of over-billing. 
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According to the accountings filed by PARKS for each of the wards placed at Lakeview Terrace Assisted Living 
Facility, PARKS did not receive all of the fees she invoiced to all of the wards. In one case, the ward had limited funds 
available to pay PARKS fees and PARKS received less than the full amount of the fees she invoiced. Notwithstanding that 
PARKS did not get fees from all of her wards, her staff still spent time with those wards from whom she was unable to 
collect and, as such, that time was not spent with those wards from whom PARKS took fees. For nine of the wards 
identified in this analysis, PARKS received all or substantially most of her fees and as such, this part of the investigation 
has focused on the loss suffered by these nine wards through this double-billing activity. 

From a review of the documents seized during the service of the search warrant at PARKS office, I identified a 
series of checks payable to APPG from each of the gu<1rdianship bank accounts belonging to each of these five wards 
(Exhibit 141-150). Each check was stapled to an Invoice showing the activity performed by PARKS and her staff during 
the month immediately preceding the payment. The amount and date of each check matched the attached Invoices, 
revealing that these were the payments PARKS made to herself, from each ward's funds, for the activities reflected in 
the Invoices. These payments and accompanying Invoices revealed that PARKS received the funds from each ward for 

the double-bllled ward visits identified from this analysis13
• 

These payments for fees were taken on an ongoing, usually monthly, basis, The petitions to the court 
requesting confirmation of PARKS' tees were generally filed annually or sometimes less frequently. According to NRS 
159, the payment of guardian fees prior to the filing of an accounting is permissible; the guardian is required to notify 
the court of the fees paid and request confirmation of those fees. 

Marlene Homer Date Petition for Fees Filed 

• Accountings and Invoices filed with Court (08/13/2014 & 02/20/2016) 
• Checks and Monthly Invoices recovered from PARKS Files 

Marie Long 
• Accountings and Invoices filed with Court (01/09/2015 & 09/29/2015) 

• Checks and Monthly Invoices recovered from PARKS Files 

Rudy North 
• Accountings and Invoices filed with Court (04/10/2015, 05/08/2015 & 02/26/2016) 
• Checks and Monthly Invoices recovered from PARKS Files 

Rennie North 
• Accountings and Invoices filed with Court (04/10/2015, 05/08/2015 & 02/26/2016) 
• Checks and Monthly Invoices recovered from PARKS Files 

Harold Lockwood 
• Accountings and Invoices filed with Court (08/20/2015) 
• Checks and Monthly Invoices recovered from PARKS Files 

Norbert Wilkening 
• Accountings and Invoices filed with Court (12/02/2014) 
• Checks and Monthly Invoices recovered from PARKS Files 

Adolfo Gonzalez 
• Accountings and Invoices filed with Court (10/30/2013) 
• Checks and Monthly Invoices recovered from PARKS Files 

(Exhibit 129) 
(Exhibit 140) 

(Exhibit 130} 
(Exhibit 141) 

(Exhibit 131) 
(Exhibit 142} 

{Exhibit 132) 
{Exhibit 143) 

(Exhibit 133) 

(Exhibit 144) 

(Exhibit 134) 
(Exhibit 145) 

(Exhibit 135) 
(Exhibit 146) 

13 I was unable to locate an Invoice and payment for every month detailed in this analysis for each ward; however, the final accounting and bank 
records for each ward verified that PARKS received all of the funds for these double-billed activities. 
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Dolores Smith 
• Accountings and Invoices filed with Court {06/19/2015 & 03/25/2016) 
• Checks and Monthly Invoices recovered from PARKS Files 

Linda Phillips 
• Accountings and Invoices filed with Court (07/31/2015 & 11/14/2014) 
• Checks and Monthly Invoices recovered from PARKS Files 

Frank Papaprietro 
• Accountings and Invoices filed with Court 

Barbara Neely 
• Accountings and Invoices filed with Court 

(07/14/2014 & 07/17/2015 

(01/30/2015) 

{Exhibit 136) 

(Exhibit 147) 

{Exhibit 137) 
(Exhibit 148) 

(Exhibit 138) 

(Exhibit 139) 

I identified the guardianship bank accounts opened by PARKS for the wards from whom PARKS took fees for 
these ward visits. In response to grand jury subpoenas, records for these accounts were provided, as follows: 

• Marlene Homer Wells Fargo Bank 

• Marie Long Wells Fargo Bank 

• Rudy North Bank of America 

• Rennie North Bank of America 

• Harold Lockwood Wells Fargo Bank 

• Norbert Wilkening Wells Fargo Bank 

• Adolfo Gonzalez Wells Fargo Bank 

• Dolores Smith US Bank 

• Linda Phillips us Bank 

Acct# 7041558821 
Acct# 7041562070 

Acct# 9271862899 
Acct# 2070076342 

Acct# 501015308128 

Acct# 501015308115 

Acct# 2070070392 
Acct# 2070073909 

Acct# 2267133664 
Acct# 8838719832 

Acct# 2818239682 
Acct# 2820596480 

Acct# 153755830962 

Acct# 153795329991 
Acct# 8053541077 

Custodian of Records (Exhibit 149) 

Clarissa Mejia 

Custodian of Records (Exhibit 150) 

Holly Teasley 

Custodian of Records {Exhibit 151} 

Caitlin Fox 

Custodian of Records (Exhibit 152) 

Caitlin Fox 

Custodian of Records (Exhibit 153) 

Tiffany Taylor 

Custodian of Records (Exhibit 154) 

Clarissa Mejia 

Custodian of Records (Exhibit 155) 

Colleen Lenahan 

Custodian of Records (Exhibit 156) 

Chandra Banbury 

Custodian of Records (Exhibit 157) 

Chandra Banbury 

A review of these bank records confirmed that PARKS paid herself the fees she claimed were earned from these 
ward visit activities, depositing checks drawn on each guardianship account into her business account held in the name 

of APPG. 
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My analysis of the billing for ward visits for the wards who resided at Lakeview Terrace identified that, based on 
the statement of KRAMER, corroborated by SANCHEZ and LEIBO, these wards were over billed for ward visits as follows 

(Exhibit 128)14
: 

ward 

Marlene Homer 

Marie Long 

Rudy North 

Rennie North 

Harold 
L()(kwood 
Norbert 
Wilkening 
Adolfo Gonzalez 

Dolores Smith 

Linda Phillips 

Date Range # of Visits 

07/07/2012 44 
02/10/2015 
07/07/2012 43 

02/10/2015 
09/05/2013 25 
12/01/2014 
09/30/2013 22 
11/05/2014 
07/07/2012 30 
03/03/2015 
04/19/2013 25 
12/01/2014 
05/13/2013 9 
10/02/2013 
11/13/2013 28 
03/03/2015 
04/02/2013 18 
02/10/2015 

Total Hours Total Cost Actual Hours Actual Cost 
Billed BIiied Spent 
52.25 $6,270.00 12.06 $1,447.20 

51.5 

17.03 

15.65 

36.41 

30.92 

14.08 

29.5 

18.75 

$,6, 180.00 12.11 

$2,043.60 4.665 

$1,878.00 4.3 

$4,369.20 6.62 

$3,710.40 5.19 

$1,68960 2.8 

$3,540.00 5.66 

$2,250.00 3.42 

$1,452.90 

$559.80 

$516.00 

$794.70 

$622.20 

$336.00 

$679.50 

$410.40 

Over Billed 
Amount 

$4,828.8015 

$4,727.1016 

$1,483.80 

$1,362.30 

$3,574.50 

$3,088.20 

$1,353.60 

$2,860.50 

$1,839.60 

266.09 Total Over-billed $24,370.80 

Additional evidence that tends to corroborate the statements of KRAMER and SANCHEZ, that they were 
systematically over-billing the wards for the full duration of any travel time and time spent at each facility, can be found 
in the overall volume of hours they each documented as their daily activity. A review of the entries made into PARKS 
case management system identified multiple days on which KRAMER or SANCHEZ reported hours worked that exceeded 
the number of hours in a day, or would suggest that they worked through the night, working as many as 47 hours in one 
day (Exhibit 158). This volume of hours is either impossible or unrealistic and as such, supports that the actual hours 
worked were a fraction of this time; with each ward being charged for the full amount of time an activity took, rather 
than dividing the tlme taken for an activity between the wards who benefitted from that activity. 

The volume of hours documented by KRAMER and SANCHEZ in the case management system also supports that 
PARKS and SIMMONS instructed their staff to over-bill their hours in this way. According to both KRAMER and SANCHEZ, 
PARKS and SIMMONS handled all of the court billing and finances of the wards. The excessive number of hours 
documented by KRAMER and SANCHEZ on many days would have been clearly visible to both PARKS and SIMMONS 
when they prepared the annual accounting for each ward. Additionally, KRAMER and SANCHEZ stated that it was 
common for either PARKS or SIMMONS to ask them about certain billing entries or to adjust entries for different 
reasons, further indicating that they were examining the entries made in this system. 

Further evidence that supports that this billing practice was a deliberately exploitative activity can be found in a 
disputed guardianship matter. On February 4, 2015, in response to an objection to the fees that PARKS was charging to 

14 All of the wards Lakeview Terrace Assisted Living Facility were over bllled throui:-h this method to some degree, however only those listed 
above are Included based on the volume of over-billing. 
15 The actual figure included as a loss for Homer through this scheme is lower as several dates are included in the calculation of loss in 
the unnecessary services scheme 
16 The actual figure included as a loss for Long through this scheme is lower as several dates are included in the calculation of loss in 
the unnecessary services scheme 
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Norbert Wilkening (Lakeview Terrace resident), PARKS filed, under penalty of perjury, a petition and supporting affidavit, 
through her attorney Aileen Cohen of Phillip Hack & Associates, in which she stated in pertinent part (Exhibit 159); 

"I make every effort to coordinate visits to the wards in my care in order to minimize trove/ costs to the wards' 

estates" 

While PARKS stated in this sworn affidavit that she coordinates ward visits to minimize costs, which is consistent 
with the statements of KRAMER and SANCHEZ that they visited multiple wards at the same time, PARKS does not 
address in this affidavit that she instructs her staff to then document the full travel time and the full time spent at the 
facility to each and every ward when those wards are a beneficiary of only a small portion of the time spent; nor does 
she address how this minimizes costs to the ward. 

On September 4, 2015, PARKS was deposed in this same matter by Laura Deeter Esq. of Ghandi Deeter Law 
Offices. Also present at this deposition was Amy Wilkening, daughter of Norbert Wilkening. The deposition was 
transcribed by Jackie Jennelle, Certified Court Reporter with Litigation Services (Exhibit 160). PARKS was asked if she 
went with KRAMER to visit Wilkening at the facility and she stated that she went "probably four or five" times (Page 54 
line 23). This answer tends to further support that PARKS was aware of the duration of the ward visits performed by her 
staff, that multiple wards were visited at each visit and, as such, that the full time for each visit did not benefit each 

ward. 

PARKS further stated in this deposition that she billed wards for the exact time an activity took (Page 15 line 12 -
18). This answer was clearly false, as the evidence supports that wards were billed for time not spent for their benefit, 
but rather for time spent tending to the needs and welfare of other residents at the same facilities: 

Q. And in what increments do they bill out? 
A. We bill out in -- let me think. 
Q. Is it a .l, a minimum? 
A. We just do it by the minute. So it's if ten minutes, it's ten minutes. If it's seven minutes, it's seven minutes. If 

it's 15 minutes, it's 15 minutes. 

This answer given under oath is also in direct conflict with the actual billing practices of PARKS, as evidenced 
across all of her wards. I reviewed 26,417 entries made in PARKS case management system to determine whether the 
entries appeared to support PARKS statement that she bills by the minute. Of the 26,417 time entries, 25,869 or 98.03% 
were documented in increments of 5 minutes. Only 1.97% of the time entries were in a time denomination other than 5 
minute increments. I also examined the entries to determine how many entries were for duration of less than 10 
minutes. Of the 26,417 entries I examined, only 409, or 1.55% were for less than 10 minutes duration. This data tends 
to support that PARKS and her staff rounded their time to the nearest 5 minute increment and did not bill by the 

minute. 

PARKS answer given under oath is also in direct conflict with a letter that was found in PARKS files. This letter, 
directed to an employee at Desert Springs Hospital and dated February 13, 2015, describes PARKS business model and 
the guardianship services she offers (Exhibit 10). On the fourth page of this letter, under the heading "APPG Rate", 

PARKS documents that she bills her fees in 10 minute increments. 

In addition, a number of the case notes completed by KRAMER and SANCHEZ regarding their ward visits further 
tend to support their statements and the statements of facility staff that APPG were documenting the entire time taken 
to travel to a facility and visit with all the residents as if the time was spent on each individual resident/ward. 

For example, the case notes made by KRAMER for the 06/11/2013 visit to Lakeview Terrace shows 60 minutes 
travel time for all six wards for a total of six hours spent travelling to the facility. On this same visit KRAMER 
documented spending between 15 and 30 minutes with the staff talking about six of the wards for a total time spent 
talking to staff of 1 hour and 50 minutes. This is in addition to another 2 hours and 45 minutes spent talking with five of 
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the six wards. According to the documentation, this single visit consumed 10 hours and 35 minutes; clearly contrary to 

the statements of staff and KRAMER herself. 

Likewise, the case notes for 6/25/2013, 07/01/2013, 7/18/2013 and 8/13/2013, also reflect 60 minutes travel 
time per ward. If these case notes were accurate reflections of the travel time alone, this would mean that KRAMER 
took six hours to travel to the same facility on 06/11/2013, five hours on 06/25/2013, seven hours on 07/01/2013, four 
hours on 07/18/2013, and four hours on 08/13/2013. The travel time varying between four and seven hours to get to 
Boulder City from Henderson is, on its face, unbelievable. The statement of KRAMER and SANCHEZ that they were told 
to document the entire time of a ward visit to all wards who benefitted from the facility is consistent with these case 

notes, in that the one hour of travel was clearly applied to each ward rather than divided between them. 

This same pattern of documenting the activity and time taken is visible throughout the case notes for all the 

twenty four wards documented above for whom the ward visits were over-billed. 

Additional evidence that PARKS knowingly over billed these wards in this way can be seen in the circumstances 
surrounding Rudy and Rennie North. In this case PARKS had been the guardian of both spouses since approximately 
September 2013. On April 10, 2015, PARKS filed her first accounting for each ward. These accountings contained 
multiple examples of billing each ward for the same activity, thereby doubling her bill rate at the expense of the ward 

(Exhibit 161 & 162). 

These accountings were filed at a time when the media was drawing attention to issues pertaining to the 
guardianship system and also coincided with the daughter of the North's, Julie Belshe (BELSHE) expressing concern 
about the activities of PARKS as guardian of her parents. On April 21, 2015, the Clark County Commission held a public 
meeting at which family members of wards expressed concern about the guardianship system and on the same day, 
several local newspapers ran stories highlighting failings in the system. 

On April 30, 2015, BELSH E filed an objection to PARKS accounting and petition for fees. This objection identified 
a number of PARKS failings in regard to her compliance with NRS 159 and some concerns as to her .management of the 

wards funds, but did not specifically address double-billing. 

On May 5, 2015, Darcy Spears of Channel 13 News aired a televised news segment about guardianship during 
which Spears showed a copy of the invoices PARKS had filed with the court as exhibits to her petition for her fees 
(Exhibit 163). While on camera, Spears confronted PARKS about several issues on these invoices, including an expense 
of $108.00 for delivering pants to Rennie North and double-charging the North's $780.00 each for court activity on 

10/03/2013: 

Spears: "Contact 13 also uncovered double-dipping. Rudy and Rennie were charged $780.00 each for court 
filings and travel time to court on the same days in 2013. That's over $1,500.00 for this couple ... " 

PARKS: ''You're absolutely right, you're absolutely right ... " 
Spears: "Who you're saying doesn't have enough money." 
PARKS: "We will happily reverse those out, those charges out" 
Spears: "How about $108.00 Parks charged Rennie to buy her a pair of stretch pants? Does $108.00 for stretch 

pants seem reasonable?" 
PARKS: "No it doesn't and I'm happy to reverse that." 

On May 8, 2015, three days after this article aired, PARKS filed amended petitions and accountings for both 
Rennie and Rudy North on which she had reduced, removed or amended not just those charges, but a number of entries 
that applied to both Rennie and Rudy (Exhibit 164 & 165). In each of these entries, PARKS reduced the time taken for 
the activity, essentially acknowledging that she had been charging both wards for the full amount of time an activity 
took instead of dividing the time between them. This was consistent with the statements of KRAMER and SANCHEZ that 

this was how they were instructed to document their hours. 
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A comparison of the guardian activity documented by PARKS and submitted to the court in her April 10, 2015, 
petitions for fees for Rennie and Rudy North against the amended petitions for fees PARKS submitted to the court on 
May 8, 2015, revealed that PARKS had over charged these two wards by $1,964.2017 for Rennie and $1,729.20 for Rudy. 
The activities for which she over-charged them included the court dates mentioned by Spears in her interview with 
PARKS along with ward visits where both spouses were charged for full travel time (Exhibit 166). 

According to the accountings submitted to the court by PARKS, she took only the fees claimed under the 
amended accounting, so this excessive billing has not been included as part of the funds exploited from her wards; 
however, when PARKS filed the first two accountings and supporting invoices, she did so knowing that the claims she 
made in these documents regarding the duration of her activity and the fees she was owed were false. 

It is also notable that Rennie and Rudy North were both residents at Lakeview Terrace along with other wards. 
reviewed the billing for all Lakeview Terrace wards visited on the dates that PARKS changed her billing for Rudy and 
Rennie North and noted that PARKS had initially billed the same amount of travel time to all wards. When PARKS halved 
the travel time for the North's, she still failed to address that she had made multiple other wards pay the full amount for 
the same travel. This further supports that PARKS only acknowledged to the court that she over-billed the North's when 
caught out by a third party, but continued to over-bill other wards when no one was questioning her billing pattern. 

Further evidence that PARKS knowingly over-billed her wards by instructed her staff to document all the time an 
activity took to each and every ward who received some benefit of the activity was obtained on September 19, 2015, 
when officers served a search warrant on PARKS home and office. At the time of the service of the warrant, PARKS was 
present at her home and initially agreed to be interviewed. This interview was recorded and transcribed (Exhibit 167). 

During this interview I asked PARKS (Page 7 - 8): 

HENDRIX: 

PARKS: 
HENDRIX: 
PARKS: 

HENDRIX: 
PARKS: 

HENDRIX: 
PARKS: 
HENDRIX: 
PARKS: 
HENDRIX: 
PARKS: 
HENDRIX: 
PARKS: 
HENDRIX: 
PARKS: 

HENDRIX: 
PARKS: 

HENDRIX: 

Right. Um ... when you, for example when like if there's a husband and a wife do you ever, in 
the same room together ... 
Um ... hm. 
... do you go to visit. How do you bill that? 
That should be, well, there were some issues with that and we redacted that or not redacted 
them

1 
sorry we ... we made those corrections. 

Okay. 
We made those corrections. I had a fairly new staff member who was doing it and we 
corrected it. 
Who was that? 
Heidi Kramer. 
Heidi. Now is it ... whose the one that does the, you know, the invoices that you submit ... 
Um ... hm. 
... to the courts, whose the one that completes those? 
Mark. 
Mark Simmons does that? 
Yeah. 
Okay. 
Mark's no longer, well he's with us, but he's not. He had some personal family Issues and he 
went back to uh .. .lndlana. 
Oh, okay. So he ... does he do all of those then? What's the procedure for like when you ... 
When, okay, so when you come in like, okay, we go see a client and then we enter it into a 

system. 
Right. 

17 The amended accounting included two entries on which Parks increased the billing by a total of $60.00 which I offset against the 
reductions 
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Okay. And so then the system, so if I see a client or Mark sees a client or Heidi sees a client, ft 
all gets entered in. 
Right. 
Okay. So you enter it in individually. 
So whoever goes to see them is the one that enters it in? 

Yeah. 
Okay. 
Yeah. 
Does the system ... does everyone have their own unique log in? 

Yeah. 
So the system identifies whose doing which entry? 
Um ... hm. 
Okay. Right. So one of your employees would go see them and then like, let's say, like it's a 
husband and a wife together, how ... how, what's the procedure for billing like if you go to visit, 
it's like say it's one visit but it's two people ... 
Um ... hm. 
... how's .. '.how does that work out? How Is that charged? 
Each people, each person is billed individually. 
Okay. 
Yeah. I mean it's two separate cases. It's not one case. 
So if the employee goes to visit two people and spends an hour there, are each of them bl/led 
one hour or are they billed 30 minutes each? 
They should be billed 30 minutes each. 
Do you instruct your staff to b/11 that way? 
There's Mr. and Mrs. North, I mean that's who we're talking about. This was fairly unique. 
We don't have a lot of married cases. It typically doesn't happen. Usually one Is able to c:are 
for the other. Um .•. and so that case should have been billed separately. Heidi did not do that. 
We, when that was pointed out to us, we made the adjustments in the bill and refunded them 
money. We didn't just make the adjustments, we refunded the money. 
Right. Okay. 
So when you have staff and they go and visit um ... people In that sort of situation where 
they're visiting two people or more than two people at the same place, are they instructed to 
bilf um ... each one of them Individually? 
Um ... hm. Yeah. You go through your time. 
How are they Instructed to bill out the time? So if they're there for you know let's say a faciUty 
for two hours, do they bill each of th.e clients two hours ... 
No . 
... for that visit? 
They should break it down. 
So if there were say five clients there and it was Q two hour visit each one would be bi/fed the 

small amount of that two hours? 
Depending on how much time they spent talking to the ... to the word, visiting with the staff. 

Um ... hm. 
Yeah. 
And your employees are told to do it that way? 
Yep. 

This statement by PARKS clearly demonstrates that PARKS is aware that she is only entitled to fees from 
individual wards for the actual time spent for the benefit of each ward and that she should not be billing the entire time 
an activity takes to every ward who receives a benefit from a portion of that activity. PARKS also placed the blame for 
billing the NORTH'S this way on KRAMER and stated that she instructs her staff to break down the time and bill only the 
time that is spent on a ward to that ward. This statement contradicts the statements of KRAMER and SANCHEZ; that 
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they were told to bill the entire time to every ward, regardless of how much was spent with each ward. PARKS 
statement also contradicts the evidence, as detailed above, of the many occasions this type of billing occurs. 

On July 17, 2015, PARKS filed a Response to Objections to First Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian and 
Amended First Annual Account and Report of Guardian in the guardianship case of Frank Papapietro (G-12-037226-A) 
(Exhibit 138). This document was filed with the court by PARKS In Proper Person. In this document (Page 3 Line 21), 
PARKS addressed an objection from the ward through his counsel that the fees she had paid herself and those listed in 

her accounting did not match. PARKS stated in her petition: 

"6. Regarding the reimbursement of the guardian for her fees. The guardian is entitled to reimbursement. 
However, Counsel must realize that an invoice is also testimony to the work that was done during the 
guardianship. Whether the ward can pay the fees are [sic] not, they still need to be submitted to the Court." 

This statement made to the court by PARKS evidences that when she documents an activity on a ward invoice 
and submits that to the court, she is affirmatively stating to the court that the activity documented in the invoice 
occurred and that it took the duration shown in the invoice and that the time spent was for the benefit of the specific 

ward and the fees are therefore owed by the ward. 

Also relevant to this issue, the APPG Policy and Procedure Manual used by PARKS contained the following 

language (Exhibit 168): 

" ... we only get paid for documented work, billing out at l/10 increments at $120 an hour .... ft is the policy of 
APPG to document all work done and to ensure accuracy in billing to provide the best and most economical service for 

our clients." 

"Much of what we document in EMS gets printed on invoices which eventual get sent to the courts and are 

then public record .... " 

The language in this policy manual clearly shows that PARKS requires all her staff to document their activities in 
the case management system and in doing so, intends that this documented activity form the basis of the invoices she 
wi II submit to court as proof of the fees she is paying herself from her ward's funds. 

Additional evidence showing that PARKS was double-billing activities and directing her staff to do the same can 
be found in PARKS own billing. On March 23, 2012, PARKS documented 11.5 hours between six wards for applying to 
become their Social Security Rep-Payee. This event was fully investigated in the attached report (Double-Billing SSA 
Rep-Payee). No meeting occurred at Social Security and applying to become the rep=payee of a ward requires only that 
a short application be mailed, taking no more than 15 minutes to complete and either drop off or mail. Also, located in 
the documents seized from PARKS office was an email dated May 31, 2012, from PARKS to SIMMONS directlng that one 
hour per person be billed for a Social Security meeting. The email stated "Please enter 1 hour for Reese Arnold and all 
other who we went to social sec for". SANCHEZ had initialed the bottom of this email and during her interview she 
stated that she had entered PARKS hours in EMS, documenting one hour each for seven wards for a social security 

meeting, but under her own name (Exhibit 169). 

Double-billing of wards through shopping trips 

The statements of KRAMER and SANCHEZ revealed that in addition to over-billfng her wards for ward visits, 
PARKS also instructed her staff to document the time they spent shopping for wards in the same way; that is, if they 
spent one hour travelling to and shopping at a store such at Target or Costco purchasing items for ten wards, this one 
hour was to be documented in the Time & Expense and Case Notes sections of the case management database for each 
ward. By doing this, PARKS was able to bill this one hour ten times, making each of the ten wards pay for the full cost of 

the shopping activity and increasing her billing tenfold. 
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I examined the billing activity for the 25 wards documented as being double-billed for ward visits, to see if a 

pattern of exploitative billing through shopping trips was evident in the invoice and accountings PARKS submitted to the 

court and the fees she paid herself for these activities. 

I located a total of 17 dates between January 27, 2013, and August 20, 2014, on which a member of PARKS staff, 
either KRAMER or SANCHEZ, documented going to a store to purchase items for multiple wards, including on each day at 
least one of the wards identified as victims of this pattern of double-billingl8 (Exhibit 170). On each of these dates, 
PARKS billed multiple wards for the time taken for the entire shopping trip, and did not sub-divide the cost between the 
wards. By doing this, PARKS made each ward pay fees for time her staff spent provlding service (shopping) for another 
ward. Sixteen of the wards identified in this report were double-billed in this fashion, with the amount of funds taken 

from each ward varying between $39.60 loss and $648.00 loss. 

Ward Number of Total Hours Total Cost Actual Hours Actual Amount Over 

Trips Billed Billed Spent/ward Cost/ward BIiied/ward 

Delmond Foster 2 1.25 $150.00 0.13 $15.60 $134.40 

James Poya 1 0.75 $90.00 0.08 $9.60 $80.40 

Ruth Braslow 4 3 $360.00 0.80 $96.00 $264.00 

William Brady 3 2 $240.00 0.21 $25.20 '$214.80 

Roy Franklin 2 1.25 $150.00 0.13 $15.60 $134.40 

Patricia Smoak 9 6.75 $810.00 1.35 $162.00 $648.00 

Clyde Bowman 3 2.17 $260,40 0.325 $39.00 $221.40 

Harold Lockwood 5 3.17 $380.40 0.695 $83.40 $297.00 

Linda Phillips 5 3.09 $370.80 0.665 $79.80 $291.00 

Janice Mitchell 4 4.75 $570.00 0.16 $19.20 $550.80 

Marlene Homer 3 2 $240.00 0.60 $72.60 $167.40 

Walter Wright 2 1.5 $180.00 0.195 $23.40 $156.60 

Marie Long 1 0.75 $90.00 0.42 $50.40 $39.60 

Mary Vitek 2 1.5 $180.00 0.57 $68.40 $111.60 

Dolores Smith 5 2.75 $330.00 0.30 $39.60 $290.40 

Norbert Wilkening 1 1.5 $180.00 0.125 $15.00 $165.00 

Yoshiko Kindaichi 1 1.5 $180.00 0.125 $15.00 $165.00 
Total Over-Billed $3,798.40 

By requiring her staff to document the time spent shopping in this fashion, PARKS documented in her case 
management system, and ultimately submitted information to the court, claiming that 89.52 hours were spent on these 
17 shopping trips. On several days this included documenting between 7 and 9 hours spent at Costco or Target buying 
items for several wards and charging those wards between $800.00 and over S 1,000.00 for the shopping trip. 

During the service of the search warrant at PARKS office and home, documents seized included copies of 
receipts pertaining to these shopping trips. On many of these receipts, the name of the wards receiving some benefit 

from each trip was written (Exhibit 170). 

In several cases the cost of the product purchased on behalf of the ward was less than the fee for PARKS staff to 

go to the store to make the purchase. For instance: 

• On January 27, 2013, SANCHEZ documented going to Wal-Mart for William Brady to purchase $41.80 worth 
of snacks. This trip was billed to Brady at a cost of $70.00 plus the cost of the snacks. 

18 There were other dates on which this double-billing activity was evident however I selected only those dates on which one or more 
of the victims listed above were included. 
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• On February 5, 2013, Brady was invoiced $80.40 for SANCHEZ to go to Sam's Club and purchase him $11.58 

worth of cookies. 
• On June 28, 2013, Janice Mitchell was invoiced $90.00 for Sanchez to go to CVS and purchase $9.38 worth of 

chocolate. 
• On October 31, 2013, Janice Mitchell was invoiced $60.00 for KRAMER to go to Target and purchase $18.46 

worth of snacks. 

In each case, a review of the petitions for fees and attached invoices submitted to the court by PARKS revealed 
that PARKS informed the court that she was charging the full cost of the shopping trip to individual wards, but failed to 
tell the court that she was also billing multiple wards for the full cost of the same shopping visit. 

I verified, through examining the bank accounts of each ward, that PARKS paid herself the fees she billed to the 

ward from the wards funds. 

Of further note, in all cases where wards were resident at a facility, which included all 25 of those identified in 
this report, statements provided by the owners, administrators or managers of those facilities revealed that the facility 
would have provided this shopping service at no cost to ward; except the reimbursable cost of the items purchased. As 
such, PARKS did not need to perform any of these shopping trips and could have used the facility staff to obtain the 
items for the wards without billing the wards anything for the service. By using her own staff to shop for everyday items 
for the wards in this way, the true beneficiary of this shopping activity was PARKS, who was able to bill $120.00 per hour 

to multiple wards. 

When interviewed, KRAMER and SANCHEZ both stated that they performed shopping of this nature because 
they were instructed to by PARKS and SIMMONS. Both KRAMER and SANCHEZ stated that they knew this type of 
shopping could have been provided for free by the facility staff. KRAMER stated that she felt that it was wasteful of 
wards funds for her to do this type of shopping and over time she began to shop more online, thereby reducing fees 

charged to wards for this activity, 

This evidence supports that not only was PARKS instructing her staff to double-bill her wards for the services she 
provided, but was also providing services at significant cost to the ward that could have been provided at little or no 
cost. Full details of this method of excessively billing these wards for services that could have been provided for free are 

documented in the accompanying report. 

Double-billing of wards through court activity 

The statements of KRAMER and SANCHEZ revealed that in addition to over-billing her wards for ward visits and 
shopping activities, PARKS also instructed her staff to document the time they spent going to court to drop off or collect 
paperwork for wards in the same way; that is, if they spent one hour travelling to and being at court for four wards, this 
one hour was to be documented in the Time & Expense and Case Notes sections of the case management database for 
each ward. By doing this, PARKS was able to bill this one hour four times, making each of the four wards pay for the full 
cost of the court activity and increasing her billing fourfold. 

I examined the billing activity for the 25 wards documented as being double-billed for ward visits, to see if a 
pattern of exploitatlve billing through court trips was evident in the invoice and accountings PARKS submitted to the 

court and the fees she paid herself for these activities. 

I located a total of 45 dates between April 23, 2012, and October 1, 2015, on which TAYLOR documented going 
to court for multiple wards, including on each day at least one of the 25 wards identified as victims of this pattern of 
double-billing19 (Exhibit 171). On each of these dates, PARKS billed multiple wards for the time taken for the entire court 

19 There were other dates on which this double-billing activity was evident; however I selected only those dates on which one or more 
of the victims listed above were included. 
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trip, and did not sub-divide the cost between the wards. By doing this, PARKS made each ward pay fees for time her 
staff spent providing service (court paper drop off and collection} for another ward. Twenty two of the wards identified 
in this report were double-billed in this fashion, with the amount of funds taken from each ward varying between $41.00 

loss and $1,399.00 loss. 

Ward Number of Total Hours Total Cost Actual Hours Actual Amount Over 

Trips Billed Billed Spent/ward Cost/ward Billed/ward 

James Poya 3 4.74 $537.20 0.77 $84.40 $452.80 

Carolyn Rickenbaugh 8 16.23 $1,901.00 4.39 $501.61 $1,399.39 

Kenneth Edwards 4 10 $1,161.60 2.52 $297.70 $863,90 

Ruth Braslow 1 2.17 $260.40 0.24 $28.93 $231.47 

Juanita Graham 5 9.41 $1,051.00 1.21 $135.13 $915.87 

Marilyn Scholl 6 9.25 $1,100.00 2.8 $334.24 $765.76 

Wtlliam Brady 2 3.66 $497.20 1.12 $149.3 $347.90 

Roy Franklin 4 9.25 $1,041.60 1.53 $177.07 $864.53 

Patricia Smoak 3 2 $221.60 0.73 $71.92 $149.68 

Clyde Bowman 1 1.83 $183.00 0.92 $91.50 $91.50 

Harold Lockwood 1 0.83 $83.00 0.41 541.50 $41.50 

Linda Phillips 2 2.83 $329.60 0.43 $49.94 $279.66 

Janice Mitchell 3 3.91 $411.00 1.94 $209.25 $201.75 

Marlene Homer 1 0.92 $92.00 0.46 $46.00 $46.00 

Walter Wright 2 2.83 $339.60 1,02 $122.40 $217.20 

Marie Long 1 1.85 $185.00 0.58 $58.25 $126.75 

Mary Vitek 7 12.07 $1,448.40 3.26 $389.71 $1,058.69 

Rennie North 2 2.75 $330.00 0.69 $82.50 $247.50 

Rudy North 2 2,75 $330.00 0.69 $82.50 $247.50 

Dolores Smith 1 0.83 $99.60 0.28 $33.20 $66.40 

Norbert WIikening 2 4.5 $540.00 0.96 $115.00 $425.00 

Yoshiko Kindaichi 2 6 $720.00 2.41 $290.00 $430.00 
Total Over-Billed $9,470.75 

By requmng her staff to document the time spent performing these court trips in this fashion, PARKS 
documented in her case management system, and ultimately submitted information to the court, claiming that 372 
hours were spent on these 45 court trips. On several days this included documenting 18, 20, 24 and even 31 hours 
spent travelling to and being at court for several wards and charging those wards up to $3,735.00 for a single court trip. 

In each case, a review of the petitions for fees and attached invoices submitted to the court by PARKS revealed 
that PARKS informed the court that she was charging the full cost of the court visit to individual wards, but failed to tell 
the court that she was also billing multiple wards for the full cost of the same court visit. 

I verified, through examining the bank accounts of each ward, that PARKS paid herself the fees she billed to the 

wards from the wards funds. 

This report does not address the necessity of these court visits, or whether the court visits actually occurred; 
rather, this report addresses that the visits that were billed for were double-billed as part of the ongoing scheme to 
defraud these vulnerable victims using the same billing practice as was employed in shopping and ward visit activities. 

Also of note with these activities, a review of the bank records for APPG revealed that PARKS was paying 
TAYLOR $20.00 per hour as an employee to perform these tasks. As such, on the day TAYLOR documented taking 31 
hours to attend court and file documents for eleven wards, PARKS billed those wards collectively $3,735.00, but 
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incurred just $620.00 in payroll expenses for that activity. Through this double-billing practice PARKS made $3,115.00 
profit from one of her staff members performing 2.83 hours of work. 

I also noted that the hourly rate charged for this identical activity performed by the same employee varied 
throughout the billing. On some dates PARKS charged wards $100.00 per hour for this activity and on some dates she 

charged $120.00 per hour for this activity. 

This is particularly relevant because during the service of the search warrant at PARKS offices, a five page 
document was located that appeared to be a letter of introduction or solicitation for work prepared by PARKS for a 
potential referral source {Exhibit 10). On the fourth page of this letter, under the heading APPG RATES, PARKS 
documented that she always uses the "lowest rote employee appropriate for the situation". 

As part of this investigation, I identified that PARKS had alternatives to sending her husband to the court 
building to file or collect paperwork on behalf of wards, charging those wards $100.00 to $120.00 per hour for this 
menial courier function. Documents located in the files seized from PARKS office showed that PARKS was familiar with 
legal courier services such as Legal Wings and the services they offer in relation to court document filing. Full details of 
this excessive billing practice are documented In the accompanying report. 

Over-billing of wards through Bank Deposit Activity 

As documented in the attached report on the Bank Deposit exploitative scheme, PARKS and SIMMONS 
documented that making a deposit to a ward's bank account took them 30 minutes per ward, sometimes invoicing over 
13 hours per day for depositing checks at the same banks close to the APPG office. Full details of this method of over­
billing her wards is detailed in the accompanying report. This scheme resulted in each ward being billed either $60.00 or 
$75.00 every time a check was deposited into their account. 

I reviewed the billing of each of the 25 wards identified in this report and located all occasions in which PARKS 
invoiced the ward for making bank deposits during the time frame subject to this investigation. I identified additional 
excessive billing for these wards, through this scheme as shown (Exhibit 172): 

Ward Name Date Range Number of Total Hours Total Cost to 

Deposits Ward 

James Poya 10/16/2013 - 16 8 $1,125.00 

05/04/2015 
Carolyn Rickenbaugh 09/17/2014 - 11 5.5 $825.00 

07/31/2015 
Kenneth Edwards 02/03/2015 - 6 3 $450.00 

07/31/2015 
Ruth Braslow 04/01/2013 - 5 2.75 $330.00 

07/02/2013 
Oelmond Foster 04/02/2013 - 14 7 $870.00 

04/02/2014 
Marilyn Scholl 08/20/2013 - 24 12 $1,710.00 

06/04/2015 
Clyde Bowman 05/14/2013 1 0.5 $60.00 

Roy Franklin 06/03/2013 - 17 8.5 $1,110.00 

02/18/2015 
Juanita Graham 11/20/2013 - 20 10 $1,440.00 

6/24/2015 
Adolfo Gonzalez 05/01/2013 1 0.5 $60.00 
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Harold Lockwood 05/05/2012 - 10 5 $615.00 

03/11/2014 
Linda Phillips 04/02/2013 - 15 7.5 $1,035.00 

12/30/2014 
Marlene Homer 07/12/2012 - 13 6.5 $870.00 

02/18/2015 
Walter Wright 05/14/2014 - 2 1 $150.00 

02/03/2015 
Marie Long 06/15/2012 - 23 11.5 $1,380.00 

01/13/2014 
Mary Vitek 03/01/2014 1 0.5 $75.00 

Rennie North 11/02/2013 - 7 3.5 $465.00 

10/02/2014 
Rudy North 11/02/2013 - 4 2 $285.00 

05/14/2014 
Dolores Smith 01/13/2014 - 36 18 $2,685.00 

07/31/2015 
Norbert Wilkening 01/02/2014 - 12 6 $855.00 

11/14/2014 
Yoshiko Kindaichi 06/02/2014 - 18 9 $1,350.00 

04/16/2015 
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As noted in the compliance section of this report, PARKS frequently failed to comply with the filing and time 
requirements imposed on guardians by NRS 159, particularly in regard to the requirement to file an inventory of ward 
assets, block bank accounts when necessary, and file accountings in a timely fashion. I examined the court record for 
the 25 wards identified in this report and noted that these compliance violations occurred throughout these 25 cases: 

• Inventory Delays 

ward Date of General Date Inventory Filed Number of days late 

Delmond Foster 09/19/2012 12/13/2012 25 

Dolores Smith 02/12/2014 08/13/2014 122 

James Poya 07/15/2011 01/23/2013 49£ 

Kenneth Edwards 01/17/2014 01/21/2015 309 

Linda Phillips 10/16/2008 01/07/2011 753 

Marie long. 07/18/2012 11/15/2012 60 

Marlene Homer 07/11/2012 11/14/2012 66 

Mary Vitek 05/17/2012 08/20/2014 765 

Janice Mitchell 02/22/2011 04/29/2014 1102 

Ruth Braslow 03/04/2013 05/20/2013 17 

Walter Wright 05/17/2012 08/20/2014 765 

William Brady 10/14/2010 07/10/2015 1670 

Yoshiko Kindalchl 01/23/2014 08/13/2014 142 

• Blocked Account Required 

ward Assets per Inventory Blocked Acct Required Account Blocked 

Adolfo Gonzalez $267,000.00 Yes No 

Dolores Smith $35,500.00 Yes No 

Marie long $39,000.00 Yes 06/10/2015- 3 years late 

Marilyn Scholl $22,000.00 Yes 06/10/2015 - 2 years late 

Marlene Homer $39,000.00 Yes No 
Patricia Smoak $590,000.00 Yes 06/05/2015 - 4 ½ years late 

Rennie North $23,294.00 Yes No 
Rudy North $23,294.00 Yes No 

Ruth Braslow $124,000.00 Yes No 
Walter Wright $26,000.00 Yes No 

Yoshiko Klndalchl $130,000.00 Yes No 
Norbert Wilkening $20,726.00 Yes No 
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• Accounting Delays 

ward 

Dolores Smith 
Gloria Schneringer 
James Poya 
Juanita Graham 
Linda Phillips 
Marie Long 
Marilyn Scholl 
Marlene Homer 
Mary Vitek 
Patricia Smoak 
Rennie North 
Janice Mitchell 
Rudy North 
Ruth Braslow 
William Brady 
Yoshiko Kindaichi 
Norbert Wilkening 
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Date of General Date Accounting Filed 

02/12/2014 06/19/2015 
03/30/2011 08/23/2012 
07/15/2011 12/18/2014 
09/27/2013 03/03/2015 
10/16/2008 07/31/2015 
07/18/2012 01/09/2015 
08/29/2013 11/14/2014 
07/11/2012 08/13/2014 
05/17/2012 08/20/2014 
12/06/2010 12/14/2012 
09/30/2013 04/10/2015 
02/22/2011 04/29/2014 
09/30/2013 04/10/2015 
03/04/2013 06/18/2014 
10/14/2010 08/04/2015 
01/23/2014 04/30/2015 
04/19/2013 12/02/2014 

Event #: 150819-2043 ____ ......;;..;._ __ _ 

Number of Days Late 

67 
87 

827 
97 

2054 
480 
17 

338 
400 
314 
132 
737 
132 
46 

1330 
37 

167 
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Financial analysis of APPG business accounts 

During the course of this investigation, I located the business bank accounts of APPG, held at Bank of America. A 
grand jury subpoena was issued to Bank of America for signature cards, statements, and debit and credit items for this 
account. Documents responsive to this subpoena were produced by Rita Conde (CONDE) and Monlade Bethea 

(BETHEA), Custodians of Records for Bank of America. 

Account# 501013772109 (Exhibit 173) 

A Private Professional Guardian, LLC 
Tax ID# 45-3211998 
Date Opened: 01/05/2012 
Signers: April L Parks 

Mark Simmons 
Angelica Sanchez 

Account# 501018802728 ( Exhibit 173) 
A Private Professional Guardian, LLC 
Tax ID# 45-3211998 
Date Opened: 03/13/2015 
Signers: April L Parks 

I analyzed the flow of funds into and out of the principle business accounts for APPG for the period January, 5 
2012, through January 31, 2016 (Exhibit 174). The primary business account was opened on January 5, 2012. The 
opening deposit to this account was a transfer of $5,078.50 from account # 501001754090, a personal account 
belonging to PARKS that PARKS appeared to have been using as her business account prior to opening this account. 

• Income 

The total deposits to the APPG business accounts from all sources during the time frame under review were 

· $1,942,307.79. I examined the source of these funds and noted as follows: 

Opening Balance $5,078.50 0.26% 

Ward Fees $1,606,310.47 82.70% Exhibit 175 

Ward Expense Reimbursements $223,146.01 11.49% Exhibit 176 

Total Funds Other Sources $107,772.81 5.55% 

Total Deposits $1,942,307.79 100% 

I noted that $223,146.01 was deposited as reimbursement for expenses incurred by APPG on behalf of wards or 
as ward funds moved through the business account. Assuming that PARKS actually incurred and paid these reimbursed 
expenses from her business account, these funds a re merely a flow-through of funds and can be discounted as business 
income. The remaining $107,757.86 of the deposits to this account came from purchase refunds, bank fee refunds and 

other assorted unverified sources. 

Year 
2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 
January 2016 

• Expenditure 

Deposits 
$360,377.65 
$487,236.52 
$594,440.74 
$493,101.54 
$7,151.34 

Total $1,942,307.79 

Expenditures 
$357,849.93 
$472,277.64 
$586,408.91 
$508,992.14 
$14,825.53 
$1,940,339.20 

I examined the expenditure of funds from the APPG business account during the same time period and noted 
that a large portion of the expenditure was payroll for PARKS' or her employees (Exhibit 177). During the period January 
2012, through January 2015, payroll was made to each employee ~irectly from the business account in the form of 
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either check or transfer to the employee1 s personal bank account. From February 2015 through January 2016, payroll 
was processed by Am Check Payroll services, with funds paid from the APPG bank account to AmCheck Payroll. 

A grand jury subpoena was issued to AmCheck Payroll to obtain payroll records for each employee of APPG. On 
January 13, 2016, Christina Pettit (PETTIT), Custodian of Records for AmCheck Payroll produced payroll records 
responsive to this subpoena (Exhibit 178). The information noted below regarding employee payroll incorporates the 
payroll records provided by AmCheck Payroll as well as the APPG bank records. 

Payee 2012 2013 

April Parks $126,500.00 $156,450.00 

Mark Simmons $72,750.00 $82,050.00 

Angelica Sanchez $49,401.97 $11,019.24 

Heidi Kramer $52,922.14 

Sue Pehrson 
Marcie Jimenez 
Neal Taylor $4,337.00 $14,436.00 

Cody Parks 
Tommy Parks $6,329.50 

$252,988.97 $323,206.88 

2014 2015 
$109,500.00 $76,250.00 
$85,465.12 $67,279.58 

$67,120.00 $73,881.99 
$25,464.90 $30,664.0020 

$13,454.80 
$29,070.20 $30,310.00 

$780.00 $2,158.04 
$7,852.75 

$325,252.97 $293,998.41 

2016 
$4,300.00 
$3,000.00 

$5,750.00 

$13,050.00 

Total Payroll 

$473,000.00 
$310,544.70 

$60,421.21 
$199,674.13 

$56,128.90 
$13,454.8 

$78,153.20 
$2,938.04 

$14,182.25 
$1,208,497.23 

20 Taylor received a $5,000.00 payment from the second business account that was infrequently used. Check copy included. 
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PARKS is a highly experienced and knowledgeable private professional guardian with more than 10 years' 
experience working in this field; first working as a guardian case manager in an attorney's office and then as a certified 
professional guardian running her own business and employing multiple staff. During that time PARKS has been 
appointed as guardian in hundreds of cases. PARKS has been a certified guardian since 2006. She is also active in the 
Nevada Guardianship Association having held a board position for several years. 

SIMMONS is also a certified guardian; having obtained certification in 2009. He has worked as the office 
manager for APPG since August 2008 and had been the administrator of a memory care facility since 2003. He was also 
a Qualified Dementia Care Specialist and owned his own Memory Care Consulting business, Exploring Life Transitions. 
Simmons occuples a position of authority within APPG, providing direction and supervision to staff and handling 
financial matter and completing legal documents for Parks. 

The hundreds of cases PARKS and SIMMONS have handled have included simple cases in which PARKS merely 
acted as a co-guardian and the in-state representative of a family member, all the way to complex long term 
guardianship cases in which PARKS and SIMMONS dealt with trusts, real estate, business ownership, investments, 

divorces and a multitude of other issues related to the wards. 

PARKS has had legal representation and guidance on many of these cases and has handled many more "in 
proper person", preparing and filing all legal documents with the assistance of SIMMONS and representing herself 

before the guardianship court. 

This extensive experience shows that PARKS and SIMMONS are familiar with the obligations to the wards under 
NRS 159 and the ethical and professional responsibilities under the National Guardianship Association Standards of 
Practice, the de facto national guardianship standards for certification as a professional guardian. 

An analysis of PARKS guardianship cases revealed that despite this extensive knowledge and experience, PARKS 
routinely failed to comply with both the state law and these professional standards. 

PARKS routinely failed to comply with the legal requirement of NRS 159, particularly in regard to the need to file 
inventories of her wards assets in a timely fashion, the need to block wards bank accounts to prevent access to ward 
funds, the requirement to notify the court of the death of a ward in a timely fashion, and the requirement to file 
accountings of the wards funds in a timely fashion. While not criminal violations, the failure to follow these simple court 
rules deprived the court of valuable information the court would have needed to effectively oversee how PARKS was 

handling a ward's affairs. 

This investigation also revealed that the guardianship court lacked the resources to review and check each of the 
documents filed in each guardianship cases. Despite the volume of cases in which PARKS was out of compliance with 
the legal requirements placed on a guardian, the court compliance office was only able to identify a fraction of these 
compliance violations and send letters to PARKS requiring her to bring her cases into compliance. 

The evidence shows that PARKS was aware of the inability of the court to effectively monitor her activities; in 
part because she rarely received a compliance notice when she was out of compliance and in part because her own 
notes show that she believed the court needed more staff and resources to enforce existing rules. 

This knowledge of the courts !imitations in regard to monitoring and examining cases, combined with PARKS 
disregard for the legal requirements placed upon her to provide information to the court in a timely fashion, created an 
environment in which PARKS was able to routinely double-bill her wards for activities performed by her staff without 
fear that the court would detect this double-billing activity. 
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This investigation identified that the court was unaware of the double-billing activity in which PARKS and 
SIMMONS were engaged. When the court approved each of PARKS petitions for payment or approval of her fees, the 
hearing master and presiding judge relied solely on the representations that PARKS made in her petitions. Both the 
guardianship judge and the guardianship hearing master sitting in lieu of the judge stated clearly that had they known 
PARKS was billing multiple wards for the exact same time and activity they would never have approved the petitions for 
fees submitted by PARKS to the court. The Hearing Master stated that he relied solely on the information provided to 
the court by PARKS when she requested payment or confirmation of her fees. As such, since PARKS failed to tell the 
court that she was billing multiple wards for the same time and activity, the court was unaware that when PARKS 
represented in her petitions that she or her staff spent time for the benefit of one specific ward, in actual fact, the ward 

received benefit of only a portion of the time claimed. 

PARKS, as the court appointed guardian for the 25 wards documented in this report, all of whom were 
vulnerable and/or elderly persons who lacked the capacity to manage their own affairs or monitor and/or approve of 
PARKS activities and billing, exploited her position as guardian and converted funds belonging to each ward for her own 
benefit through the use of a false billing scheme; namely by double-billing these wards for activities that were billed to 
multiple wards at the same time. This exploitation constitutes a violation of NRS 200.5099 (3) (b), a Category B felony. 

SIMMONS, as the manager of APPG, exercised direction, authority and control over the employees of APPG and, 
along with PAKS, directed that those employees double-bill their activities for each ward, knowing that this documented 
activity would be used to justify and hide the exploitation of PARKS wards. 

In addition to exploiting her wards, PARKS and SIMMONS embezzled funds that had been entrusted to PARKS to 
pay for the needs of the wards by knowingly and without lawful authority, converting ward funds to herself fees that 

were not earned, contrary to NRS 205.0832 (b), a category B or C felony. 

PARKS transferred the funds for these double-billed activities from each individual wards bank account to her 
business account, held in the name of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC. From this account, PARKS utilized the funds 
she misappropriated to pay business expenses, salaries for her staff, and to enrich herself and her family members, 
several of whom were employed in her business. 

1. Between 10/04/2013 and 11/04/2015, through the use of her guardianship over James Poya, an elderly person 
born 06/25/1948, April Parks and Mark Simmons converted $6,032.50, belonging to Poya with the intention of 
permanently depriving Paya of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of said funds contrary to NRS 200.5099 
(3) {b) a category B felony. 

2. Between 10/04/2013 and 11/04/2015, through the use of her guardianship over James Poya, an elderly person 
born 06/25/1948, April Parks and Mark Simmons, without lawful authority, knowingly converted $6,032.50 
belonging to Paya and entrusted to Parks for a limited use, namely to manage for the benefit of Poya, contrary 

to NRS 205.0832 (b) Actions which constitute Theft, a category B felony. 

3. Between 04/16/2013 and 11/03/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Ruth Braslow, an elderly 
person born 07/10/1925, April Parks and Mark Simmons converted $13,209.6021

, belonging to Braslow with the 
intention of permanently depriving Braslow of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of said funds contrary 

to NRS 200.5099 (3) (cl a category B felony. 

4. Between 04/16/2013 and 11/03/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Ruth Braslow, an elderly 
person born 07/10/1925, April Parks and Mark Simmons, without lawful authority, knowingly converted 
$13,209.60 belonging to Braslow and entrusted to Parks for a limited use, namely to manage for the benefit of 
Braslow, contrary to NRS 205.0832 (b) Actions which constitute Theft, a category B felony. 

21 This figure includes all the fraudulent fees documented in the accompanying Braslow report. 
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s. Between 11/03/2014 and 11/03/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Carolyn Rickenbaugh, an 
elderly person born 12/28/1942, April Parks and Mark Simmons converted $3,804.39, belonging to 
Rickenbaugh with the intention of permanently deprlving Rickenbaugh of the ownership, use, benefit or 
possession of said funds contrary to NRS 200.5099 (3) (b) a category B felony. 

6. Between 11/03/2014 and 11/03/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Carolyn Rickenbaugh, an 
elderly person born 12/28/1942, April Parks and Mark Simmons, without lawful authority, knowingly converted 
$3,804.39, belonging to Rickenbaugh and entrusted to Parks for a limited use, namely to manage for the benefit 
of Rickenbaugh, contrary to N RS 205.0832 {b) Actions which constitute Theft, a category B felony. 

7. Between 04/04/2013 and 11/04/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Delmond Foster, an elderly 
person born 08/11/1930, April Parks and Mark Simmons converted $2,264.4022

, belonging to Foster with the 
intention of permanently depriving Foster of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of said funds contrary to 
NRS 200.5099 (3) (bl a category B felony. 

8. Between 04/04/2013 and 11/04/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Delmond Foster, an elderly 
person born 08/11/1930, April Parks and Mark Simmons, without lawful authority, knowingly converted 
$2,264.40, belonging to Foster and entrusted to Parks for a limited use, namely to manage for the benefit of 
Foster, contrary to NRS 205.0832 (b) Actions which constitute Theft, a category C felony. 

9. Between 04/02/2013 and 11/04/2015, through the use of her guardianship over William Brady, an elderly 
person born 08/16/1928, April Parks and Mark Simmons converted $3,068.8023

, belonging to Brady with the 
intention of permanently depriving Brady of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of said funds contrary to 

NRS 200.5099 (3) (c) a category B felony. 

10. Between 04/02/2013 and 11/04/2015, through the use of her guardianship over William Brady, an elderly 
person born 08/16/1928, April Parks and Mark Simmons, without lawful authority, knowingly converted 
$3,068.80, belonging to Brady and entrusted to Parks for a limited use, namely to manage for the benefit of 
Brady, contrary to NRS 205.0832 (bl Actions which constitute Theft, a category C felony. 

11. Between 04/04/2013 and 09/03/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Patricia Smoak, an elderly 
person born 01/29/1931, April Parks and Mark Simmons converted $5,563.60, belonging to Smoak with the 
intention of permanently depriving Smoak of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of said funds contrary to 

NRS 200.5099 (3) (c) a category B felony. 

12. Between 04/04/2013 and 09/03/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Patricia Smoak, an elderly 
person born 01/29/1931, April Parks and Mark Simmons, without lawful authority, knowingly converted 
$5,563.60, belonging to Smoak and entrusted to Parks for a limited use, namely to manage for the benefit of 
Smoak, contrary to NRS 205.0832 (b) Actions which constitute Theft, a category B felony. 

13. Between 10/24/2013 and 09/03/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Marilyn Scholl, an elderly 
person born 12/15/1934, April Parks and Mark Simmons converted $6,262.48, belonging to Scholl with the 
intention of permanently depriving Scholl of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of said funds contrary to 

NRS 200.5099 (3) (b) a category B felony. 

14. Between 10/24/2013 and 09/03/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Marilyn Scholl, an elderly 
person born 12/15/1934, April Parks and Mark Simmons, without lawful authority, knowingly converted 

22 This figure includes $1,260.00 for double billed ward visits (reduced due to some dates counted as unnecessary services) + 

shopping, court and banking 
23 This figure includes $2,506.10 for double billed ward visits (reduced due to some dates counted as unnecessary services) + 
shopping, court and banking 
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$6,262.48, belonging to Scholl and entrusted to Parks for a limited use, namely to manage for the benefit of 
Scholl, contrary to NRS 205.0832 (b) Actions which constitute Theft, a category B felony. 

15, Between 01/05/2015 and 09/03/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Kenneth Edwards, an elderly 
person born 12/04/1944, April Parks and Mark Simmons converted $2,622.62, belonging to Edwards with the 
intention of permanently depriving Edwards of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of said funds contrary 

to NRS 200.5099 (3) (b) a category B felony. 

16. Between 01/05/2015 and 09/03/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Kenneth Edwards, an elderly 
person born 12/04/1944, April Parks and Mark Simmons, without lawful authority, knowingly converted 
$2,622.62, belonging to Edwards and entrusted to Parks for a limited use, namely to manage for the benefit of 
Edwards, contrary to N RS 205.0832 (b) Actions which constitute Theft, a category C felony. 

17. Between 09/05/2013 and 09/17/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Gloria Schneringer, an elderly 
person born 08/18/1931, April Parks and Mark Simmons converted $2,830.50, belonging to Schneringer with 
the intention of permanently depriving Schneringer of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of said funds 

contrary to NRS 200.5099 (3) (b) a category B felony. 

18. Between 09/05/2013 and 09/17/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Gloria Schneringer, an elderly 
person born 08/18/1931, April Parks and Mark Simmons, without lawful authority, knowingly converted 
$2,830.50, belonging to Schneringer and entrusted to Parks for a limited use, namely to manage for the benefit 
of Schneringer, contrary to NRS 205.0832 (b) Actions which constitute Theft, a category C felony. 

19. Between 04/04/2013 and 09/03/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Janice Mitchell, an elderly 
person born 12/08/1937, April Parks and Mark Simmons converted $4,766.37, belonging to Mitchell with the 
intention of permanently depriving Mitchell of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of said funds contrary 

to NRS 200.5099 (3) (b) a category B felony. 

20. Between 04/04/2013 and 09/03/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Janice Mitchell, an elderly 
person born 12/08/1937, April Parks and Mark Simmons, without lawful authority, knowingly converted 
$4,766.37, belonging to Mitchell and entrusted to Parks for a limited use, namely to manage for the benefit of 
Mitchell, contrary to NRS 205.0832 (b) Actions which constitute Theft, a category B felony. 

21. Between 12/3/2013 and 12/08/2014, through the use of her guardianship over Mary Vitek, an elderly person 
born 01/21/1932, April Parks and Mark Simmons converted $2,705.39, belonging to Vitek with the intention of 
permanently deprlving Vitek of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of said funds contrary to NRS 200.5099 

( 3) (b) a category B felony. 

22. Between 12/3/2013 and 12/08/2014, through the use of her guardianship over Mary Vitek, an elderly person 
born 01/21/1932, April Parks and Mark Simmons, without lawful authority, knowingly converted $2,705.39, 
belonging to Vitek and entrusted to Parks for a limited use, namely to manage for the benefit of Vitek, contrary 
to NRS 205.0832 (b) Actions which constitute Theft, a category C felony. 

23. Between 07/05/2013 and 02/03/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Clyde Bowman, an elderly 
person born 11/08/1921, April Parks and Mark Simmons converted $3,820.14, belonging to Bowman with the 
intention of permanently depriving Bowman of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of said funds contrary 

to NRS 200.5099 (3) (bl a category B felony. 

24. Between 07/05/2013 and 02/03/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Clyde Bowman, an elderly 
person born 11/08/1921, April Parks and Mark Simmons, without lawful authority, knowingly converted 
$3,820.14, belonging to Bowman and entrusted to Parks for a limited use, namely to manage for the benefit of 
Bowman, contrary to NRS 205.0832 (b) Actions which constitute Theft, a category B felony. 
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25. Between 07/05/2013 and 07/03/2015, through the use of her guardlanship over Roy Franklin, an elderly person 
born 06/27/1925, April Parks and Mark Simmons converted $5,806.97, belonging to Franklin with the intention 
of permanently depriving Franklin of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of said funds contrary to NRS 
200.5099 (3) (b) a category B felony. 

26. Between 07/05/2013 and 07/03/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Roy Franklin, an elderly person 
born 06/27/1925, April Parks and Mark Simmons, without lawful authority, knowingly converted $5,806.97, 

belonging to Franklin and entrusted to Parks for a limited use, namely to manage for the benefit of Franklin, 
contrary to NRS 205.0832 (b) Actions which constitute Theft, a category B felony. 

27. Between 12/03/2013 and 11/04/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Juanita Graham, an elderly 
person born 06/09/1929, Aprll Parks and Mark Simmons converted $5,766.75, belonging to Graham with the 
intention of permanently depriving Graham of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of said funds contrary 

to NRS 200.5099 (3) (b) a category B felony. 

28. Between 12/03/2013 and 11/04/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Juanita Graham, an elderly 
person born 06/09/1929, April Parks and Mark Simmons, without lawful authority, knowingly converted 
$5,766.75, belonging to Graham and entrusted to Parks for a limited use, namely to manage for the benefit of 
Graham, contrary to NRS 205.0832 (b) Actions which constitute Theft, a category B felony. 

29. Between 07/03/2014 and 05/04/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Yoshiko Klndalchi, an elderly 
person born 01/03/1935, April Parks and Mark Simmons converted $3,699.28, belonging to Kindaichi with the 
intention of permanently depriving Kindaichi of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of said funds contrary 

to NRS 200.5099 {3) (b) a category B felony. 

30. Between 07/03/2014 and 05/04/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Yoshiko Kindaichi, an elderly 
person born 01/03/1935, April Parks and Mark Simmons, without lawful authority, knowingly converted 
$3,699.28, belonging to Kindaichi and entrusted to Parks for a limited use, namely to manage for the benefit of 
Kindaichi, contrary to NRS 205.0832 (b) Actions which constitute Theft, a category B felony. 

31. Between 07/04/2013 and 06/05/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Walter Wright, an elderly 
person born 10/30/1934, April Parks and Mark Simmons converted $4,183.081 belonging to Wright with the 
intention of permanently depriving Wright of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of said funds contrary to 

NRS 200.5099 (3) (bl a category B felony. 

32. Between 07/04/2013 and 06/05/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Walter Wright, an elderly 
person born 10/30/1934, April Parks and Mark Simmons, without lawful authority, knowingly converted 
$4,183.08, belonging to Wright and entrusted to Parks for a limited use, namely to manage for the benefit of 
Wright, contrary to N RS 205.0832 (b) Actions which constitute Theft, a category B felony. 

33. Between 03/05/2014 and 06/04/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Dolores Smith, an elderly 
person born 11/30/1932, April Parks and Mark Simmons converted $6,166.30, belonging to Smith with the 
intention of permanently depriving Smith of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of said funds contrary to 

NRS 200.5099 (3) (bl a category B felony. 

34. Between 03/05/2014 and 06/04/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Dolores Smith, an elderly 
person born 11/30/1932, April Parks and Mark Simmons, without lawful authority, knowingly converted 
$6,166.30, belonging to Smith and entrusted to Parks for a limited use, namely to manage for the benefit of 
Smith, contrary to NRS 205.0832 (b) Actions which constitute Theft, a category B felony. 
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35. Between 08/03/2012 and 12/17/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Marlene Homer, an elderly 
person born 06/06/1939, April Parks and Mark Simmons converted $3,632.7024

, belonging to Homer with the 
intention of permanently depriving Homer of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of said funds contrary to 
NRS 200.5099 (3) {b) a category B felony. 

36. Between 08/03/2012 and 12/17/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Marlene Homer, an elderly 
person born 06/06/1939, April Parks and Mark Simmons, without lawful authority, knowingly converted 
$3,632.70, belonging to Homer and entrusted to Parks for a limited use, namely to manage for the benefit of 
Homer, contrary to NRS 205.0832 (b) Actions which constitute Theft, a category B felony. 

37. Between 08/03/2012 and 03/04/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Marie Long, an elderly person 
born 08/17/1919, April Parks and Mark Simmons converted $3,952.9525

, belonging to Long with the intention 
of permanently depriving Long of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of said funds contrary to NRS 

200.5099 (3) {b) a category B felony. 

38. Between 08/03/2012 and 03/04/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Marie Long, an elderly person 
born 08/17/1919, April Parks and Mark Simmons, without lawful authority, knowingly converted $3,952.95, 
belonging to Long and entrusted to Parks for a limited use, namely to manage for the benefit of Long, contrary 
to NRS 205.0832 (b) Actions which constitute Theft, a category B felony. 

39. Between 09/19/2013 and 07/03/2014, through the use of her guardianship over Rudy North, an elderly person 
born 07/29/1936, April Parks and Mark Simmons converted $1,449.3026

, belonging to Rudy North with the 
intention of permanently depriving Rudy North of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of said funds 
contrary to NRS 200.5099 (3) (b) a category B felony. 

40. Between 09/19/2013 and 07/03/2014, through the use of her guardianship over Rudy North, an elderly person 
born 07/29/1936, April Parks and Mark Simmons, without lawful authority, knowingly converted $1,449.3027

, 

belonging to Rudy North and entrusted to Parks for a limited use, namely to manage for the benefit of Rudy 
North, contrary to NRS 205.0832 (b) Actions which constitute Theft, a category C felony. 

41. Between 10/04/2013 and 05/05/2014, through the use of her guardianship over Rennie North, an elderly 
person born 12/03/1938, April Parks and Mark Simmons converted $1,441.8028

, belonging to Rennie North with 
the intention of permanently depriving Rennie North of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of said funds 
contrary to NRS 200.5099{3) (b) a category B felony. 

42. Between 10/04/2013 and 05/05/2014, through the use of her guardianship over Rennie North, an elderly 
person born 12/03/1938, April Parks and Mark Simmons, without lawful authority, knowingly converted 
$1,441.8029, belonging to Rennie North and entrusted to Parks for a limited use, namely to manage for the 
benefit of Rennie North, contrary to N RS 205.0832 (b) Actions which constitute Theft, a category C felony. 

43. Between 09/03/2013 and 08/03/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Harold Lockwood, an elderly 
person born 10/07/1927, April Parks and Mark Simmons converted $4,528.00, belonging to Lockwood with the 

24 This figure includes $2,556.30 for double billed ward visits (reduced due lo some dales counted as unnecessary services) + 

shopping, court and banking 
25 This figure includes $2,406.60 for double billed ward visits (reduced due to some dales counted as unnecessary services) + 
shopping, court and banking 
26 Parks received less fees than she submitted to the court. This figure constitutes only those fees she was actually paid 
27 Parks received less fees than she submitted to the court. This figure constrtutes only those fees she was actually paid 
28 Parks received less fees than she submitted to the court. This figure constitutes only those fees she was actually paid 

29 Parks received less fees than she submitted to the court. This figure constitutes only those fees she was actually paid 
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intention of permanently depriving Lockwood of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of said funds 
contrary to NRS 200.5099 (3) (b) a category B felony. 

44. Between 09/03/2013 and 08/03/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Harold Lockwood, an elderly 
person born 10/07/1927, Aprll Parks and Mark Simmons, without lawful authority, knowingly converted 
$4,528.00, belonging to Lockwood and entrusted to Parks for a limited use, namely to manage for the benefit of 
Lockwood, contrary to NRS 205.0832 (b) Actions which constitute Theft, a category B felony. 

45. Between 05/24/2013 and 01/05/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Norbert WIikening, an elderly 
person born 01/09/1932, April Parks and Mark Simmons converted $4,533.20, belonging to Wilkening with the 
intention of permanently depriving Wilkening of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of said funds contrary 

to NRS 200.5099 (3) (bl a category B felony. 

46. Between 05/24/2013 and 01/05/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Norbert Wilkening, an elderly 
person born 01/09/1932, April Parks and Mark Simmons, without lawful authority, knowingly converted 
$4,533.20, belonging to Wilkening and entrusted to Parks for a limited use, namely to manage for the benefit of 
Wilkening, contrary to NRS 205.0832 (b) Actions which constitute Theft, a category B felony. 

47. Between 06/05/2013 and 11/04/2013, through the use of her guardianship over Adolfo Gonzalez, an elderly 
person born 03/09/1941, April Parks and Mark Simmons converted $1,413.60, belonging to Gonzalez with the 
intention of permanently depriving Gonzalez of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of said funds contrary 
to N RS 200.5099 (3) (b) a category B felony, 

48. Between 06/05/2013 and 11/04/2013, through the use of her guardianship over Adolfo Gonzalez, an elderly 
person born 03/09/1941, April Parks and Mark Simmons, without lawful authority, knowingly converted 
$1,413.60, belonging to Gonzalez and entrusted to Parks for a limited use, namely to manage for the benefit of 
Gonzalez, contrary to NRS 205.0832 (bl Actions which constitute Theft, a category C felony. 

49. Between 08/06/2013 and 08/03/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Linda Phillips, a vuln~rable 
person, April Parks and Mark Simmons converted $3,445.26, belonging to Phillips with the intention of 
permanently depriving Phillips of the ownership, use, benefit or possession of said funds contrary to NRS 

200.5099 (3) (b) a category B felony. 

50. Between 08/06/2013 and 08/03/2015, through the use of her guardianship over Linda Phillips, a vulnerable 
person, April Parks and Mark Simmons, without lawful authority, knowingly converted $3,445.26, belonging to 
Phillips and entrusted to Parks for a limited use, namely to manage for the benefit of Phillips, contrary to NRS 
205.0832 (b) Actions which constitute Theft, a category C felony. 

In addition to using this scheme to exploit her wards, PARKS also filed 65 Annual Accountings and Petitions for 
Fees with the District Court between 07/22/2013 and 05/03/2016, each of which contained false representations; 
namely that the service hours PARKS claimed to have spent on each ward for ward visits, shopping and court visits were 
dedicated entirely to each ward, when in fact, the time was actually split between multiple wards at the same time, with 
each ward receiving benefit of only a portion of the time taken for the activity .. The court, unaware that PARKS was 
misrepresenting the actual time she dedicated to each ward approved her petitions believing that her claims for fees 
were true. Each of these filing constitutes a violation of NRS 239.330 Offering false instrument for filing or record. 

In addition, 57 of these petitions were filed along with a notarized declaration made by PARKS that she attested 
to the validity of the content of each petition under penalty of perjury. The purpose of each of these petitions was to 
obtain court approval either to pay herself fees that PARKS claimed were due, or to obtain court approval of fees that 
PARKS had already paid to herself. Making false and misleading statements in the petitions and accompanying exhibits 
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as to the amount of those fees and the time taken to provide each service is material to the issue in question with each 

petition. As such, PARKS violated NRS 199.145, a category D felony. 

51. On 12/18/2014, in the guardianship case of James Poya G-11-036043-A, April Parks made a willful and false 
statement, in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, namely the filing of a First Annual Accounting and 
Report of Guardian, in a matter material to the issue in question, namely that she was owed fees for services 
rendered that were not, in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed. This declaration constitutes a 

violation of NRS 199.145, a category D felony. 

52. That Mark Simmons suborned April Parks to commit Perjury, contrary to NRS 199,145, a category D felony, in 
the filing of a First Annual Accounting rind Report of Guardian on 12/18/2014, in the guardianship case of 
James Poya G-11-036043-A, when Simmons instructed staff of A Private Professional Guardian, UC to falsify 
records of the amount and value of services they provided to wards of Parks, knowing that Parks would 
knowingly use that information to make a willful and false statement in a declaration made under penalty of 

perjury. 

53. On 12/18/2014, in the guardianship case of James Poya G-11-036043-A, April Parks knowingly offered a false 
instrument to be filed, registered or recorded in a public office, namely the Clark County District Court, which 
instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law of this state, 
namely Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 159.105 and 159.177, contrary to NRS 239.330 a category C felony. Said 
false instrument consisted of a First Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian that contained false statements 
about the duration of services provided to Poya and the value of the fees owed for those services. 

54. On 07/30/2015, in the guardianship case of James Poya G-11-036043-A, April Parks made a willful and false 
statement, in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, namely the filing of a Second Annual Accounting and 
Report of Guardian, in a matter material to the issue in question, namely that she was owed fees for services 
rendered that were not, in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed. This declaration constitutes a 

violation of NRS 199.145, a category D felony. 

55. That Mark Simmons suborned April Parks to commit Perjury, contrary to NRS 199.145, a category D felony, in 
the filing of a Second Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian on 07/30/2015, in the guardianship case of 
James Poya G-11-036043-A, when Simmons instructed staff of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify 
records of the amount and value of services they provided to wards of Parks, knowing that Parks would 
knowingly use that information to make a willful and false statement in a declaration made under penalty of 

perjury. 

56. On 07/30/2015, in the guardianship case of James Poya G-11-036043-A, April Parks knowingly offered a false 
instrument to be filed, registered or recorded in a public office, namely the Clark County District Court, which 
instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law of this state, 
namely Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 159.105 and 159.177, contrary to NRS 239.330 a category C felony. Said 
false instrument consisted of a Second Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian that contained false 
statements about the duration of services provided to Poya and the value of the fees owed for those services. 

57. On 03/25/2016, in the guardianship case of James Pova G-11-036043-A, April Parks made a willful and false 
statement, in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, namely the filing of a Petition to Terminate 
Guardianship and Approve Final Accounting, in a matter material to the issue in question, namely that she was 
owed fees for services rendered that were not, in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed. This 
declaration constitutes a violation of NRS 199.145, a category D felony. 

58. That Mark Simmons suborned April Parks to commit Perjury, contrary to NRS 199.145, a category D felony, in 
the filing of a Petition to Terminate Guardianship and Approve Final Accounting on 03/25/2016, in the 
guardianship case of James Poya G-11-036043-A, when Simmons instructed staff of A Private Professional 

Page 55 

AA 0926



LAS VEGAS METROPOLITAN POLICE DEPARTMENT 
CONTINUATION 

Event#: 150819-2043 ___ c....:....::....::....:..:......:=..;;_;;_ __ 

Guardian, LLC to falsify records of the amount and value of services they provided to wards of Parks, knowing 
that Parks would knowingly use that information to make a willful and false statement in a declaration made 

under penalty of perjury. 

59. On 03/25/2016, in the guardianship case of James Poya G-11-036043-A, April Parks knowingly offered a false 
instrument to be filed, registered or recorded in a public office, namely the Clark County District Court, which 
instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law of this state, 
namely Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 159.105 and 159.177, contrary to NRS 239.330 a category C felony. Said 
false instrument consisted of a Petition to Terminate Guardianship and Approve Final Accounting that 
contained false statements about the duration of services provided to Poya and the value of the fees owed for 

those services. 

60. On 06/18/2014, in the guardianship case of Ruth Braslow G-13-038228-A, April Parks made a willful and false 
statement, in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, namely the filing of a First Annuol Accounting and 
Report of Guardian, in a matter material to the issue in question, namely that she was owed fees for services 
rendered that were not, in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed. This declaration constitutes a 

violation of NRS 199.145, a category D felony. 

61. That Mark Simmons suborned April Parks to commit Perjury, contrary to NRS 199.145, a category D felony, in 
the filing of a First Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian on 06/18/2014, in the guardianship case of Ruth 
Bra slow G-13-038228-A, when Simmons instructed staff of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify records 
of the amount and value of services they provided to wards of Parks, knowing that Parks would knowingly use 
that information to make a willful and false statement in a declaration made under penalty of perjury. 

62. On 06/18/2014, in the guardianship case of Ruth Braslow G-13-038228-A, April Parks knowingly offered a false 
instrument to be filed, registered or recorded in a public office, namely the Clark County District Court, which 
instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law of this state, 
namely Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 159.105 and 159.177, contrary to NRS 239.330 a category C felony. Said 
false instrument consisted of a First Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian that contained false statements 
about the duration of services provided to Braslow and the value of the fees owed for those services. 

63. On 05/04/2015, in the guardianship case of Ruth Braslow G-13-038228-A, April Parks made a willful and false 
statement, in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, namely the filing of a Second Annual Accounting and 
Report of Guardian, in a matter material to the issue in question, namely that she was owed fees for services 
rendered that were not, in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed. This declaration constitutes a 
violation of NRS 199.145, a category D felony. 

64. That Mark Simmons suborned April Parks to commit Perjury, contrary to NRS 199.145, a category D felony, in 
the filing of a Second Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian on 05/04/2015, in the guardianship case of 
Ruth Braslow G-13-038228-A, when Simmons instructed staff of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify 
records of the amount and value of services they provided to wards of Parks, knowing that Parks would 
knowingly use that information to make a willful and false statement in a declaration made under penalty of 

perjury. 

65. On 05/04/2015, in the guardianship case of Ruth Braslow G-13-038228-A, April Parks knowingly offered a false 
instrument to be filed, registered or recorded in a public office, namely the Clark County District Court, which 
instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law of this sta,e, 
namely Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 159.105 and 159.177, contrary to NRS 239.330 a category C felony. Said 
false instrument consisted of a Second Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian that contained false 
statements about the duration of services provided to BrasJow and the value of the fees owed for those 

services. 
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66. On 05/27/2015, in the guardianship case of Ruth Braslow G-13-038228-A, April Parks knowingly offered a false 
instrument to be filed, registered or recorded in a public office, namely the Clark County District Court, which 
instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law of this state, 
namely Nevada Revised Statutes {NRS) 159.105 and 159.177, contrary to NRS 239.330 a category C felony. Said 
false instrument consisted of a Supplement to Second Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian that 
contained false statements about the duration of services provided to Braslow and the value of the fees owed 

for those services. 

67. On 05/03/2016, in the guardianship case of Ruth Braslow G-13-038228-A, April Parks made a willful and false 
statement, in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, namely the filing of a Petition to Approve Final 
Accounting, in a matter material to the issue in question, namely that she was owed fees for services rendered 
that were not, in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed. This declaration constitutes a violation of 

NRS 199.145, a category D felony. 

68. That Mark Simmons suborned April Parks to commit Perjury, contrary to NRS 199.145, a category D felony, in 
the filing of a Petition to Approve Final Accounting on 05/03/2016, in the guardianship case of Ruth Bras low G-
13-038228-A, when Simmons instructed staff of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify records of the 
amount and value of services they provided to wards of Parks, knowing that Parks would knowingly use that 
information to make a willful and false statement in a declaration made under penalty of perjury. 

69. On 05/03/2016, in the guardianship case of Ruth Braslow G-13-038228-A, April Parks knowingly offered a false 
instrument to be filed, registered or recorded in a public office, namely the Clark County District Court, which 
instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law of this state, 
namely Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 159.105 and 159.177, contrary to NRS 239.330 a category C felony. Said 
false instrument consisted of a Petition to Approve Final Accounting that contained false statements about the 
duration of services provided to Bras low and the value of the fees owed for those services. 

70. On 03/15/2016, in the guardianship case of Carolyn Rickenbaugh G-14-040726-A, April Parks made a willful and 
false statement, in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, namely the filing of a Petition to Terminate 
Guardianship and Approve Final Accounting, in a matter material to the issue in question, namely that she was 
owed fees for services rendered that were not, in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed. This 
declaration constitutes a violation of NRS 199,145, a category D felony. 

71. That Mark Simmons suborned April Parks to commit Perjury, contrary to NRS 199.145, a category D felony, in 
the filing of a Petition to Terminate Guardianship and Approve Final Accounting on 03/15/2016, in the 
guardianship case of Carolyn Rickenbaugh G-14-040726-A, when Simmons instructed staff of A Private 
Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify records of the amount and value of services they provided to wards of 
Parks, knowing that Parks would knowingly use that information to make a willful and false statement in a 

declaration made under penalty of perjury. 

72. On 03/15/2016, in the guardianship case of Carolyn Rickenbaugh G-14-040726-A, April Parks knowingly offered 
a false instrument to be filed, registered or recorded in a public office, namely the Clark County District Court, 
which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law of this state, 
namely Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 159.105 and 159.177, contrary to NRS 239.330 a category C felony. Said 
false instrument consisted of a Petition to Terminate Guardianship and Approve Final Accounting that 
contained false statements about the duration of services provided to Rickenbaugh and the value of the fees 

owed for those services. 

73. On 08/04/2015, in the guardianship case of William Brady G-10-035162-A, April Parks made a willful and false 
statement, in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, namely the filing of a First Annual Accounting and 
Petition for Payment of Fees, in a matter material to the issue in question, namely that she was owed fees for 
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services rendered that were not, in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed. This declaration 
constitutes a violation of NRS 199.145, a category D felony. 

74. That Mark Simmons suborned April Parks to commit Perjury, contrary to NRS 199.145, a category D felony, in 
the filing of a First Annual Accounting and Petition for Payment of Fees on 08/04/2015, in the guardianship 
case of William Brady G-10-035162-A, when Simmons instructed staff of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC to 
falsify records of the amount and value of services they provided to wards of Parks, knowing that Parks would 
knowingly use that information to make a willful and false statement in a declaration made under penalty of 

perjury. 

75. On 08/04/2015, in the guardianship case of William Brady G-10-035162-A, April Parks knowingly offered a false 
instrument to be filed, registered or recorded in a public office, namely the Clark County District Court, which 
instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law of this state, 
namely Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 159.105 and 159.177, contrary to NRS 239.330 a category C felony. Said 
false instrument consisted of a First Annual Accounting and Petition for Payment of Fees that contained false 
statements about the duration of services provided to Brady and the value of the fees owed for those services. 

76. On 03/15/2016, in the guardianship case of William Brady G-10-035162-A, April Parks made a willful and false 
statement, in a declaration made under penalt_y of perjury, namely the filing of a Petition to Terminate 
Guardianship and Approve Final Accounting, in a matter material to the issue in question, namely that she was 
owed fees for services rendered that were not, ln fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed. This 
declaration constitutes a violation of NRS 199.145, a category D felony. 

77. That Mark Simmons suborned April Parks to commit Perjury, contrary to NRS 199.145, a category D felony, in 
the filing of a Petition to Terminate Guardianship and Approve Final Accounting on 03/15/2016, in the 
guardianship case of William Brady G-10-035162-A, when Simmons instructed staff of A Private Professional 
Guardian, LLC to falsify records of the amount and value of services they provided to wards of Parks, knowing 
that Parks would knowingly use that information to make a willful and false statement in a declaration made 

underpen~tyofperju~. 

78. On 03/15/2016, in the guardianship case of William Brady G-10-035162-A, April Parks knowingly offered a false 
instrument to be filed, registered or recorded in a publlc office, namely the Clark County District Court, which 
instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law of this state, 
namely Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 159.105 and 159.177, contrary to NRS 239.330 a category C felony. Said 
false instrument consisted of a Petition to Terminate Guardianship and Approve Final Accounting that 
contained false statements about the duration of servlces provided to Brady and the value of the fees owed for 

those services. 

79. On 10/02/2013, in the guardianship case of Delmond Foster G-10-035339-A, April Parks made a willful and false 
statement, in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, namely the filing of a First Annual Accounting and 
Report of Guardian, in a matter material to the issue in question, namely that she was owed fees for services 
rendered that were not, in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed. This declaration constitutes a 
violation of NRS 199.145, a category D felony. 

80. That Mark Simmons suborned April Parks to commit Perjury, contrary to NRS 199.145, a category O felony, in 
the filing of a First Annual Accounting and Report of G_uardian on 10/02/2013, in the guardianship case of 
Delmond FosterG-10-035339-A, when Simmons instructed staff of A Private Professional Guardian, LLCto falsify 
records of the amount and value of services they provided to wards of Parks, knowing that Parks would 
knowingly use that information to make a willful and false statement in a declaration made under penalty of 

perjury. 
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81. On 10/02/2013, in the guardianship case of Delmond Foster G-10-035339-A, April Parks knowingly offered a 
false instrument to be filed, registered or recorded in a public office, namely the Clark County District Court, 
which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law of this state, 
namely Nevada Revised Statutes {NRS) 159.105 and 159.177, contrary to NRS 239.330 a category C felony. Said 
false instrument consisted of a First Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian that contained false statements 
about the duration of services provided to Foster and the value of the fees owed for those services. 

82. On 01/09/2015, in the guardianship case of Delmond Foster G-10-035339-A, April Parks made a willful and false 
statement, in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, namely the filing of a Second and Final Account and 
Report of Guardian, Petition for Payment of Fees and for Termination of Guardianship, in a matter material to 
the issue in question, namely that she was owed fees for services rendered that were not, in fact rendered to 
the extent and duration claimed. This declaration constitutes a violation of NRS 199.145, a category D felony. 

83. That Mark Simmons suborned April Parks to commit Perjury, contrary to NRS 199.145, a category D felony, in 
the filing of a Second and Final Account and Report of Guardian, Petition for Payment of Fees and for 
Termination of Guardianship on 01/09/2015, in the guardianship case of Delmond Foster G-10-035339-A, when 
Simmons instructed staff of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify records of the amount and value of 
services they provided to wards of Parks, knowing that Parks would knowingly use that information to make a 
willful and false statement in a declaration made under penalty of perjury. 

84. On 01/09/2015, in the guardianship case of Delmond Foster G-10-035339-A, April Parks knowingly offered a 
false instrument to be filed, registered or recorded in a public office, namely the Clark County District Court, 
which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law of this state, 
namely Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 159.105 and 159.177, contrary to NRS 239.330 a category C felony. Said 
false instrument consisted of a Second and Final Account and Report of Guardian, Petition for Payment of Fees 
and for Termination of Guardianship that contained false statements about the duration of services provided to 

Foster and the value of the fees owed for those services. 

85, On 04/03/2014, in the guardianship case of Patricia Smoak G-10-035078-A, April Parks made a willful and false 
statement, in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, namely the filing of a Second Annual Accounting and 
Report of Guardicms, in a matter material to the issue in question, namely that she was owed fees for services 
rendered that were not, in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed. This declaration constitutes a 

violation of NRS 199.145, a category D felony. 

86. That Mark Simmons suborned April Parks to commit Perjury, contrary to NRS 199.145, a category D felony, in 
the filing of a Second and Final Account and Report of Guardian, on 04/03/2014, in the guardianship case of 
Patricia Smoak G-10-035078-A, when Simmons instructed staff of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify 
records of the amount and value of services they provided to wards of Parks, knowing that Parks would 
knowingly use that information to make a willful and false statement in a declaration made under penalty of 

perjury. 

87. On 04/03/2014, in the guardianship case of Patricia Smoak G-10-035078-A, April Parks knowingly offered a false 
instrument to be filed, registered or recorded in a public office, namely the Clark County District Court, which 
instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law of this state, 
namely Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 159.105 and 159.177, contrary to NRS 239.330 a category C felony. Said 
false instrument consisted of a Second Annual Accounting and Report of Guardians that contained false 
statements about the duration of services provided to Smoak and the value of the fees owed for those services. 

88. On 04/06/2015, in the guardianship case of Patri<:ia Smoak G-10-035078-A, April Parks made a willful and false 
statement, in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, namely the filing of a Third Annual Accounting and 
Report of Guardians, in a matter material to the issue in question, namely that she was owed fees for services 
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rendered that were not, in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed. This declaration constitutes a 

violation of NRS 199.145, a category D felony. 

89. That Mark Simmons suborned April Parks to commit Perjury, contrary to NRS 199.145, a category D felony, in 
the filing of a Third Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian, on 04/06/2015, in the guardianship case of 
Patricia Smoak G-10-035078-A, when Simmons instructed staff of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify 
records of the amount and value of services they provided to wards of Parks, knowing that Parks would 
knowlngly use that information to make a willful and false statement in a declaration made under penalty of 

perjury. 

90. On 04/06/2015, in the guardianship case of Patricia Smoak G-10-035078-A, April Parks knowingly offered a false 
instrument to be filed, registered or recorded in a public office, namely the Clark County District Court, which 
instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law of this state, 
namely Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 159.105 and 159.177, contrary to NRS 239.330 a category C felony. Said 
false instrument consisted of a Third Annual Accounting and Report of Guardians that contalned false 
statements about the duration of services provided to Smoak and the value of the fees owed for those services. 

91. On 03/08/2016, in the guardianship case of Patricia Smoak G-10-035078-A, April Parks made a willful and false 
statement, in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, namely the filing of a Fourth Annual Accounting of 
Co-Guardians and Final Account of Former co-Guardian, April L. Parks, Manager of A Private Professional 
Guardian, LLC, in a matter material to the issue in question, namely that she was owed fees for services 
rendered that were not, in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed. This declaration constitutes a 
violation of NRS 199.145, a category D felony. 

92. That Mark Simmons suborned April Parks to commit Perjury, contrary to NRS 199.145, a category D felony, in 
the filing of a Fourth Annual Accounting of Co-Guardians and Final Account of Former co-Guardian, April L. 
Parks, Manager of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC, on 03/08/2016, in the guardianship case of Patricia 
Smoak G-10-035078-A, when Simmons instructed staff of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify records 
of the amount and value of services they provided to wards of Parks, knowing that Parks would knowingly use 
that information to make a willful and false statement in a declaration made under penalty of perjury. 

93. On 03/08/2016, in the guardianship case of Patricia Smoak G-10-035078-A, April Parks knowingly offered a false 
instrument to be filed, registered or recorded in a public office, namely the Clark County District Court, which 
instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law of this state, 
namely Nevada Revised Statutes {NRS) 159.105 and 159.177, contrary to NRS 239.330 a category C felony. Said 
false instrument consisted of a Fourth Annual Accounting of Co-Guardians and Final Account of Former co­
Guardian, April L. Parks, Manager of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC that contained false statements 
about the duration of services provided to Smoak and the value of the fees owed for those services. 

94. On 11/14/2014, in the guardianship case of Marilyn Scholl G-13-038909-A, April Parks made a willful and false 
statement, in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, namely the filing of a First Annual Accounting and 
Report of Guardian in a matter material to the issue in question, namely that she was owed fees for services 
rendered that were not, in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed. This declaration constitutes a 

violation of NRS 199.145, a category D felony. 

95. That Mark Simmons suborned April Parks to commit Perjury, contrary to NRS 199.145, a category D felony, in 
the filing of a First Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian, on 11/14/2014, in the guardianship case of 
Marilyn Scholl G-13-038909-A, when Simmons instructed staff of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify 
records of the amount and value of services they provided to wards of Parks, knowing that Parks would 
knowingly use that information to make a willful and false statement in a declaration made under penalty of 

perjury. 
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96. On 11/14/2014, in the guardianship case of Marilyn Scholl G-13-038909-A, April Parks knowingly offered a false 
instrument to be filed, registered or recorded in a public office, namely the Clark County District Court, which 
instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law of this state, 
namely Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 159.105 and 159.177, contrary to NRS 239.330 a category C felony. Said 
false instrument consisted of a First Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian that contained false statements 
about the duration of services provided to Scholl and the value of the fees owed for those services. 

97. On 08/31/2015, in the guardianship case of Marilyn Scholl G-13-038909-A, April Parks made a willful and false 
statement, in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, namely the filing of a Second Annual Accounting and 
Report of Guardian in a matter material to the issue in question, namely that she was owed fees for services 
rendered that were not, in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed. This declaration constitutes a 
violation of NRS 199.145, a category D felony. 

98. That Mark Simmons suborned April Parks to commit Perjury, contrary to NRS 199.145, a category D felony, in 
the filing of a Second Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian, on 08/31/2015, in the guardianship case of 
Marilyn Scholl G-13-038909-A, when Simmons instructed staff of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify 
records of the amount and value of services they provided to wards of Parks, knowing that Parks would 
knowingly use that information to make a willful and false statement in a declaration made under penalty of 

perjury. 

99. On 08/31/2015, in the guardianship case of Marilyn Scholl G-13-038909-A, April Parks knowingly offered a false 
instrument to be filed, registered or recorded in a public office, namely the Clark County District Court, which 
instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered cir recorded in a public office under any law of this state, 
namely Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 159.105 and 159.177, contrary to NRS 239.330 a category C felony. Said 
false instrument consisted of a Second Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian that contained false 
statements about the duration of services provided to Scholl and the value of the fees owed for those services. 

100. On 01/21/2015, in the guardianship case of Kenneth Edwards G-13-039636-A, April Parks made a willful 
and false statement, in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, namely the filing of a First Annual 
Accounting and Report of Guardian in a matter material to the issue in question, namely that she was owed 
fees for services rendered that were not, in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed. This declaration 
constitutes a violation of NRS 199.145, a category D felony. 

101. That Mark Simmons suborned April Parks to commit Perjury, contrary to NRS 199.145, a category D 
felony, in the filing of a First Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian, on 01/21/2015, in the guardianship 
case of Kenneth Edwards G-13-039636-A, when Simmons instructed staff of A Private Professional Guardian, 
LLC to falsify records of the amount and value of services they provided to wards of Parks, knowing that Parks 
would knowingly use that information to make a willful and false statement in a declaration made under penalty 

of perjury. 

102. On 01/21/2015, in the guardianship case of Kenneth Edwards G-13-039636-A, April Parks knowingly 
offered a false instrument to be filed, registered or recorded in a public office, namely the Clark County District 
Court, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law of this 
state, namely Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 159.105 and 159.177, contrary to NRS 239.330 a category C felony. 
Said false instrument consisted of a First Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian that contained false 
statements about the duration of services provided to Edwards and the value of the fees owed for those 

services. 

103. On 03/15/2016, in the guardianship case of Kenneth Edwards G·l3-039636-A, April Parks made a willful 
and false statement, in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, namely the filing of a Petition to Terminate 
Guardianship and Approve Final Accounting in a matter material to the issue in question, namely that she was 
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owed fees for services rendered that were not, in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed. This 
declaration constitutes a violation of NRS 199.145, a category D felony. 

104. That Mark Simmons suborned April Parks to commit Perjury, contrary to NRS 199.145, a category D 
felony, in the filing of a Petition to Termincrte Guardianship and Approve Final Accounting, on 03/15/2015, in 
the guardianship case of Kenneth Edwards G-13-039636-A, when Simmons instructed staff of A Private 
Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify records of the amount and value of services they provided to wards of 
Parks, knowing that Parks would knowingly use that information to make a willful and false statement in a 
declaration made under penalty of perjury. 

105. On 03/15/2016, in the guardianship case of Kenneth Edwards G-13-039636-A, April Parks knowingly 
offered a false instrument to be filed, registered or recorded in a public office, namely the Clark County District 
Court, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law of this 
state, namely Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 159.105 and 159.177, contrary to NRS 239.330 a category C felony. 
Said false instrument consisted of a Petition to Terminate Guardianship and Approve Final Accounting that 
contained false statements about the duration of services provided to Edwards and the value of the fees owed 

for those services. 

106. On 05/30/2014, in the guardianship case of Gloria Schneringer G-09-034019-A, April Parks made a 
willful and false statement, in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, namely the filing of a Fourth Annual 
Ac:c:ounting and Report of Guardian in a matter material to the issue in question, namely that she was owed 
fees for ~ervices rendered that were not, in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed. This declaration 
constitutes a violation of NRS 199.145, a category D felony. 

107. That Mark Simmons suborned April Parks to commit Perjury, contrary to NRS 199.145, a category D 
felony, in the filing of a Fourth Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian, on 05/30/2014, in the guardianship 
case of Gloria Schnerlnger G-09-034019-A, when Simmons instructed staff of A Private Professional Guardian, 
LLC to falsify records of the amount and value of services they provided to wards of Parks, knowing that Parks 
would knowingly use that information to make a willful and false statement in a declaration made under penalty 

of perjury. 

108. On 05/30/2014, in the guardianship case of Gloria Schneringer G-09-034019-A, April Parks knowingly 
offered a false instrument to be filed, registered or recorded in a public office, namely the Clark County District 
Court, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law of this 
state, namely Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 159.105 and 159.177, contrary to NRS 239.330 a category C felony. 
Said false instrument consisted of a Fourth Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian that contained false 
statements about the duration of services provided to Schneringer and the value of the fees owed for those 

servi.ces. 

109. On 03/23/2015, in the guardianship case of Gloria Schneringer G-09-034019-A, April Parks made a 
willful and false statement, in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, namely the filing of a Fifth Annual 
Account and Report of Guardian, Notice of Death of Co-Guardian, James N. Schneringer and Order for 
Confirmation of Investing the wards Funds in a matter material to the issue in question, namely that she was 
owed fees for services rendered that were not, in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed. This 
declaration constitutes a violation of NRS 199.145, a category D felony. 

110. That Mark Simmons suborned April Parks to commit Perjury, contrary to NRS 199.145, a category D 
felony, in the filing of a Fifth Annual Account and Report of Guardian, Notice of Death of Co-Guardian, James 
N. Schneringer and Order for Confirmation of Investing the wards Funds, on 03/23/2015, in the guardianship 
case of Gloria Schnerlnger G-09-034019-A, when Simmons instructed staff of A Private Professional Guardian, 
LLC to falsify records of the amount and value of services they provided to wards of Parks, knowing that Parks 
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would knowingly use that information to make a willful and false statement in a declaration made under penalty 

of perjury. 

111. On 03/23/2015, in the guardianship case of Gloria Schneringer G-09-034019-A, April Parks knowingly 
offered a false instrument to be filed, registered or recorded in a public office, namely the Clark County District 
Court, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law of this 
state, namely Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 159.105 and 159.177, contrary to NRS 239.330 a category C felony. 
Said false instrument consisted of a Fifth Annual Account and Report of Guardian, Notice of Death of Co­
Guardian, James N. Schneringer and Order for Confirmation of Investing the wards Funds that contained false 
statements about the duration of services provided to Schneringer and the value of the fees owed for those 

servlces. 

112. On 03/06/2015, in the guardianship case of Janice Mitchell G-11-035593-A, April Parks made a willful 
and false statement, in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, namely the filing of a Second Annual 
Accounting and Report of Guardian in a matter material to the issue in question, namely that she was owed 
fees for services rendered that were not, in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed. This declaration 
constitutes a violation of NRS 199.145, a category D felony. 

113. That Mark Simmons suborned April Parks to commit Perjury, contrary to NRS 199.145, a category D 
felony, in the filing of a Second Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian, on 03/06/2015, in the guardianship 
case of Janice Mitchell G-11-035593-A, when Simmons instructed staff of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC to 
falsify records of the amount and value of services they provided to wards of Parks, knowing that Parks would 
knowingly use that information to make a willful and false statement in a declaration made under penalty of 

perjury. 

114. On 03/06/2015, in the guardianship case of Janice Mitchell G-11-035593-A, April Parks knowingly 
offered a false instrument to be filed, registered or recorded in a public office, namely the Clark County District 
Court, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law of this 
state, namely Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 159.105 and 159.177, contrary to NRS 239.330 a category C felony. 
Said false instrument consisted of a Second Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian that contained false 
statements about the duration of services provided to Mitchell and the value of the fees owed for those 

services. 

115. On 08/20/2014, in the guardianship case of Mary Vitek G-12-037215-A, April Parks made a willful and 
false statement, in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, namely the filing of a Petition to Terminate 
Guardianship and Approve Final Accounting in a matter material to the issue in question, narnely that she was 
owed fees for services rendered that were not, in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed. This 
declaration constitutes a violation of NRS 199.145, a category D felony. 

116. That Mark Simmons suborned April Parks to commit Perjury, contrary to NRS 199.145, a category D 
felony, ln the filing of a Petition to Terminate Guardianship and Approve Final Accounting, on 08/20/2014, in 
the guardianship case of Mary Vitek G-12-037215-A, when Simmons instructed staff of A Private Professional 
Guardian, LLC to falsify records of the amount and value of services they provided to wards of Parks, knowing 
that Parks would knowingly use that information to make a willful and false statement in a declaration made 

under penalty of perjury. 

117. On 08/20/2014, in the guardianship case of Mary Vitek G-12-037215-A, April Parks knowingly offered a 
false instrument to be filed, registered or recorded in a public office, namely the Clark County District Court, 
whlch instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law of this state, 
namely Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 159.105 and 159.177, contrary to NRS 239.330 a category C felony. Said 
false instrument consisted of a Petition to Terminate Guardianship and Approve Final Accounting that 
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contained false statements about the duration of services provided to Vitek and the value of the fees owed for 

those services. 

118. On 12/18/2014, in the guardianship case of Cecilia Cass G-13-039449-A, April Parks made a willful and 
false statement, in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, namely the filing of a First Annual Accounting 

and Report of Guardian in a matter material to the issue in question, namely that she was owed fees for 
services rendered that were not, in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed. This declaration 
constitutes a violation of NRS 199.145, a category D felony. 

119. That Mark Simmons suborned April Parks to commit Perjury, contrary to NRS 199.145, a category D 
felony, in the filing of a First Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian, on 12/18/2014, in the guardianship 
case of Cecilia Cass G-13-039449-A, when Simmons instructed staff of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC to 
falsify records of the amount and value of services they provided to wards of Parks, knowing that Parks would 
knowingly use that information to make a willful and false statement in a declaration made under penalty of 

perjury. 

120. On 12/18/2014, in the guardianship case of Cecilia Cass G-13-039449-A, April Parks knowingly offered a 
false instrument to be filed, registered or recorded in a public office, namely the Clark County District Court, 
which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law of this state, 
namely Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 159.105 and 159.177, contrary to NRS 239.330 a category C felony. Said 
false instrument consisted of a First Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian that contained false statements 
about the duration of services provided to Cecilia Cass and the value of the fees owed tor those services. 

121. On 06/03/2014, in the guardianship case of Roy Cass G-13-039443-A, April Parks made a willful and 
false statement, in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, namely the filing of a Petition to Terminate 
Guardianship and Approve Final Accounting in a matter material to the issue in question, namely that she was 
owed fees for services rendered that were not, in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed. This 
declaration constitutes a violation of NRS 199.145, a category D felony. 

122. That Mark Simmons suborned April Parks to commit Perjury, contrary to NRS 199.145, a category D 
felony, in the filing of a Petition to Terminate Guardianship and Approve Final Accounting, on 06/03/2014, in 
the guardianship case of Roy Cass G-13-039443-A, when Simmons instructed staff of A Private Professional 
Guardian, LLC to falsify records of the amount and value of services they provided to wards of Parks, knowing 
that Parks would knowingly use that information to make a willful and false statement in a declaration made 
under penalty of perjury. 

123. On 06/03/2014, in the guardianship case of Roy Cass G-13-039443-A, April Parks knowingly offered a 
false instrument to be filed, registered or recorded in a public office, namely the Clark County District Court, 
which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law of this state, 
namely Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 159,105 and 159.177, contrary to NRS 239.330 a category C felony. Said 
false instrument consisted of a Petition to Terminate Guardianship and Approve Final Accounting that 
contained false statements about the duration of services provided to Roy Cass and the value of the fees owed 

for those services. 

124. On 05/08/2015, in the guardianship case of Clyde Bowman 06G029707, April Parks made a willful and 
false statement, in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, namely the filing of a Second and Final Account 
and Report of Guardians, Petition for Payment of Fees, For Termination of Guardianship cmd To Set Aside 
Estate without Administration in a matter material to the issue in question, namely that she was owed fees for 
services rendered that were not, in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed. This declaration 
constitutes a violation of NRS 199.145, a category D felony. 
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125. That Mark Simmons suborned April Parks to commit Perjury, contrary to NRS 199.145, a category D 
felony, in the filing of a Second and Fino/ Account and Report of Guardians, Petition for Payment of Fees, For 
Termination of Guardianship and To Set Aside Estate without Administration, 05/08/2015, in the guardianship 
case of Clyde Bowman 06G029707, when Simmons instructed staff of A Private Professional Guardian, UC to 
falsify records of the amount and value of services they provided to wards of Parks, knowing that Parks would 
knowingly use that information to make a willful and false statement in a declaration made under penalty of 

perjury. 

126. On 05/08/2015, in the guardianship case of Clyde Bowman 06G029707, April Parks knowingly offered a 
false instrument to be filed, registered or recorded in a public office, namely the Clark County District Court, 
which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law of this state, 
namely Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS} 159.105 and 159.177, contrary to NRS 239.330 a category C felony. Said 
false instrument consisted of a Second and Finril Account and Report of Guardians, Petition for Payment of 
Fees, For Termination of Guardianship and To Set Aside Estate without Administration that contained false 
statements about the duration of services provided to Bowman and the value of the fees owed for those 
services. 

127. On 07/22/2013, in the guardianship case of Roy Franklin G-12·037404·A, April Parks made a willful and 
false statement, in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, namely the filing of a First Annual Accounting 
and Report of Guardian in a matter material to the issue in question, namely that she was owed fees for 
services rendered that were not, in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed. This declaration 
constitutes a violation of NRS 199.145, a category D felony. 

128. That Mark Simmons suborned April Parks to commit Perjury, contrary to NRS 199.145, a category D 
felony, in the filing of a First Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian, 07/22/2013, in the guardianship case 
of Roy Franklin G-12·037404-A, when Simmons instructed staff of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify 
records of the amount and value of services they provided to wards of Parks, knowing that Parks would 
knowingly use that information to make a willful and false statement in a declaration made under penalty of 

perjury. 

129. On 07/22/2013, in the guardianship case of Roy Franklln G-12-037404-A, April Parks knowingly offered 
a false instrument to be filed, registered or recorded in a public office, namely the Clark County District Court, 
which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law of this state, 
namely Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 159.105 and 159.177, contrary to NRS 239.330 a category C felony. Said 
false instrument consisted of a First Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian that contained false statements 
about the duration of services provided to Franklin and the value of the fees owed for those services. 

130. On 08/20/2014, in the guardianship case of Roy franklin G·12-037404·A, April Parks made a willful and 
false statement, in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, namely the filing of a Second Annual 
Accounting and Report of Guardian in a matter material to the issue in question, namely that she was owed 
fees for services rendered that were not, in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed. This declaration 
constitutes a violation of NRS 199.145, a category D felony. 

131. That Mark Simmons suborned April Parks to commit Perjury, contrary to NRS 199.145, a category D 
felony, in the filing of a Second Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian, 08/20/2014, in the guardianship 
case of Roy Franklin G-12-037404·A, when Simmons instructed staff of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC to 
falsify records of the amount and value of services they provided to wards of Parks, knowing that Parks would 
knowingly use that information to make a willful and false statement in a declaration made under penalty of 

perjury. 

132. On 08/20/2014, in the guardianship case of Roy Franklin G-12-037404-A, April Parks knowingly offered 
a false instrument to be filed, registered or recorded in a public office, namely the Clark County District Court, 
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which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law of this state, 
namely Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS} 159.105 and 159.177, contrary to NRS 239.330 a category C felony. Said 
false instrument consisted of a Second Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian that contained false 
statements about the duration of services provided to Franklin and the value of the fees owed for those 

services. 

133. On 06/23/2015, in the guardianship case of Roy Franklin G-12-037404-A, April Parks made a willful and 
false statement, in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, namely the filing of a Third and Final Account 
and Report of Guardians, Petition for Payment of Fees and for Termination of Guardianship in a matter 
material to the issue in question, namely that she was owed fees for services rendered that were not, in fact 
rendered to the extent and duration claimed. This declaration constitutes a violation of NRS 199.145, a category 

D felony. 

134. That Mark Simmons suborned April Parks to commit Perjury, contrary to NRS 199.145, a category D 
felony, in the filing of a Third and Final Account and Report of Guardians, Petition for Payment of Fees and for 
Termination of Guardianship, 06/23/2015, in the guardianship case of Roy Franklin G-12-037404-A, when 
Simmons instructed staff of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify records of the amount and value of 
services they provided to wards of Parks, knowing that Parks would knowingly use that information to make a 
willful and false statement in a declaration made under penalty of perjury. 

135. On 06/23/2015, in the guardianship case of Roy Franklin G-12-037404-A, April Parks knowingly offered 
a false instrument to be filed, registered or recorded in a public office, namely the Clark County District Court, 
which instrument, if genufne, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law of this state, 
namely Nevada Revised Statutes {NRS) 159.105 and 159.177, contrary to NRS 239.330 a category C felony. Said 
false instrument consisted of a Third and Final Account and Report of Guardians, Petition for Payment of Fees 
and far Termination of Guardianship that contained false statements about the duration of services provided to 
Franklin and the value of the fees owed for those services. 

136. On 03/03/2015, in the guardianship case of Juanita Graham G-13-039161-A, April Parks made a willful 
and false statement, in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, namely the filing of a First Annual 
Accounting and Report of Guardian in a matter material to the issue in question, namely that she was owed 
fees for services rendered that were not, in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed. This declaration 
constitutes a violation of NRS 199.145, a category D felony. 

137. That Mark Simmons suborned April Parks to commit Perjury, contrary to NRS 199.145, a category D 
felony, in the filing of a First Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian, 03/03/2015, in the guardianship case 
of Juanita Graham G-13-039161-A, when Simmons instructed staff of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC to 
falsify records of the amount and value of services they provided to wards of Parks, knowing that Parks would 
knowingly use that information to make a willful and false statement in a declaration made under penalty of 

perjury. 

138. On 03/03/2015, in the guardianship case of Juanita Graham G-13-039161-A, April Parks knowingly 
offered a false instrument to be filed, registered or recorded in a public office, namely the Clark County District 
Court, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law of this 
state, namely Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 159.105 and 159.177, contrary to NRS 239.330 a category C felony. 
Said false instrument consisted of a First Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian that contained false 
statements about the duration of services provided to Graham and the value of the fees owed for those 

services. 

139. On 11/11/2015, in the guardianship case of Juanita Graham G-13-039161-A, April Parks made a willful 
and false statement, in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, namely the filing of a Second Annual 
Accounting and Report of Guardian in a matter material to the issue in question, namely that she was owed 
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fees for services rendered that were not, in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed. This declaration 

constitutes a violation of NRS 199.145, a category D felony. 

140. That Mark Simmons suborned April Parks to commit Perjury, contrary to NRS 199.145, a category D 
felony, in the filing of a Second Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian, 11/11/2015, in the guardianship 
case of Juanita Graham G-13-039161-A, when Simmons instructed staff of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC 
to falsify records of the amount and value of services they provided to wards of Parks, knowing that Parks would 
knowingly use that information to make a willful and false statement in a declaration made under penalty of 

perjury. 

141. On 11/11/2015, in the guardianship case of Juanita Graham G-13-039161-A, April Parks knowingly 
offered a false instrument to be filed, registered or recorded in a public office, namely the Clark County District 
Court, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law of this 
state, namely Nevada Revised Statutes {NRS) 159.105 and 159.177, contrary to NRS 239.330 a category C felony. 
Said false instrument consisted of a Second Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian that contained false 
statements about the duration of services provided to Graham and the value of the fees owed for those 

services. 

142. On 11/22/2015, in the guardianship case of Yoshiko Klndaichi G-13-039448-A, April Parks made a willful 
and false statement, in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, namely the filing of a First and Final 
Account and Report of Guardian and Petition for Payment of Fees and for Termination of Guardianship in a 
matter material to the issue in question, namely that she was owed fees for services rendered that were not, in 
fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed. This declaration constitutes a violation of NRS 199.145, a 

category D felony. 

143. That Mark Simmons suborned April Parks to commit Perjury, contrary to NRS 199.145, a category D 
felony, in the filing of a First and Final Account and Report of Guardian and Petition for Payment of Fees and 
for Termination of Guardianship, 11/22/2015, in the guardianship case of Yoshiko Kindaichi G-13-039448-A, 
when Simmons instructed staff of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify records of the amount and value 
of services they provlded to wards of Parks, knowing that Parks would knowingly use that information to make a 
willful and false statement in a declaration made under penalty of perjury. 

144. On 11/22/2015, in the guardianship case of Yoshiko Kindalchi G-13-039448-A, April Parks knowingly 
offered a false instrument to be flied, registered or recorded in a public office, namely the Clark County District 
Court, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law of this 
state, namely Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 159.105 and 159.177, contrary to NRS 239.330 a category C felony. 
Said false instrument consisted of a First and Final Account and Report of Guardian and Petition for Payment of 
Fees and for Termination of Guardianship that contained false statements about the duration of services 
provided to Kindaichi and the value of the fees owed for those services. 

145. On 08/21/2014, in the guardianship case of Walter Wright G-11-036232-A, April Parks made a willful 
and false statement, in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, namely the filing of a First Annual 
Accounting and Report of Guardian in a matter material to the issue in question, namely that she was owed 
fees for services rendered that were not, in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed. This declaration 
constitutes a violation of NRS 199.145, a category D felony. 

146. That Mark Simmons suborned April Parks to commit Perjury, contrary to NRS 199.145, a category D 
felony, in the filing of a First Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian, 08/21/2014, in the guardianship case 
of Walter Wright G-11-036232-A, when Simmons instructed staff of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC to 
falsify records of the amount and value of services they provided to wards of Parks, knowing that Parks would 
knowingly use that information to make a willful and false statement in a declaration made under penalty of 

perjury. 
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147. On 08/21/2014, in the guardianship case of Walter Wright G-11-036232-A, April Parks knowingly 
offered a false instrument to be filed, registered or recorded in a public office, namely the Clark County District 
Cour.t, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law of this 
state, namely Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 159.105 and 159.177, contrary to NRS 239.330 a category C felony. 
Said false instrument consisted of a First Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian that contained false 
statements about the duration of services provided to Wright and the value of the fees owed for those services. 

148. On 06/23/2015, in the guardianship case of Walter Wright G-11-036232-A, April Parks made a willful 
and false statement, in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, namely the filing of a Second Annual 
Accounting and Report of Guardian in a matter material to the issue in question, namely that she was owed 
fees for services rendered that were not, in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed. This declaration 
constitutes a violation of NRS 199.145, a category D felony. 

149. That Mark Simmons suborned April Parks to commit Perjury, contrary to NRS 199.145, a category D 
felony, in the filing of a Second Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian, 06/23/2015, in the guardianship 
case of Walter Wright G-11-036232-A, when Simmons instructed staff of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC to 
falsify records of the amount and value of services they provided to wards of Parks, knowing that Parks would 
knowingly use that information to make a willful and false statement in a declaration made under penalty of 

perjury. 

150. On 06/23/2015, in the guardianship case of Walter Wright G-11-036232-A, April Parks knowingly 
offered a false instrument to be filed, registered or recorded in a public office, namely the Clark County District 
Court, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law of this 
state, namely Nevada Revised Statutes {NRS) 159.105 and 159.177, contrary to NRS 239.330 a category C felony. 
Said false instrument consisted of a Second Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian that contained false 
statements about the duration of services provided to Wright and the value of the fees owed for those services 

151. On 08/27/2015, in the guardianship case of Walter Wright G-11-036232-A, April Parks made a willful 
and false statement, in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, namely the filing of a Petition to Terminate 
Guardianship and Approve Final Accounting in a matter material to the issue in question, namely that she was 
owed fees for services rendered that were not, in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed. This 
declaration constitutes a violation of NRS 199.145, a category D felony. 

152.. That Mark Simmons suborned April Parks to commit Perjury, contrary to NRS 199.145, a category D 
felony, in the filing of a Petition to TerminQte Guardianship and Approve Final Acr:ounting, 08/27/2015, in the 
guardianship case of Walter Wright G-11-036232-A, when Simmons instructed staff of A Private Professional 
Guardian, LLC to falsify records of the amount and value of services they provided to wards of Parks, knowing 
that Parks would knowingly use that information to make a willful and false statement in a declaration made 

under penalty of perjury. 

153. On 08/27/2015, in the guardianship case of Walter Wright G-11-036232-A, April Parks knowingly 
offered a false instrument to be filed, registered or recorded in a public office, namely the Clark County District 
Court, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law of this 
state, namely Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 159.105 and 159.177, contrary to NRS 239.330 a category C felony. 
Said false instrument consisted of a Petition to Terminate Guardianship and Approve Final Accounting that 
contained false statements about the duration of services provided to Wright and the value of the fees owed for 

those services. 

154. On 03/03/2015, in the guardianship case of Martha Ornelas G-13-039145-A, April Parks made a willful 
and false statement, in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, namely the filing of a First Annual 
Accounting and Report of Guardian in a matter material to the issue in question, namely that she was owed 
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fees for services rendered that were not, in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed. This declaration 
constitutes a violation of NRS 199.145, a category D felony. 

155. That Mark Simmons suborned April Parks to commit Perjury, contrary to NRS 199.145, a category D 
felony, in the filing of a First Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian, 03/03/2015, in the guardianship case 
of Martha Ornelas G-13-039145-A, when Simmons instructed staff of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC to 
falsify records of the amount and value of services they provided to wards of Parks, knowing that Parks would 
knowingly use that information to make a willful and false statement in a declaration made under penalty of 

perjury. 

156. On 03/03/2015, in the guardianship case of Martha Ornelas G-13-039145-A, April Parks knowingly 
offered a false instrument to be filed, registered or recorded in a public office, namely the Clark County District 
Court, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law of this 
state, namely Nevada Revised Statutes {NRS) 159.105 and 159.177, contrary to NRS 239.330 a category C felony. 
Said false instrument consisted of a First Annual Ar;r;ountlng and Report of Guardian that contained false 
statements about the duration of services provided to Ornelas and the value of the fees owed for those services. 

157. On 07/07/2015, in the guardianship case of Martha Ornelas G-13-039145-A, April Parks made a willful 
and false statement, in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, namely the filing of a Petition to Terminate 
Guard;anshlp and Approve Final Accounting in a matter material to the issue in question, namely that she was 
owed fees for services rendered that were not, in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed. This 
declaration constitutes a violation of NRS 199.145, a category D felony. 

158. That Mark Simmons suborned April Parks to commit Perjury, contrary to NRS 199.145, a category D 
felony, in the filing of a Petition to Terminate Guardianship and Approve Final Accounting, 07/07/2015, in the 
guardianship case of Martha Ornelas G-13-039145-A, when Simmons instructed staff of A Private Professional 
Guardian, LLC to falsify records of the amount and value of services they provided to wards of Parks, knowing 
that Parks would knowingly use that information to make a willful and false statement in a declaration made 

under penalty of perjury. 

159. On 07/07/2015, 1n the guardianship case of Martha Ornelas G-13-039145-A, April Parks knowingly 
offered a false instrument to be filed, registered or recorded in a public office, namely the Clark County District 
Court, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law of this 
state, namely Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 159.105 and 159.177, contrary to NRS 239.330 a category C felony. 
Said false instrument consisted of a Petition to Terminate Guardianship and Approve Final Accounting that 
contained false statements about the duration of services provided to Ornelas and the value of the fees owed 

for those services. 

160. On 03/31/2015, in the guardianship case of Robert Smith G-14-039910-A, April Parks made a willful and 
false statement, in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, namely the filing of a First Annual Accounting 
and Report of Guardian in a matter material to the issue in question, namely that she was owed fees for 
services rendered that were not, in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed. This declaration 
constitutes a violation of NRS 199.145, a category D felony. 

161. That Mark Simmons suborned April Parks to commit Perjury, contrary to NRS 199.145, a category D 
felony, in the filing of a First Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian, 03/31/2015, in the guardianship case 
of Robert Smith G-14-039910-A, when Simmons instructed staff of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify 
records of the amount and value of services they provided to wards of Parks, knowing that Parks would 
knowingly use that information to make a willful and false statement in a declaration made under penalty of 

perjury. 
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162. On 03/31/2015, in the guardianship case of Robert Smith G-14-039910-A, April Parks knowingly offered 

a false instrument to be filed, registered or recorded in a public office, namely the Clark County District Court, 
which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law of this state, 
namely Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 159.105 and 159.177, contrary to NRS 239.330 a category C felony. Said 
false instrument consisted of a First Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian that contained false statements 
about the duration of services provided to Smith and the value of the fees owed for those services. 

163. On 05/28/2014, in the guardianship case of Larry Coble G-10-035166-A, April Parks made a willful and 
false statement, in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, namely the filing of a Petition to Terminate 
Guardianship and Approve Final Accounting in a matter material to the issue in question, namely that she was 
owed fees for services rendered that were not, in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed. This 
declaration constitutes a violation of NRS 199.145, a category D felony. 

164. That Mark Simmons suborned April Parks to commit Perjury, contrary to NRS 199.145, a category D 
felony, in the filing of a Petition to Terminate Guardianship and Approve Final Accounting, 05/28/2014, in the 
guardianship case of Larry Coble G-10-035166-A, when Simmons instructed staff of A Private Professional 
Guardian, LLC to falsify records of the amount and value of services they provided to wards of Parks, knowing 
that Parks would knowingly use that information to make a willful and false statement in a declaration made 

under penalty of perjury. 

165. On 05/28/2014, in the guardianship case of Larry Coble G-10-035166-A, April Parks knowingly offered a 
false instrument to be filed, registered or recorded in a public office, namely the Clark County District Court, 
which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law of this state, 
namely Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 159.105 and 159.177, contrary to NRS 239.330 a category C felony. Said 
false instrument consisted of a Petition to Terminate Guardianship and Approve Final Accounting that 
contained false statements about the duration of services provided to Coble and the value of the fees owed for 

those services. 

166. On 03/15/2016, in the guardianship case of Linda Fisher G-14-041060-A, April Parks made a willful and 
false statement, in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, namely the filing of a Petition to Terminate 
Guardianship and Approve Final Accounting in a matter material to the issue in question, namely that she was 
owed fees for services rendered that were not, in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed. This 
declaration constitutes a violation of NRS 199.145, a category D felony. 

167. That Mark Simmons suborned April Parks to commit Perjury, contrary to NRS 199.145, a category D 
felony, in the filing of a Petition to Terminate Guardianship and Approve Final Accounting, 03/15/2016, in the 
guardianship case of Linda Fisher G-14-041060-A, when Simmons instructed staff of A Private Professional 
Guardian, LLC to falsify records of the amount and value of services they provided to wards of Parks, knowing 
that Parks would knowingly use that information to make a willful and false statement in a declaration made 

under penalty of perjury. 

168. On 03/15/2016, in the guardianship case of Linda Fisher G-14-041060·A, April Parks knowingly offered a 
false instrument to be filed, registered or recorded in a public office, namely the Clark County District Court, 
which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law of this state, 
namely Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 159.105 and 159.177, contrary to NRS 239.330 a category C felony. Said 
false instrument consisted of a Petition to Terminate Guardianship and Approve Final Accounting that 
contained false statements about the duration of services provided to Fisher and the value of the fees owed for 

those services. 

169. On 07/24/2015, in the guardianship case of Edward Atherton G-14-040243-A, April Parks made a willful 
and false statement, in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, namely the filing of a First Annual Account 
in a matter material to the issue in question, namely that she was owed fees for services rendered that were 
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not, in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed. This declaration constitutes a violation of NRS 199.145, 

a category D felony. 

170. That Mark Simmons suborned April Parks to commit Perjury, contrary to NRS 199.145, a category D 
felony, in the filing of a First Annual Account, 07/24/2015, in the guardianship case of Edward Atherton G-14-
040243-A, when Simmons instructed staff of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify records of the 
amount and value of services they provided to wards of Parks, knowing that Parks would knowingly use that 
information to make a willful and false statement in a declaration made under penalty of perjury. 

171. On 07/24/2015, in the guardianship case of Edward Atherton G-14-040243-A, April Parks knowingly 
offered a false instrument to be filed, registered or recorded in a public office, namely the Clark County District 
Court, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law ofthis 
state, namely Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 159.105 and 159.177, contrary to NRS 239.330 a category C felony. 
Said false instrument consisted of a first Annual Account that contained false statements about the duration of 
services provided to Atherton and the value of the fees owed for those services. 

172. On 02/20/2016, in the guardianship case of Edward Atherton G-14-040243-A, April Parks made a willful 
and false statement, in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, namely the filing of a Petition to Terminate 
Guardianship and Approve Final Accounting in a matter material to the issue in question, namely that she was 
owed fees for services rendered that were not, in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed. This 
declaration constitutes a violation of NRS 199.145, a category D felony. 

173. That Mark Simmons suborned April Parks to commit Perjury, contrary to NRS 199.145, a category D 
felony, in the filing of a Petition to Terminate Guardianship and Approve Final Accounting1 02/20/2016, in the 
guardianship case of Edward Atherton G-14-040243-A, when Simmons instructed staff of A Private Professional 
Guardian, LLC to falsify records of the amount and value of services they provided to wards of Parks, knowing 
that Parks would knowingly use that information to make a willful and false statement in a declaration made 

under penalty of perjury. 

174. On 02/20/2016, in the guardianship case of Edward Atherton G-14-040243-A, April Parks knowingly 
offered a false instrument to be filed, registered or recorded in a public office, namely the Clark County District 
Court, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public oftice under any law of this 
state, namely Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 159.105 and 159.177, contrary to NRS 239.330 a category C felony. 
Said false instrument consisted of a Petition to Terminate Guardianship and Approve Final Accounting that 
contained false statements about the duration of services provided to Atherton and the value of the fees owed 

for those services. 

175. On 05/13/2016, in the guardianship case of Charles Maddera G-12-038107-A, April Parks made a willful 
and false statement, in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, namely the filing of a Petition to Terminate 
Guardianshfp and Approve Final Accounting in a matter material to the issue in question, namely that she was 
owed fees for services rendered that were not, in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed. This 
declaration constitutes a violation of NRS 199.145, a category D felony. 

176. That Mark Simmons suborned April Parks to commit Perjury, contrary to NRS 199.145, a category D 
felony, in the filing of a Petition to Terminate Guardianship and Approve Final Accounting, 05/13/2016, in the 
guardianship case of Charles Maddera G-12-038107-A, when Simmons instructed staff of A Private Professional 
Guardian, LLC to falsify records of the amount and value of services they provided to wards of Parks, knowing 
that Parks would knowingly use that information to make a willful and false statement in a declaration made 
under penalty of perjury. 

177. On 05/13/2016, in the guardianship case of Charles Maddera G-12-038107-A, April Parks knowingly 
offered a false instrument to be filed, registered or recorded in a public office, namely the Clark County District 
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Court, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law of this 
state, namely Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 159.105 and 159.177, contrary to NRS 239.330 a category C felony. 
Said false instrument consisted of a Petition to Terminate Guardianship and Approve Final Accounting that 
contained false statements about the duration of services provided to Maddera and the value of the fees owed 

for those services. 

178. On 07/07/2015, in the guardianship case of Rex Lyons G-14-040310-A, April Parks made a willful and 
false statement, in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, namely the filing of a First Annual Accounting 
and Report of Guardian in a matter material to the issue in question, namely that she was owed fees for 
services rendered that were not, in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed. This declaration 
constitutes a violation of NRS 199.145, a category D felony. 

179. That Mark Simmons suborned April Parks to commit Perjury, contrary to NRS 199.145, a category D 
felony, in the filing of a First Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian, 07/07/2015, in the guardianship case 
of Rex Lyons G-14-040310-A, when Simmons instructed staff of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify 
records of the amount and value of services they provided to wards of Parks, knowing that Parks would 
knowingly use that information to make a willful and false statement in a declaration made under penalty of 

perjury. 

180. On 07/07/2015, in the guardianship case of Rex Lyons G-14-040310-A, April Parks knowingly offered a 
false instrument to be filed, registered or recorded in a public office, namely the Clark County District Court, 
which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law of this state, 
namely Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 159.105 and 159.177, contrary to NRS 239.330 a category C felony. Said 
false instrument consisted of a First Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian that contained false statements 
about the du ration of services provided to Lyons and the value of the fees owed for those services. 

181. On 03/15/2016, in the guardianship case of Rex Lyons G-14-040310-A, April Parks made a willful and 
false statement, in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, namely the filing of a Petition to Terminate 
Guardianship and Approve Final Accounting in a matter material to the issue in question, namely that she was 
owed fees for services rendered that were not, in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed. This 
declaration constitutes a violation of NRS 199.145, a category D felony. 

182. That Mark Simmons suborned April Parks to commit Perjury, contrary to NRS 199.145, a category D 
felony, in the filing of a Petition to Terminate Guardianship and Approve Final Accounting, 03/15/2016, in the 
guardianship case of Rex Lyons G-14-040310-A, when Simmons instructed staff of A Private Professional 
Guardian, LLC to falsify records of the amount and value of services they provided to wards of Parks, knowing 
that Parks would knowingly use that information to make a willful and false statement in a declaration made 

under penalty of perjury. 

183. On 03/15/2016, in the guardianship case of Rex Lyons G-14-040310-A, April Parks knowingly offered a 
false instrument to be filed, registered or recorded in a public office, namely the Clark County District Court, 
which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law of this state, 
namely Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 159.105 and 159.177, contrary to NRS 239.330 a category C felony. Said 
false instrument consisted of a Petition to Terminate Guardianship and Approve Final Accounting that 
contained false statements about the duration of services provided to Lyons and the value of the fees owed for 

those services. 

184. On 08/13/2014, in the guardianship case of Marlene Homer G-12-037395-A, April Parks made a willful 
and false statement, in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, namely the filing of a First Annual 
Accounting and Report of Guardian in a matter material to the issue in question, namely that she was owed 
fees for services rendered that were not, in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed. This declaration 
constitutes a violation of NRS 199.145, a category D felony. 
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185. That Mark Simmons suborned April Parks to commit Perjury, contrary to NRS 199.145, a category D 
felony, in the filing of a First Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian, 08/13/2014, in the guardianship case 
of Marlene Homer G-12-037395-A, when Simmons instructed staff of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC to 
falsify records of the amount and value of services they provided to wards of Parks, knowing that Parks would 
knowingly use that information to make a willful and false statement in a declaration made under penalty of 

perjury. 

186. On 08/13/2014, in the guardianship case of Marlene Homer G-12-037395-A, April Parks knowingly 
offered a false instrument to be filed, registered or recorded in a public office, namely the Clark County District 
Court, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law of this 
state, namely Nevada Revised Statutes {NRS) 159.105 and 159.177, contrary to NRS 239.330 a category C felony. 
Said false instrument consisted of a First Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian that contained false 
statements about the duration of services provided to Homer and the value of the fees owed for those services. 

187. On 02/20/2016, in the guardianship. case of Marlene Homer G-12-037395-A, April Parks made a willful 
and false statement, in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, namely the filing of a Petition to Terminate 
Guardianship and Approve Final Accounting in a matter material to the issue in question, namely that she was 
owed fees for services rendered that were not, in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed. This 
declaration constitutes a violation of NRS 199.145, a category D felony. 

188. That Mark Simmons suborned April Parks to commit Perjury, contrary to NRS 199.145, a category D 
felony, in the filing of a Petition to Terminate Guardianship and Approve Final Accounting, 02/20/2016, in the 
guardianship case of Marlene Homer G-12-037395-A, when Simmons instructed staff of A Private Professional 
Guardian, LLC to falsify records of the amount and value of services they provided to wards of Parks, knowing 
that Parks would knowingly use that information to make a willful and false statement in a declaration made 

under penalty of perjury. 

189. On 02/20/2016, in the guardianship case of Marlene Homer G-12-037395-A, April Parks knowingly 
offered a false instrument to be filed, registered or recorded in a public office, namely the Clark County District 
Court, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any !aw of this 
state, namely Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 159.105 and 159.177, contrary to NRS 239.330 a category C felony. 
Said false instrument consisted of a Petition to Terminate Guardianship and Approve Final Accounting that 
contained false statements about the duration of services provided to Homer and the value of the fees owed for 

those services. 

190. On 01/09/2015, in the guardianship case of Marie long G-12-037438-A, April Parks made a willful and 
false statement, in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, namely the filing of a First Annual Accounting 
and Report of Guardian in a matter material to the issue in question, namely that she was owed fees for 
services rendered that were not, in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed. This declaration 
constitutes a violation of NRS 199.145, a category D felony. 

191. That Mark Simmons suborned April Parks to commit Perjury, contrary to NRS 199.145, a category D 
felony, in the filing of a First Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian, 01/09/2015, in the guardianship case 
of Marie Long G-12-037438-A, when Simmons instructed staff of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify 
records of the amount and value of services they provided to wards of Parks, knowing that Parks would 
knowingly use that information to make a willful and false statement in a declaration made under penalty of 

perjury. 

192. On 01/09/2015, in the guardianship case of Marie Long G-12-037438-A, April Parks knowingly offered a 
false instrument to be filed, registered or recorded in a public office, namely the Clark County District Court, 
which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law of this state, 

Page 73 

AA 0944



LAS VEGAS METROPOLITAN POLICE DEPARTMENT 

CONTINUATION 
Event #: 150819-2043 ----------

namely Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 159.105 and 159.177, contrary to NRS 239.330 a category C felony. Said 
false instrument consisted of a First Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian that contained false statements 
about the duration of services provided to Long and the value of the fees owed for those services. 

193. On 09/29/2015, in the guardianship case of Marie Long G-12-037438~A, April Parks made a willful and 
false statement, in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, namely the fillng of a Second Annual 
Accounting and Report of Guardian in a matter material to the issue in question, namely that she was owed 
fees for services rendered that were not, in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed. This declaration 

constitutes a violation of NRS 199.145, a category D felony. 

194. That Mark Simmons suborned April Parks to commit Perjury, contrary to NRS 199.145, a category D 
felony, in the filing of a Second Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian, 09/29/2015, in the guardianship 
case of Marie Long G-12-037438-A, when Simmons instructed staff of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC to 
falsify records of the amount and value of services they provided to wards of Parks, knowing that Parks would 
knowingly use that information to make a willful and false statement in a declaration made under penalty of 

perjury. 

195. On 09/29/2015, in the guardianship case of Marie Long G-12-037438-A, April Parks knowingly offered a 
false instrument to be filed, registered or recorded in a public office, namely the Clark County District Court, 
which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law of this state, 
namely Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 159.105 and 159.177, contrary to NRS 239.330 a category C felony. Said 
false instrument consisted of a Second Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian that contained false 
statements about the duration of services provided to Long and the value of the fees owed for those services. 

196. On 04/10/2015, in the guardianship case of Rudy North G-13-039133-A, April Parks knowingly offered a 
false instrument to be filed, registered or recorded in a public office, namely the Clark County District Court, 
which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law of this state, 
namely Nevada Revised Statutes {NRS) 159.105 and 1S9.177, contrary to NRS 239.330 a category C felony. Said 
false instrument consisted of a First Annual Accounting, Report of Guardian of Person and Estate of Rudy 
North, Petition for Instructions and Authority to Sell Coins that contained false statements about the duration 
of services provided to Rudy North and the value of the fees owed for those services. 

197. On 05/08/2015, in the guardianship case of Rudy North G-13-039133-A, April Parks knowingly offered a 
false instrument to be flied, registered or recorded in a public office, namely the Clark County District Court, 
which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law of this state, 
namely Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 159.105 and 159.177, contrary to NRS 239.330 a category C felony. Said 
false instrument consisted of an Amended First Annual Accounting of Guardianship Estate of Rudy North that 
contained false statements about the duration of services provided to Rudy North and the value of the fees 

owed for those services. 

198. On 02/26/2016, in the guardianship case of Rudy North G-13-039133-A, April Parks knowingly offered a 
false instrument to be filed, registered or recorded in a public office, namely the Clark County District Court, 
which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law of this state, 
namely Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 159.105 and 159.177, contrary to NRS 239.330 a category C felony. Said 
false instrument consisted of a Second and Final Accounting of Guardianship Estate of Rudy North that 
contained false statements about the duration of services provided to Rudy North and the value of the fees 

owed for those services. 

199. On 04/10/2015, in the guardianship case of Rennie North G-13-039132-A, April Parks knowingly offered 
a false instrument to be filed, registered or recorded in a public office, namely the Clark County District Court, 
which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law of this state, 
namely Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 159.105 and 159.177, contrary to NRS 239.330 a category C felony. Sard 
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false instrument consisted of a First Annual Accounting, Report of Guardian of Person and Estate of Rennie 
North, Petition for Instructions and Authority to Sell Coins that contained false statements about the duration 
of services provided to Rennie North and the value of the fees owed for those services. 

200. On 05/08/2015, in the guardianship case of Rennie North G-13-039132-A, April Parks knowingly ottered 
a false instrument to be filed, registered or recorded in a public office, namely the Clark County District Court, 
which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law of this state, 
namely Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 159.105 and 159.177, contrary to NRS 239.330 a category C felony. Said 
false instrument consisted of an Amended First Annual Accounting of Guardianship Estate of Rennie North that 
contained false statements about the duration of services provided to Rennie North and the value of the fees 

owed for those services. 

201. On 02/26/2016, in the guardianship case of Rennie North G-13-039132-A, April Parks knowingly offered 
a false instrument to be filed, registered or recorded in a public office, namely the Clark County District Court, 
which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law of this state, 
namely Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 159.105 and 159.177, contrary to NRS 239.330 a category C felony. Said 
false instrument consisted of a Second and Final Accounting of Guardianship Estate of Rennie North that 
contained false statements about the duration of services provided to Rennie North and the value of the fees 
owed for those services. 

202. On 08/20/2015, in the guardianship case of Harold Lockwood G-12-037193-A, April Parks made a willful 
and false statement, in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, namely the filing of a First Annual 
Accounting and Report of Guardian in a matter material to the issue in question, namely that she was owed 
fees for services rendered that were not, in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed. This declaration 
constitutes a violation of NRS 199.145, a category D felony. 

203. That Mark Simmons suborned April Parks to commit Perjury, contrary to NRS 199.145, a category D 
felony, in the filing of a First AnnuQI Accounting and Report of Guardian, 08/20/2015, in the guardianship case 
of Harold Lockwood G-12-037193-A, when Simmons instructed staff of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC to 
falsify records of the amount and value of services they provided to wards of Parks, knowing that Parks would 
knowingly use that information to make a willful and false statement in a declaration made under penalty of 

perjury. 

204. On 08/20/2015, in the guardianship case of Harold Lotkwood G-12-037193-A, April Parks knowingly 
offered a false instrument to be filed, registered or recorded in a public office, namely the Clark County District 
Court, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law of this 
state, namely Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 159.105 and 159.177, contrary to NRS 239.330 a category C felony. 
Said false instrument consisted of a First Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian that contained false 
statements about the duration of services provided to Lockwood and the value of the fees owed for those 

services. 

205. On 12/20/2014, in the guardianship case of Norbert Wilkening G-13-038438-A, April Parks made a 
willful and false statement, in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, namely the filing of a Petition of 
Guardian April Parks to Withdraw and Petition for Approval of Fees and Costs in a matter material to the issue 
in question, namely that she was owed fees for services rendered that were not, in fact rendered to the extent 
and duration claimed. This declaration constitutes a violation of NRS 199.145, a category D felony. 

206. That Mark Simmons suborned April Parks to commit Perjury, contrary to NRS 199.145, a category D 
felony, in the filing of a Petition of Guardian April Parks to Withdraw and Petition for Approval of Fees and 
Costs, 12/20/2014, in the guardianship case of Norbert Wilkening G-13-038438-A, when Simmons instructed 
staff of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify records of the amount and value of services they provided 
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to wards of Parks, knowing that Parks would knowingly use that information to make a willful and false 
statement in a declaration made under penalty of perjury. 

207. On 12/20/2014, in the guardianship case of Norbert Wilkening G-13-038438-A, April Parks knowingly 
offered a false instrument to be filed, registered or recorded in a public office, namely the Clark County District 
Court, which instrument, if genulne, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law of this 
state, namely Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 159.105 and 159.177, contrary to NRS 239.330 a category C felony. 
Said false instrument consisted of a Petition of Guardian Aprif Porks to Withdraw and Petition for Approval of 
Fees and Costs that contained false statements about the duration of services provided to Wilkening and the 

value of the fees owed for those services. 

208. On 10/30/2013, in the guardianship case of Adolfo Gonzalez G-13-038316-A, April Parks made a willful 
and false statement, in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, namely the filing of a First and Final 
Account and Report of Guardian, Petition for Payment of Fees and For Termination of Guardianship in a 
matter material to the issue in question, namely that she was owed fees for services rendered that were not, in 
fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed. This declaration constitutes a violation of NRS 199.145, a 

category D felony. 

209. That Mark Simmons suborned April Parks to commit Perjury, contrary to NRS 199.145, a category D 
felony, in the filing of a First and Final Account and Report of Guardian, Petition for Payment of Fees and For 
Termination of Guardianship, 10/30/2013, in the guardianship case of Adolfo Gonzalez G·l3·038316·A, when 
Simmons instructed staff of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify records of the amount and value of 
services they provided to wards of Parks, knowing that Parks would knowingly use that information to make a 
willfu I and false statement in a declaration made under penalty of perjury. 

210. On 10/30/2013, in the guardianship case of Adolfo Gonzalez G-13-038316-A, April Parks knowingly 
offered a false instrument to be filed, registered or recorded in a public office, namely the Clark County District 
Court, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law of this 
state, namely Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 159.105 and 159.177, contrary to NRS 239.330 a category C felony. 
Said false instrument consisted of a First and Final Account and Report of Guardian, Petition for Payment of 
Fees and For Termination of Guardicmship that contained false statements about the duration of services 
provided to Gonzalez and the value of the fees owed for those services. 

211. On 06/19/2015, in the guardianship case of Dolores Smith G-13-039454-A, April Parks made a willful 
and false statement, in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, namely the filing of a First Annual Account, 
Report of Guardian and Petition for Confirmation of Sale of Personal Property in a matter material to the issue 
in question, namely that she was owed fees for services rendered that were not, in fact rendered to the extent 
and duration claimed. This declaration constitutes a violation of NRS 199.145, a category D felony. 

212. That Mark Simmons suborned April Parks to commit Perjury, contrary to NRS 199.145, a category D 
felony, in the filing of a First Annual Account, Report of Guardian and Petition for Confirmation of Sale of 
Personal Property, 06/19/2015, in the guardianship case of Dolores Smith G-13-039454-A, when Simmons 
instructed staff of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify records of the amount and value of services 
they provided to wards of Parks, knowing that Parks would knowingly use that information to make a willful and 
false statement in a declaration made under penalty of perjury. 

213. On 06/19/2015, in the guardianship case of Dolores Smith G-13-039454-A, April Parks knowingly 
offered a false instrument to be filed, registered or recorded in a public office, namely the Clark County District 
Court, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law of this 
state, namely Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 159.105 and 159.177, contrary to NRS 239.330 a category C felony. 
Said false instrument consisted of a First Annual Account, Report of Guardian and Petition for Confirmation of 
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Sole of Personal Property that contained false statements about the duration of services provided to Smith and 

the value of the fees owed for those services. 

214. On 03/25/2016, in the guardianship case of Dolores Smith G-13-039454-A, April Parks made a willful 
and false statement, in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, namely the filing of a Petition to Terminate 
Guardianship and Approve Final Accounting in a matter material to the issue in question, namely that she was 
owed fees for services rendered that were not, in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed. This 
declaration constitutes a violation of NRS 199.145, a category D felony. 

215. That Mark Simmons suborned April Parks to commit Perjury, contrary to NRS 199.145, a category O 
felony, in the filing of a Petition to Terminate Guardianship and Approve Final Accounting, 03/25/2016, in the 
guardianship case of Dolores Smith G-13-039454-A, when Simmons instructed staff of A Private Professional 
Guardian, LLC to falsify records of the amount and value of services they provided to wards of Parks, knowing 
that Parks would knowingly use that information to make a willful and false statement in a declaration made 

under penalty of perjury. 

216. On 03/25/2016, in the guardianship case of Dolores Smith G-13-039454-A, April Parks knowingly 
offered a false instrument to be filed, registered or recorded in a public office, namely the Clark County District 
Court, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law of this 
state, namely Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 159.105 and 159.177, contrary to NRS 239.330 a category C felony. 
Said false instrument consisted of a Petition to Terminate Guardianship and Approve Fina/ Accounting that 
contained false statements about the duration of services provided to Smith and the value of the fees owed for 

those services. 

217. On 07/31/2015, in the guardianship case of Linda Phillips G-08-032515-A, April Parks made a willful and 
false statement, in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, namely the filing of a First and Second Annual 
Accounting Combined and Report of Guardian in a matter material to the issue in question, namely that she 
was owed fees for services rendered that were not, in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed. This 
declaration constitutes a violation of NRS 199.145, a category D felony. 

218. That Mark Simmons suborned April Parks to commit Perjury, contrary to NRS 199.145, a category D 
felony, in the filing of a First and Second Annual Accounting Combined and Report of Guardian, 07/31/2015, in 
the guardianship case of Linda Phillips G-08-032515-A, when Simmons instructed staff of A Private Professional 
Guardian, LLC to falsify records of the amount and value of services they provided to wards of Parks, knowing 
that Parks would knowingly use that information to make a willful and false statement in a declaration made 

under penalty of perjury. 

219. On 07/31/2015, in the guardianship case of Linda Phillips G-08-032515-A, April Parks knowingly offered 
a false instrument to be filed, registered or recorded in a public office, namely the Clark County District Court, 
which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law of this state, 
namely Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 159.105 and 159.177, contrary to NRS 239.330 a category C felony. Said 
false instrument consisted of a First and Second Annual Accounting Combined and Report of Guardian that 
contained false statements about the duration of services provided to Phillips and the value of the fees owed for 

those services. 

220. On 11/14/2014, in the guardianship case of Linda Phillips G-08-032515-A, April Parks made a willful and 
false statement, in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, namely the filing of a Third Annual Accounting 
and Report of Guardian in a matter material to the issue in question, namely that she was owed fees for 
services rendered that were not, in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed. This declaration 
constitutes a violation of NRS 199.145, a category D felony. 
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221. That Mark Simmons suborned April Parks to commit Perjury, contrary to NRS 199.145, a category D 
felony, in the filing of a Third Annuaf Accounting and Report of Guardian, 11/14/2014, in the guardianship case 
of Linda Phillips G-08-032515-A, when Simmons instructed staff of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify 
records of the amount and value of services they provided to wards of Parks, knowing that Parks would 
knowingly use that information to make a willful and false statement in a declaration made under penalty of 

perjury. 

222. On 11/14/2014, in the guardianship case of Linda Phillips G-08-032515-A, April Parks knowingly offered 
a false instrument to be filed, registered or recorded in a public office, namely the Clark County District Court, 
which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law of this state, 
namely Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 159.105 and 159.177, contrary to NRS 239.330 a category C felony. Said 
false instrument consisted of a Third Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian that contained false 
statements about the duration of services provided to Phillips and the value of the fees owed for those services. 

223. On 07/14/2014, in the guardianship case of Frank Papapietro G-12-037226-A, April Parks made a willful 
and false statement, in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, namely the filing of a First Annual 
Accounting and Report of Guardian in a matter material to the issue in question, namely that she was owed 
fees for services rendered that were not, in fact rendered to the extent and duration claimed. This declaration 
constitutes a violation of NRS 199.145, a category D felony. 

224. That Mark Simmons suborned April Parks to commit Perjury, contrary to NRS 199.145, a category D 
felony, in the filing of a First Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian, 07/14/2014, in the guardianship case 
of Frank Papapietro G-12-037226-A, when Simmons instructed staff of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC to 
falsify records of the amount and value of services they provided to wards of Parks, knowing that Parks would 
knowingly use that information to make a willful and false statement in a declaration made under penalty of 

perjury. 

225. On 07/14/2014, in the guardianship case of Frank Papapietro G-12-037226-A, April Parks knowingly 
offered a false instrument to be filed, registered or recorded in a public office, namely the Clark County District 
Court, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law of this 
state, namely Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 159.105 and 159.177, contrary to NRS 239.330 a category C felony. 
Said false instrument consisted of a First Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian that contained false 
statements about the duration of services provided to Papapietro and the value of the fees owed for those 

services. 

226. On 07/17/2015, in the guardianship case of Frank Papapietro G-12-037226-A, April Parks knowingly 
offered a false instrument to be filed, registered or recorded in a public office, namely the Clark County District 
Court, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law of this 
state, namely Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 159.105 and 159.177, contrary to NRS 239.330 a category C felony. 
Said false instrument consisted of a Response to Objection to First Annual Accounting and Report of Guardian 
and Amended First Annual Ac:c:ount and Report of Guardian that contained false statements about the duration 
of services provided to Papapietro and the value of the fees owed for those services. 

227. On 01/30/2015, in the guardianship case of Barbara Neely G-14-040873-A, April Parks made a willful 
and false statement, in a declaration made under penalty of perjury, namely the filing of a First and Final 
Account and Report of Guardianr Petition for Payment of Fees and Termination of Guardianship in a matter 
material to the issue in question, namely that she was owed fees for services rendered that were not, in fact 
rendered to the extent and duration claimed. This declaration constitutes a violation of NRS 199.145, a category 

D felony. 

228, That Mark Simmons suborned April Parks to commit Perjury, contrary to NRS 199.145, a category D 
felony, in the filing of a First and Final Account and Report of Guardian, Petition for Payment of Fees and 
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Termination of Guardianship, 01/30/2015, in the guardianship case of Barbara Neely G-14-040873-A, when 
Simmons instructed staff of A Private Professional Guardian, LLC to falsify records of the amount and value of 
services they provided to wards of Parks, knowing that Parks would knowingly use that information to make a 
willful and false statement in a declaration made under penalty of perjury. 

229. On 01/30/2015, in the guardianship case of Barbara Neely G-14-040873-A, April Parks knowingly 
offered a false instrument to be filed, registered or recorded in a public office, namely the Clark County District 
Court, which instrument, if genuine, might be filed, registered or recorded in a public office under any law of this 
state, namely Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) 159.105 and 159.177, contrary to NRS 239.330 a category C felony. 
Said false instrument consisted of a First and Final Account and Report of Guardian, Petition for Payment of 
Fees and Termination of Guardianship that contained false statements about the duration of services provided 
to Neely and the value of the fees owed for those services. 
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